NHS

The Dudley Group

NHS Foundation Trust

Annual Report &
Accounts
%2021/22







The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22

Presented to Parliament pursuant to Schedule 7, paragraph 25 (4) (a) of
the National Health Service Act 2006



© 2022 The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust



Contents

Performance Report
About The Dudley Group
Welcome from the chairman & chief executive
Overview:
e Our strategy and objectives
¢ Risks to delivering our objectives
e How we manage our services
e (oing concern
Performance summary
The year in review

Accountability Report

Directors’ report

Remuneration report

Staff report

Sustainability and the environment

Code of Governance
e Foundation Trust membership
e Council of Governors

NHS Oversight Framework

Statement of Accounting Officer’s responsibilities

Annual Governance Statement
Annual Accounts

18
27

31
53
64
88
90

100
101
103
134



Performance
report

Sensory pod in fracture clinic

About The Dudley Group

We are the main provider of hospital and adult community services to the population
of Dudley, parts of the Sandwell borough and smaller but growing communities in
South Staffordshire and Wyre Forest. Achieving Foundation Trust status in 2008, we
provide a wide range of medical, surgical and rehabilitation services to a population
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of over 450,000 people from three main sites — Russells Hall Hospital and Guest
Outpatient Centre in Dudley, and Corbett Outpatient Centre in Stourbridge — and in
people’s homes from our community sites.

In 2021, we established an Imaging Diagnostics Centre based at Corbett Outpatient
Centre, with a satellite centre at Guest Outpatient Centre.

We also provide a range of specialist services, some of which are accessed by
patients from across the UK. These include vascular surgery, endoscopic
procedures, stem cell transplants, endometriosis and specialist genitourinary
reconstruction.

Our staff are our greatest asset and, with a workforce of around 5,548 substantive
staff, we provide a range of secondary and tertiary services:

e Adult community services including community nursing, end of
life care, podiatry, therapies and outpatient services are
delivered from a range of community venues across the
borough.

¢ Russells Hall Hospital in Dudley, which has more than 650 beds,
including intensive care beds and neonatal cots, provides
secondary and tertiary services such as maternity, critical care
and outpatients and an Emergency Department (ED) with an
Emergency Treatment Centre.

e The Guest Outpatient Centre in Dudley and Corbett Outpatient
Centre in Stourbridge provide a range of outpatient, therapy and
day case services.

We are also proud to be the vascular services hub for the Black Country and have
an active research and development team.

Our vision is to be a healthcare provider that provides ‘excellent health care —
improved health for all’.



Welcome from our chairman and chief executive

Welcome to the Trust’'s Annual Report for 2021/22 and, as always in the NHS, it's
been another busy year, with many incredible highs and, of course, the challenges
brought about by the global pandemic and restoration of our services.

This report aims to take you through the
journey we have been on, and continue on, as
the borough’s biggest employer. We employ
over 5,000 people; we purchase millions of
pounds worth of goods and services and our
actions impact on the environment. We are
committed to using this influence to have a
positive effect by widening access to
employment, working with local businesses to
increase the amount of goods and services we
purchase locally and to minimise the harmful
effects our activities have on the environment.
We take pride in providing a stable workplace
for our communities and opportunities for
students and work experience placements too.
As a Trust, we recognise that the impact we
have on the communities we serve goes
beyond the health services we provide.

Dame Yve Buckland,
chairman

Our Trust board has seen a few changes this

Diane Wake. chief executive year with Katherine Sheerin, director of
strategy, and Liam Nevin, board secretary,
_ :;?‘% moving on. We had the opportunity to make
- = /i Lowell Williams into full non-executive director
<, .;’ from that of an associate effective from 1st

|

January 2022. Adam Thomas, our chief

™S information officer, was confirmed as a voting

2022.

executive. We welcomed our new director of
strategy and partnerships Kat Rose in April

o y LA / i< Work has continued with providers across

P ~= . Dudley to redefine the clinical model for
integrated care. The aim is to provide better

accessibility in a more joined-up way to all our

patients across primary, secondary and
community care.

The Black Country provider collaborative has also really taken off this year with
Jonathan Odum from Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust, and me as Dudley Group
CEQO, leading this important work. You can find out more about this on page 39.
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Of course, we give thanks to our wonderful workforce who have had significant
challenges thrown at them during this pandemic. Not least of which restoring
services that were placed on hold during the peaks of COVID-19, the challenges of
social distancing and additional infection control measures. Catching up on the work
that had to be stopped has been no mean feat. We continue to work collaboratively
with partners across the Black Country to restore all services and provide excellent
patient care to all of our patients.

We are particularly fortunate that we have an amazing team of volunteers who never
cease to amaze us with their tenacity, resilience and commitment to the Trust and
our patients and staff — a huge thank you to every volunteer that supports us. The
pandemic and its associated restrictions of social distancing and management of
patients, which are easing as we write, has brought into even sharper focus just how
much the NHS values its volunteers and workforce alike.

As part of the COVID-19 response, the Trust is the lead employer for the
vaccination programme for the Black Country and West Birmingham. Our core role
is to provide the workforce capacity required to deliver the vaccination programme
across the patch. This involves recruiting, training, rostering and paying the
vaccination workforce that is required for the hospital vaccination hubs, vaccination
centres and providing workforce capacity to the Primary Care Networks (PCNs).

It really doesn’t seem long ago that we were setting up the vaccine centre in the
Action Heart Centre at Russells Hall Hospital for the very first time — yet that was 15
months ago, back at Christmas 2020. Since then we have administered more than
29,240 vaccines — around 25,000 COVID-19 vaccines and, of course, the rest being
flu.

The vaccine roll-out has been one of the most remarkable things about the NHS
response to this awful pandemic. We are extremely proud of what we have achieved
here, and | hope you are too. Thanks to the commitment of our staff we have been
able to provide life-saving jabs to so many of our friends and colleagues — even
Santa! Thanks also go to the team at Action Heart for all their support and for putting
up with us disrupting their gym for so long! They have been gracious hosts and we
are very grateful. We don’t know what the future holds, or what the pandemic may
yet have in store for us, but the vaccines have been a real game-changer in our
battle against COVID-19.

One of our key challenges is workforce and ensuring we have the right skills mix and
number of staff to treat and care for our patients. Increased demand on our services
and high levels of sickness due to COVID-19 brought this into even sharper focus.
We have undertaken some really targeted recruitment in those hard to recruit to
posts and been successful. We have recently seen the arrival of our first cohort of
international nurses from Nigeria. Twenty-one nurses joined us at the end of March
2022 and are busy spending time being inducted and getting to know Dudley.

We are so proud of the achievements of our workforce and it’s always exciting when

people realise national roles such as Sharon Petford, a clinical nurse specialist in
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rheumatology at the Trust, who will serve two years as chair of the Royal College of
Nursing Rheumatology Nursing Forum. She will represent rheumatology nurses from
across the UK to promote member engagement in the specialism.

Another thing that is top of everyone’s priorities is ensuring we keep patients flowing
through our hospital and services to keep our Emergency Department functioning
well. When we struggle to discharge people who are medically fit to leave, it has a
knock-on effect on our emergency services and our partners in the ambulance
service as we struggle to move people to the right place for their treatment. As part
of our work to improve flow across the Trust, we opened a new £15.6m acute
medical unit at Russells Hall Hospital.

The first patients moved into the new unit, called the Rainbow Unit on the suggestion
of our staff, on Wednesday 10" November 2021. As well as providing extra bed
space, the new unit sees patients receive early, single assessment by medical
teams, avoiding duplication of work in ED.

Our staff inclusion networks have really taken off and become the powerful forces we
hoped they would be. The networks all have good membership levels and
passionate chairpersons and committee members who are raising awareness of
important issues and helping to shape our workforce policies. You can read more
about the work of our networks on page 72.

We were pleased to see our charitable events taking place again when COVID-19
restrictions were lifted, with a hugely successful ‘Glitter Ball’ which encouraged local
businesses to find out more about the services we provide and, importantly, how
they can support those ‘added extras’ for patients and staff. Some really great
relationships with our local community and businesses are taking off as a result and
we will be building on these throughout the year. Thanks also go to our five runners
who supported our charity with fundraising by running the Virgin Virtual London
Marathon — if you'd like to support us this year by taking a place, please contact
dgft.fundraising@nhs.net

Key achievements during 2021/2022

In this section, you can read more about some of the great things that have
happened across the Trust.

Black Country Vascular Hub reaches number one

Russells Hall Hospital is the home to the Black Country vascular hub and we are
thrilled that it was rated number one in the country for ensuring patients with
abdominal aortic aneurysm (AAA) get potential life-saving surgery in a timely
manner.

Thanks to the incredible hard work of members of the Black Country Vascular
Network, we have been ranked as the best performing out of 38 other AAA

screening programmes for meeting standard pathway time to surgery following initial
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identification.

Rezum steam treatment

A ground-breaking new procedure now being used in Dudley is sparing men with a
prostate problem from having more invasive surgery — improving their quality of life
and saving them days of staying in hospital.

The revolutionary steam treatment is being used at Russells Hall Hospital for non-
cancerous prostate gland enlargement, which is common in men aged over 50.
Symptoms like needing to pass urine more frequently, trouble starting to urinate and
loss of bladder control affect more than a third of men over that age.

The urology team at The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust, led by consultant
David Mathews, has begun treating patients with male benign prostate hyperplasia
(BPH) as day cases. Previously, men having moderate to severe symptoms which
did not respond to medication had to have a bigger operation and stay in hospital for
several days to recover.

New treatment for managing type 1 diabetes

We are so pleased and excited to be able to offer the new closed loop system to
eligible patients, including both adults and young people with type 1 diabetes. The
new device can completely transform patients’ lives as it monitors glucose levels and
automatically delivers the correct dose of basal insulin — saving patients having to
make calculations and give themselves injections throughout the day.

Audiology service retains national accreditation

The kindness and empathy of our healthcare staff has been praised in a report by a
national body into the audiology service located at Brierley Hill Health and Social
Care Centre. The service has retained its certification by the United Kingdom
Accreditation Service (UKAS) following an on-site assessment and submission of
evidence. The audiology service provides adult and paediatric audiological
assessment and rehabilitation, although the accreditation is for adult services only.

Breast screening video for deaf women

Two videos produced in partnership with the Trust, the deaf community and the Ron
Grimley Undergraduate Centre at Russells Hall Hospital are set to alleviate fears of
deaf women ahead of breast screening appointments. How to be breast aware and
A guide to the breast screening appointment feature interpreters using sign
language to get across vital, potentially life-saving information on how to be breast
aware, and to help deaf and hard of hearing women understand what to expect
during a mammogram. They were commissioned by the charity Zebra Access to
ease fears and anxieties during breast screening appointments because women in
the deaf community often feel isolated and frustrated when accessing healthcare.
This has been particularly difficult during COVID-19.
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ReSPECT launch

This year saw the launch of ReSPECT, a national process led by Resuscitation
Council UK. It stands for Recommended Summary Plan for Emergency Care and
Treatment, and it is a process where the patient and their healthcare professional
talk together to work out a personalised plan for potential future emergency
treatment.

This plan is to be used in emergency situations where the patient is unable to
express their wishes, and it will ensure that patients receive the best possible
treatment for their individual situation.

You will find much more on the vast array of services we provide and how they are
recovering and restoring services, plus how we have managed the money
throughout this report. These achievements demonstrate our teams' continued hard
work, dedication and resourcefulness to put patients at the centre of everything they
do. Their ability to adapt and innovate even with the backdrop of the pandemic has
been truly inspiring.

On page 25, you can find out more of the exciting achievements we have made in
the section ‘year in review’.

Recommended Summary Plan for
Emergency Care and Treatment

What should happen to
you in an emergency?

What is ReSPECT?
PECT is a process where you and
e healthcare team talk together
work out a personalised plan for
ntial future emergency treatment.

More than just a form

www.dgft.nhs.uk/patients-and-visitors/respect/
#ReSPECTdudloy

Launching ReSPECT
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The new Acute Medical Unit — Rainbow Unit
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Overview

Our strategy and objectives

In September 2021, our Board of Directors formally approved the new Trust strategic
plan. The strategic plan, called ‘Shaping #OurFuture’, outlines how the Trust will
operate in the new environment in which we find ourselves.

Shaping #OurFuture

The Dudley Group

A NHS Foundation Trust
<V Y Vision

’ A> Excellent health care, improved health for all
\/ @ Goals

RESPONSIBILITY ) . )

Deliver To be a Drive Build Improve
right care brilliant  |sustainability | innovative health
every time |place to work | financial and | partnerships and

and thrive | environment | in Dudley wellbeing
& & beyond
Measures of success
Care Quality Reduce the Reduce cost per Increase the Improve rate of
Commission vacancy rate | weighted activity | proportion of early detection
rating good Improve the Reduce carbon local people of cancers
or outstanding staff survey emissions employed Increase planned

Improve results Increase the | care and screening
the patient number of for the most
experience services jointly disadvantaged
survey results delivered across groups

the Black
® * Country
P ';,:\( Programmes
* Black Country system Local leadership to Research and
’ service transformation address health development,
‘ Dudley inequalities education and
/* ’ innovation
?(i Improvement
{*, Practice
a L]

Our vision is: ‘Excellent health care, improved health for all’

Our values remain: Care, Respect and Responsibility

RESFONSIBILITY

We now have five goals:

o Deliver right care every time
e Be a brilliant place to work and thrive
¢ Drive sustainability, financial and environmental
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Build innovative partnerships in Dudley and beyond
Improve health and wellbeing

Underpinning implementation of the new strategic plan are three programmes:

Black Country system service transformation including work to improve
elective and emergency services and the collaboration between the acute
trusts in the Black Country

Local leadership to address health inequalities

Research and development, education and innovation

Risks to delivering our objectives

As with any organisation, there are risks to the Trust’s ability to deliver its goals and
ensure patient safety. The Trust has to ensure it defines these risks, analyses them
and identifies how to mitigate against them, and this is key to how the Trust
manages risk.

The most significant risks are reported to board each month, along with actions to
manage them, and this information is available in the Trust’s board papers on its
website www.dgft.nhs.uk. The most recent reporting period at the time of production
of this annual report was May 2022.

In relation to achievement of goals, the Trust faced the following major risks during
the year which includes clinical and longer-term risks:

Inability to discharge patients in a timely manner to support emergency patient
flow and restoration of planned services.

NHS national level of control of work priorities within provider organisation
through National Escalation Level 4.

Increased demand and high levels of sickness in our workforce due to
COVID-19 resulting in the inability to deliver safe, effective services.
Reputational and financial damage caused through the CQC court
proceedings.

Financial viability risks caused by legislative changes in the national and local
health economy and in particular the potential implications of the ICP in
Dudley.

Failure of the IT infrastructure/cyber incident causing widespread operational
capability issues.

The Trust has clearly identified the primary risks facing the organisation, and
management and mitigation are set out in the Annual Governance Statement as well
as under sections relating to clinical, operational and financial performance.
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Incident management and Never Events

The Trust actively encourages its staff to report incidents, believing that to improve
safety it first needs to know what problems exist. This reflects the National Patient
Safety Organisation which has stated:

“Organisations that report more incidents usually have a better and more effective
safety culture. You can't learn and improve if you don't know what the problems are.”

As a Trust, we are committed to learning from incidents. This is supported by an
open culture which encourages any incident regardless of the level of harm
(including ‘near misses’) to be reported through the Trust’s electronic incident
management system, Datix.

During 2021/2022, the Weekly Meeting of Harm has continued to meet with a
multidisciplinary team to hear presentations of incidents that have been identified as
potentially requiring a higher level of investigation. The learning from these incidents
is presented at the Risk and Assurance Group once investigations are complete.

Serious incident investigation reports continue to be written by the patient safety
team, with the support of independent clinical specialists. The Trust continues to see
many investigations being closed on first review by the Clinical Commissioning
Group.

Incidents reports, which include detail of serious incidents, yellow incidents and
green incidents, are completed on a monthly basis and these are presented by a
member of the patient safety team at the divisional, directorate and specialty
governance meetings.

The Trust has not reported any Never Events during 2021/22.

How we manage our services

The overall day-to-day management of our hospitals and services is the
responsibility of the team of executive directors, under the leadership of the chief
executive and supported directly by other senior managers in various departments.

Our operational structure is formed from three divisions supported by corporate
services: Surgery, Women’s and Children; Medicine and Integrated Care; and
Clinical Support Services, and these are closely linked through patient pathways.
Each clinically led division has a management team comprising a chief of, a deputy
director of operations and a head of nursing. These, in turn, are managed by the
deputy chief operating officer who reports to the chief operating officer.

Divisions are supported by corporate services, which include communications,

estates, finance, governance, human resources, information, organisational

development, Dudley Improvement Practice, research, development and IT.
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We operate a board committee structure to ensure that we are well governed,
managed effectively and scrutinised appropriately. The Board of Directors is
responsible for formulating strategy, ensuring accountability and shaping a healthy
culture. The board meets monthly, and throughout the year it has met virtually as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Key committees include finance and performance, audit, quality and safety,
workforce and staff engagement, and Digital Trust and technology. Members of the
board also form the trustees of The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust Charity.

We continually refine our governance arrangements, ensuring that they are suitable
for the effective running of our Trust. A formal escalation framework is in operation to
ensure that key issues and concerns are escalated through the committee structure
for board attention where appropriate. In response to escalation to Incident Level 4
nationally, the Trust moved to reduced committee agendas for part of the year as a
consequence of the intense operational pressures experienced from winter, COVID-
19 and restoration of services. All committee meetings were virtual and board
meetings started to happen in person.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the services
provided by the NHS foundation trust will continue to be provided by the public
sector for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the directors have adopted the
going concern basis in preparing the accounts, following the definition of going
concern in the public sector adopted by HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual.

Dudley Clinical Hub
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Performance summary

COVID-19 has changed many areas of work during 2021/22 and the impact on
performance has been no less significant. Despite the challenges, the Trust
continues to monitor delivery of performance targets weekly via a detailed
operational performance report. During the year, Divisional Performance Reviews
have continued, albeit less frequently, whilst Trust oversight groups and committees
such as Financial Improvement Group, Finance and Performance Committee (F&P)
and Board of Directors all continue to operate, ensuring performance oversight.
During 2021/22, the Trust invested in additional performance capacity via the
recruitment and introduction of an associate director of performance who will work
with the senior operational team to strengthen performance management and
reporting as the Trust begins delivery against the challenging national new
Emergency Access Standards (EAS) and restoration and recovery targets during
2022/23.

Performance against the national targets

Elective activity remained below plan until November 2022 due to staff shortages in
theatres, largely as a result of COVID-19. This meant that the number of patients
waiting over 52 week has only just started to reduce during Q4 of 2022. Similarly the
Referral to Treatment (RTT) standard has remained steady at around 77 per cent for
several months, although this is set against a significantly higher waiting list.

Emergency Access Standards have remained under considerable pressure
throughout 2021/22. While ambulance attenders were down on pre-COVID levels,
higher numbers of walk-in patients were experienced which did cause pressure
within the ED. During winter 2021/22, high levels of attenders presenting with
Omicron also impacted on the Trust’'s Emergency Department.

Emergency Access Standards (EAS)

The Trust is required to continue to monitor timely access to emergency services.
The key standards for the Trust are the four hour wait and the 12 hour trolley wait. In
addition, and of particular concern over the last 12 months, has been the number of
over the hour ambulance handover delays and crowding within ED.
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Attenders by type

ED Arrivals by Split by Arrival Type

The four hour standard has not been achieved in any month during the year but ED
has remained one of the best performing in the West Midlands for four hours in
comparison to other trusts. The number of 12 hour breaches has remained a
significant concern throughout the period and, while numbers reduced during the
latter part of 2021 and early 2022, there has again been a rise in patients waiting
longer than we would like.

Ambulance handovers have continued to be a challenge, largely driven by hospital
flow issues resulting from COVID-19 and complex patients but more significantly in
relation to the number of patients who are in hospital but waiting for social care.
There have regularly been 15-20 per cent of acute trust beds blocked at any one
time with patients classed as a Delayed Transfer of Care (DTOC).

The new standards for ED will be monitored in shadow form from April 2022.
Referral to Treatment (RTT)

The Referral to Treatment target ensures that patients can access consultant-led
elective services within 18 weeks of referral by a GP to first treatment. This standard
is one of the main constitutional performance standards in the NHS.

The Dudley Group prides itself on being one of the consistently best performing
trusts in the delivery of RTT in the country and, despite COVID-19, we remain one of
the better performing trusts both locally and nationally. However, during 2021, we
have seen an increase in waiting times and in patients waiting over 52 weeks for
treatment due to COVID-19.

As a result of COVID-19 and the impact it had on the Trust’s ability to treat elective
patients, The Dudley Group has failed to achieve the 92 per cent standard
throughout 2020/2021. Over the whole year, the Trust achieved an average of 76.63
per cent against the target of 92 per cent, with the lowest percentages being in June
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and July 2021.

Our RTT performance had started to improve during the autumn of 2021; however,
the second wave of COVID-19 caused further deterioration. With social distancing
measures and restrictions in place during the pandemic, all routine elective services
had to be cancelled and the number of patients offered appointments at any given
time was significantly reduced.

Our focus now is firmly on restoration and recovery as we implement plans to fully
recover elective services as soon as possible. The Trust will fully utilise other
providers where they are available, including the independent sector, to secure full
recovery.

Cancer services
There are three main standards for cancer services:

1. Patients referred by a GP should be seen within two weeks of referral.

2. Patients diagnosed and told within 28 days of referral (28 Day Faster
Diagnosis Standard).

3. All patients diagnosed with cancer, irrespective of how they were initially
referred, should start treatment within 31 days of the diagnosis of cancer.

4. Patients referred directly by their GP to a cancer pathway who are then
subsequently diagnosed with cancer should start treatment within 62 days
of referral.

The achievement of cancer performance targets has been challenging during
2021/2022 in line with our peers, and the NHS as a whole, due to COVID-19. During
the most recent wave of COVID-19, the Trust has continued to provide a cancer two
week referral service. Cancer services have been adversely impacted by the need
for social distancing which has reduced capacity to see patients. In addition, there
has been a significant amount of staff absence which has further reduced capacity to
see and treat patients. Breast and breast symptomatic services have been
particularly affected.

Furthermore, the impact of COVID-19 on diagnostic services has also delayed
treatment.

Going forward, we have brought as many clinics as possible back in line with pre-
COVID templates allowing more patients to be seen in Rapid Access slots and we
are regularly booking below day 14 for most tumour sites. We are working with the
sites continually to improve waiting times and drive down the number of patients who
have breached their 62 day target. Within this work we will aim to improve the
pathways to achieve a higher volume of 62 day targets whilst still reducing the
backlog currently on the patient tracking list (PTL).
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Diagnostic performance

The constitutional performance standard for diagnostics measures the percentage of
patients able to access diagnostic tests within six weeks. Achievement against this
target has been challenging since April 2020 due to the need to prioritise inpatient,
urgent and long waiting tests. The introduction of the Community Diagnostic Centre
(CDC) at the Trust in August 2021 has been a huge support to improving patient
waiting times for diagnostic tests. The introduction of the CDC has resulted in the
number of patients waiting for an imaging diagnostic test reduce from 840 in
February 2021 to 198 in January 2022. Overall, the number of people waiting over
six weeks for a diagnostic test across the entire Trust was at 1,735 as at the end of
January 2022.

Patient flow

Patient flow remains one of the biggest challenges for the organisation. The opening
of the new Rainbow Unit (Acute Medical Unit) and Same Day Emergency Care
(SDEC) service represented significant investment in the urgent and emergency care
pathway. The unit has seen increasing numbers of patients treated via SDEC
services and the new AMU unit is treating patients quickly and effectively with short
lengths of stay, rather than admitting patients into a ward.

Delayed Transfer of Care (DTOC) remain a significant issue with over 100 patients
per day in the Trust found to be medically fit for discharge but waiting for social care
placement. This has meant that on some days DTOCs have taken up to 20 per cent
of the Trust’s entire bed stock.

The Trust has continued to promote the Home for Lunch discharge strategy as the
main driver for early hospital discharge and it is now looking at refining ward and
board round processes. Visits from the national ECIST (Emergency Care
Improvement Support Team) and a local MADE event (Multi Agency Discharge
Event) comprising Trust, West Midlands Ambulance Service, Local Authority and
CCG (Clinical Commissioning Group) colleagues have been held to focus staff
awareness around early and effective discharge planning which is needed to
promote flow.

Equality of service delivery

The Trust delivers services for all who need it or are referred to our care and is
working with primary care providers to ensure that referrals have due regard for
equality.

There are also a number of provisions made within the Trust.

* A robust interpreting and translation service meets community languages needs as
well as British Sign Language provision.
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* As part of our Equality, Diversity and Inclusion action plans, the Trust is committed
to ensuring its workforce reflects the population it serves and is thereby able to meet
the diverse needs of service users.

» The Dudley Group has been awarded Disability Confident Leader Status reflecting
the commitment to employing disabled staff across the Trust, enhancing the ability to
meet the needs of disabled service users.

* The Trust has made a commitment to the Accessible Information Standard, which
means the Trust is able to meet any request from service users requiring information
in an alternative format.

» The Chaplaincy Department employs faith-based staff and volunteers to support
service users from different faiths or none.

* The learning disability team helps improve the Trust’s provision for patients with
learning disabilities and their families, making it easier for patients with learning
disabilities to access hospital services.

+ Equality monitoring data of service users is collected which informs the Trust of
uptake of services including screening services.

* A calendar of festivals and events celebrate diversity and support awareness and
understanding of the diverse communities and groups served.

Patient experience indicators

The NHS Friends and Family Test (FFT) scores remain a national focus, provide
valuable benchmarking information and drive improvement to the patient experience.
The FFT is firmly embedded within the Trust with all patients given the opportunity to
complete this during or after each episode of care and treatment in all areas of the
organisation. Feedback is captured through a variety of methods (SMS, tablet,

paper, online). The FFT is presented as the percentage of respondents that rate their
experience very good/good and the percentage of respondents that rate their
experience poor/very poor.

During 2021/2022, 44,507 people responded to the Friends and Family Test. In
2022, the number of patients rating their overall experience of their care and
treatment as ‘very good/good’ was 80 per cent in comparison to 82 per cent in
2020/2021. The number of people rating their experience as ‘very poor/poor’ has
increased to seven per cent in comparison to five per cent in 2020/2021. The
Outpatient Department received the highest number of responses at 12,357. The
Inpatient Department received the highest number of positive scores with 88 per cent
of patients rating their overall experience of our services as ‘very good/good’ in
2021/2022.

Friends and Family Test percentage very good/good scores are monitored through
the divisional updates at the Patient Experience Group for assurance and to highlight
action taken to improve scores at ward/department level where required. Patients’
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responses and feedback are shared with teams for learning and service
improvement, comments and scores are sent to all members of staff and discussed
in the daily huddles and You Said We Have actions are reported to the patient
experience team.

In order to improve response rates, we have distributed posters throughout the
hospital displaying the links to the FFT and we have seen an increase in the number
of patients completing the survey online. We produced FFT stickers with online
links/QR codes for the Maternity Department to put on patients’ antenatal and
postnatal notes to improve response rates and to ensure that the FFT is accessible
to all, as SMS text messaging is not available within the service. Posters and paper
surveys have been updated in the Antenatal Department.

Infection prevention and control

We take infection prevention and control extremely seriously and monitor
performance against a range of infections including Clostridium difficile (CDI),
Meticillin Resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA), Meticillin sensitive
Staphylococcus aureus (MSSA), pseudomonas aeruginosa and Escherichia coli
blood stream infections.

The Trust adopts a zero tolerance of MRSA bacteraemias and reported one MRSA
bacteraemia for the period 2021/22.

For 2021/22, the Trust reported 40 confirmed cases of hospital onset CDI against a
threshold of 40. Of these cases, 18 were attributed to the Trust.

All bacteraemias are reviewed, and any learning is disseminated throughout the
Trust via team huddles, meetings and service improvement plans.

Quality priorities

We had two quality priorities for 2021/22. Progress against the achievement of these
has been negatively impacted on because of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
unprecedented capacity and workload experienced.

Ouir first priority centred around patient experience. This included improving the way
we communicate and engage with patients. Through monthly patient audits we
achieved 98.17 per cent compliance against patients reporting that staff members
introduced themselves. The target was 95 per cent. We achieved 90.5 per cent
compliance against patients reporting that they knew what was going to happen to
them each day (target 95 per cent). While most departments and teams booked
Listening into Action events and several teams had already hosted these events,
several were postponed due to lack of patient attendance or the cancellation of non-
essential meetings due the pandemic. A policy has been produced which provides a
framework that details the recruitment, support and governance arrangements in
place to ensure patient voice volunteers and patient safety partners are inducted and
supported to be effective in their roles.

23



A second strand to this priority involved ensuring all complaints are responded to in
accordance with the Trust’'s Complaints and Concerns Policy. There was initial
improvement during Quarter 1 2021-2022, but this declined since for Quarters 2 and
3 due to challenges from the COVID-19 pandemic with staff absences within
services and staff being required to work clinically to support colleagues, resulting in
decreased administration time. The restrictions placed on visiting also impacted the
ability to hold local complaints resolution meetings. Quarters 2 and 3 2021-2022 also
received the highest number of new complaints and this added a further challenge to
services to investigate and respond in a timely manner. The Complaints Department
continues work with individual staff, teams and divisions, and meets each week to
discuss any matters due to breach. In respect of learning, services continue to share
complaints anonymously not only with those immediately involved but also on a
wider basis during mandatory training sessions, ward and departmental meetings, so
that staff can reflect, learn and make improvements to practice if appropriate.

Our second quality priority concerned discharge management. Our aim was to see
30 per cent of discharges to have left their bedded area by 12 noon, and 80 per cent
by 5pm. Despite seeing some overall improvements in discharges before midday,
the Trust did not achieve either of the targets.

Ockenden Report

At the end of March 2022, Donna Ockenden published her final report into the
independent review of maternity services at The Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital
NHS Trust. The first report, published in December 2020, outlined the Local Actions
for Learning (LAfL) and Immediate and Essential Actions (IEAs) to be implemented
at Shrewsbury and actions for the wider maternity system in England.

Significant progress has been made in The Dudley Group against the Ockenden
IEAs. The initial feedback from the Ockenden assurance process was received from
NHS England/Improvement by the Trust and the Local Maternity and Neonatal
System at the end of October 2021 and our board has received several updates on
progress throughout.

There is a robust framework in place to oversee the further improvements required
by the second report and to ensure we have robust evidence and assurance.

A suite of role specific mandatory training is in place to address the requirements of
Maternity Incentive scheme CNST, Saving Babies Lives and the ongoing
requirements of the Ockenden recommendations.

Workforce is key to the safety of women in our care and further investment has been
made to strengthen our medical workforce, as well as specialist roles within the
midwifery workforce to provide a safe and high-quality service as well as to meet the
requirements of Ockenden. A fetal monitoring lead obstetrician is now in post and
engaging with the review of incidents and subsequent learning.
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Monthly Ockenden assurance meetings are held in the Maternity Department,
attended by the multidisciplinary team, each with allocated responsibility for
providing assurance of progress on each IEA.

The Maternity Electronic Patient Record allows rapid access to data/audits, and the
ability to ensure appropriate conversations with women are being
prompted/documented. We have maternity and neonatal safety champions in place
and they undertake regular visits to all teams and services.

Financial performance

The continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in an extension of the
simplified financial regime into 21/22, ensuring that resources could be focused on
managing the crisis.

A greater emphasis on collaborative working was driven by allocating funds across
the wider Black Country and West Birmingham system, allowing constituent
organisational partners to work together to determine the best use of resources.

Relationships with other external systems were streamlined via block contract sums
that were nationally mandated, including adequate uplifts for inflation.

The Black Country and West Birmingham system set a breakeven plan for the year
and this was mirrored in each individual organisation. A risk share remained in place
to help alleviate specific financial pressures for any partner. Additional income was
also earned by the system linked to the recovery of planned activity and this was
distributed to cover the increased costs of delivery.

The COVID-19 vaccination programme remained in place throughout the year and
The Dudley Group continued its role as lead employer for the system. This included
the hosting of an employment bureau and the sourcing of staff for vaccination
centres, including the rollout to different age groups and evolution of the booster
programme.

Financial management across the system resulted in the identification of a likely
surplus of c£22m, representing an improved financial outturn against the breakeven
plan. This was shared between partners resulting in a final surplus position of
£3.816m for The Dudley Group. This performance represents the third consecutive
year of achieving a positive financial outcome. The system position shows an overall
surplus of £21.694m for the year.

The numbers presented in the following table relate to The Dudley Group financial
performance, not including the charity.
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2021-22 2020-21
PLAN ACTUAL | VARIANCE PLAN ACTUAL
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
INCOME £493,703 | £518,285 | £24,582 £419,964 | £450,449
PAY -£313,307 | -£331,735 | -£18,428 -£261,884 | -£281,534
NON PAY -£155,024 | -£159,218 | -£4,194 -£136,922 | -£144,392
EBITDA £25372 |  £27,332|  £1,960 £21,158 | £24,523
DEPRECIATION & FINANCE COSTS* | -£25372 |  -£25,575 -£203 -£23,199 | -£22,822
NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) £0 £1,757 | £1,757 -£2,041|  £1,701
| Technical Adjustments | £0]  £2,059| £2,059] | £41]  -£1,502 |
| FINAL SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) | £0|  £3816] £35816] | -£2,000 | £199 |

* Figure includes impairment of £1.877m in 21/22
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The year in review

April 2021

In a fitting start to a new year in the life of our Trust, we teamed up with a local
supermarket in a ‘Seeds of Hope’ initiative. Morrisons, Kingswinford donated packets
of sunflower seeds to the children’s ward at Russells Hall Hospital. Children were
given the seeds when they went home from hospital to signify new beginnings. In
another green move, our facilities management services provider Mitie signed a
contract with an energy supplier to purchase electricity from renewable resources for
our Trust.

May

There were celebrations for Eid, and the International Day of the Midwife. Our
Ophthalmology Department featured on Central TV news, as our new glaucoma
pathway led to the shortest waiting lists we have ever had. We held our annual
awards ceremony, Committed to Excellence, virtually, for the very first time,
honouring the work of exceptional staff.

June

Assistant therapy practitioner Lorraine Allchurch won a national ‘Rising Star’ Award.
Lorraine, our lead allied health professional (AHP) support worker at the Trust,
picked up the award at the virtual Advancing Healthcare Awards 2021. We
welcomed two new associate non-executive directors, Dr Gurjit Bhogal and Dr
Thuvarahan Amuthalingam. We marked Sustainability Month with a number of
initiatives including meat free Mondays, signing up to green pledges, walks,
webinars and providing staff with reusable bamboo cutlery.

July

In July, we celebrated the 73" birthday of the NHS, joining in with the national Big
Tea event, and free activities — a mindfulness webinar, virtual chat with our chief
people officer, a competition to win a salsa lesson taken by one of our non-executive
directors, and an outdoor gym session. This month also saw the launch of our
Women'’s Staff Network.

August

A former nurse used thousands of sparkling diamantes to create an NHS superhero
artwork as a tribute to the hard work of staff caring for patients, including herself,
during COVID-19. We partnered with Mary Stevens Hospice on a project called ‘No
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Barriers Here’, funded by NHS Charities Together, to improve care at the end of life
for different cultures and communities within the Black Country.

September

In a major rollout, our Maternity Department went digital with Electronic Patient
Records. Taking another step into the future of healthcare, our Community
Diagnostics Centre at Corbett and Guest outpatient centres went into action. For
patients, this means shorter waits, more convenient locations that are COVID secure
and with easier parking, and a better experience all round.

October

This was a month of months — we marked both Black History Month and Freedom to
Speak Up Month. Our new strategic plan was launched, with our vision ‘Excellent
health care, improved health for all’. It combines our desire to deliver excellent care
for our patients but also recognises the impact that we have on the health of the
wider population. A national network set up by Dr Janine Barnes MBE, our neurology
specialist pharmacist, won a national award. The network educates and upskills
pharmacists and other healthcare professionals in the management of Parkinson's.

November

Our 2022 charity calendars went on sale. These glossy, wall-hanging calendars
feature photos taken by our staff and entered into a competition, with the winners
chosen by our executive directors. This year our theme was ‘animals’ and profits go
to the Trust charity. It was also World Antibiotic Awareness Week, with our pharmacy
team increasing awareness of global antimicrobial resistance and encouraging best
practices among the general public and health workers.

December

This was a busy month with lots of festive events including a Christmas Market for
staff, featuring external stallholders and hot food. Midlands Today, the local BBC TV
news, spoke to staff about pressures and the importance of vaccines, while the Sun
newspaper featured the work of our Children’s Department to make Christmas
special for young patients, as part of their Joy to the Wards Appeal in conjunction
with NHS Charities Together. We achieved the bronze award in the Defence
Employer Recognition Scheme.

January 2022

Chief nurse Mary Sexton was interviewed on BBC Radio WM about the effect of
COVID-19 on staffing numbers, and how our staff were working tirelessly in the face
of the pandemic. Deputy chief nurse Jo Wakeman made a video for Dudley Public
Health, talking from personal experience about the importance of having the COVID-
19 vaccine to reduce the impact of the virus if you caught it. Away from the
pandemic, we signed the Power of Youth Charter, showing our dedication to
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empowering young people to make positive differences on issues that affect their
lives, communities, and the broader society.

February

Sky News aired a moving film about life in the Trust as we faced COVID-19, winter
pressures and the push to recover services. We had welcomed an award-winning
film maker who spent a week with us, following and speaking to staff and patients.
We paid tribute to a much-valued section of our workforce on Overseas Workers
Day, and were treated to a lion dance from the Chinese Festival Committee
Birmingham, who entertained us with a loud and colourful display for Chinese New
Year.

March

The chair of NHS England, Richard Meddings, went to our Community Diagnostics
Centre at Corbett Outpatient Centre as part of a visit to the Black Country. Our first
patient started a new closed loop treatment for diabetes and says it transformed her
life. The mum-of-one, expecting her second baby, began using a self-adjusting
insulin pump system to manage Type 1 diabetes.

Chinese New Year

Dooomte—

Signed: Diane Wake
Chief Executive
Date: 16 June 2022
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Directors’ report

The Board of Directors was established and constituted to meet the legal minimum
requirements stated in the Health and Social Care (Community Health and
Standards) Act 2003 and the requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of
Corporate Governance published by Monitor.

Non-executive director (NED) appraisals for 2020/2021 were conducted by the
chairman on a one-to-one basis. The performance of each NED was assessed
against agreed objectives, specific strengths or areas for improvement, to note that
the principal corporate objectives were fully met subject to COVID-19 restrictions
which had precluded some of the opportunities to engage with staff, patients and
other stakeholders on site. The appraisal findings were considered by the Council of
Governors in July 2021.

The Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 2014 deals
with the Fit and Proper Persons Test which came into force in November 2014. We
have complied with this requirement since May 2015 both upon appointment and
with annual re-checks.

Non-executive directors can only be removed by a 75 per cent vote of the Council of
Governors following a formal investigatory process, and the taking of independent
legal advice, in accordance with guidance issued by our regulators.

We are confident that our board members do not have any interests or company
directorships which could conflict with their management responsibilities. A Register
of Directors’ Interests is held by the board secretary and is published on the Trust’s
website www.dgft.nhs.uk

As an NHS foundation trust, no political or charitable donations have been made
during 2021/2022. During the year, we were not charged interest under the Late
Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998.

As far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
auditor is unaware. The directors have taken all of the necessary steps to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information, and to establish that the auditor
is aware of that information.

Section 43(2A) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and Social Care Act
2012) requires that the income from the provision of goods and services for the
purposes of the health service in England must be greater than its income from the
provision of goods and services for any other purposes. We confirm that we have
met this requirement and that income received in 2021/2022 had no impact on our
provision of goods and services for the purposes of the health service in England.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that we have effective governance
arrangements supporting the delivery of our quality priorities. Reports on the Trust’s
progress against the established quality priorities are taken to both the board and the
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Council of Governors by the chief nurse. Further information on progress against
standards can be found on the Trust’'s website www.dgft.nhs.uk

You can find more information of how the Board of Directors has assessed itself
against the NHS Improvement well led framework through the Annual Governance
Statement on pages 100 to 121.

In the following pages you will find more information about the Board of Directors in
post during the year 2021/22.

Own Bed Instead team members
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Board of directors

As at 31st March 2022

Chief

executive
Diane Wake

Chairman

Dame Yve
Buckland
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director
Julian Hobbs

Chief
operating
officer
Karen Kelly
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people
officer
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nurse
Mary Sexton
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Tom Jackson

Chief
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officer

Adam Thomas
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executive
director
Julian Atkins
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director
Catherine Holland

Non-
executive
director
Prof Gary Crowe
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executive
director

Lowell Williams
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Our Board of Directors

Dr Thuvarahan Amuthalingham — associate non-executive director

Dr Amuthalingham is a general practitioner by training.
Having completed his medical degree in London, he started
his career as a junior doctor at The Dudley Group NHS
Foundation Trust. He has since worked in the Black Country
area. He has gone on to represent his colleagues in various
roles both nationally and internationally.

Having led the Next Generation GP programme within the
Midlands, he helped cultivate the next generation of
compassionate leaders working in collaboration across
primary and secondary care. Through his work on the RCGP Midland faculty board
and as part of the Black Country and West Birmingham Training Hub, he supports
newly qualified GPs within the locality. As the deputy chair of the British Medical
Association West Midlands Regional Council, he aims to be a voice for all doctors
across all branches of practice within the region.

Both in his clinical leadership roles and as a strategy consultant, he has advised
start-ups, investors, third sector organisations, educational institutions, the NHS and
government. He is experienced in strategy and business transformation with a focus
on digital delivery. He develops key strategic alliances and cultivates collaborative
partnerships to deliver innovation.

Julian Atkins, non-executive director and deputy chair

Julian joined the Trust in January 2016 as a non-executive
director and is currently deputy chair. He has experience in
both the public and private sectors, having worked at
organisations such as Alliance & Leicester, Marks &
Spencer, Solihull Health Authority and the Thomas Cook
Group. Prior to joining the Trust, he was part of the executive
leadership team and head of human resources at Coventry
Building Society, where he worked for nearly 25 years.

Julian is a Fellow of the Institute of Financial Services and the Chartered Institute of
Personnel and Development. He is board chair of Coventry and Warwickshire
Chamber of Commerce’s subsidiary training company, a non-executive director at
ENTRUST in Leamington Spa and is a past president of the Coventry and
Warwickshire Institute of Financial Services.

Julian chairs the Charitable Funds and Workforce & Staff Engagement committees
and is a member of the Audit and Clinical Quality, Safety & Patient Experience
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committees. Julian is passionate about delivering excellent customer service through
skilled individuals and effective teams.

Dr Gurjit Bhogal — associate non-executive director

Gurjit has enjoyed a portfolio medical career across primary care,
secondary care and within elite sports medicine organisations. He is
a consultant in musculoskeletal, sport and exercise medicine
appointed to the Centre of Musculoskeletal Medicine at The Royal
Orthopaedic Hospital, Birmingham in 2015, and is an active
Sessional General Practitioner within the West Midlands. He sees
physical activity as a vital tool that promotes health and wellbeing for
the patients he cares for.

He also works part-time for Aston Villa Football Club and was

previously on the medical panel for the England and Wales Cricket Board and
worked as a lead physician for the England Men’s Cricket Team. He was also
appointed as the chief medical officer for the 2017 ICC Champions Trophy and the
highly successful 2019 Cricket World Cup, where he developed his strategic,
governance and leadership skills.

He is a school governor of a primary school in Solihull and trustee of the charity
‘Mencap Heart of England’.

Dame Yve Buckland, chairman

Dame Yve Buckland joined us as interim chair of the Dudley
Group in March 2019 and was asked by the governors to take
up the role formally in December 2020.

She started her professional life as an archivist, having
completed a history degree and archives training at Leeds and
Liverpool universities. She went on to have a series of
managerial roles in local government, working for Cheshire and Birmingham
councils, and in the early 1990s was appointed city secretary by Nottingham City
Council, the first female chief officer in the council.

In 2000, Yve was appointed by the government to a national role, to set up the
Health Development Agency, a body which put together the evidence base for
tackling key public health problems such as childhood obesity and smoking-related
diseases. She was awarded a DBE for her work in this area.

Yve went on to become chair of the NHS Institute for Innovation and Improvement
based at Warwick University, a post she held from 2005 to 2010 and also, between
2005 and 2015, was chair of the Consumer Council for Water. She was chair of the
Royal Orthopaedic Hospital until January 2021 and a trustee at the Tessa Jowell
Foundation until February 2022.
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Yve is also currently the chairman designate of Birmingham and Solihull Integrated Care
System, and Pro-Chancellor of Aston University.

Gary Crowe, non-executive director

Gary was most recently a university professor of innovation
leadership at Keele University Management School. He
previously held senior commercial positions in strategy,
business transformation and risk and financial management as
a director and management consultant in the financial services O
sector. '

Gary holds a number of external board appointments,
and has served as an independent non-executive director with another NHS
trust since 2015. He is a qualified chartered banker and fellow of a number of
professional organisations and learned societies.

James Fleet, chief people officer

James joined the Trust as interim director of strategy and
transformation in January 2020 and became our chief people
officer in March 2020. He has over 20 years’ experience in
designing, delivering and leading major healthcare
improvement. This has included work on transformation
strategies and interventions for a wide range of NHS m ‘
organisations and systems across the UK. (A uﬁ“‘“""ﬁﬂ)ﬁ

James is an experienced healthcare director and HR/OD leader,

having held leadership roles within the NHS, before taking the role as director for a
leading healthcare advisory service. Most recently James co-founded Four Eyes
Insight Ltd, where he was the executive lead for their national team of workforce and
clinical transformation specialists, supporting NHS organisations to optimise clinical
and workforce capacity.

James has a robust knowledge and experience of the regulatory framework, having
worked closely with the regulatory bodies at national and regional levels.

A Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development, James has
worked with a wide range of NHS executive teams and boards, to advise and guide
them in developing and implementing far-reaching strategic change and
improvement across clinical, quality, performance and workforce measures. James
is passionate about harnessing clinical engagement, organisational development
and workforce transformation, as key levers for sustainable change within providers
and wider systems.

James also led a national two-year clinical productivity programme with NHS
England/Improvement, which involved more than 100 NHS provider trusts.
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Julian Hobbs, medical director ) o

Julian joined the Trust from Royal Liverpool where he had been
deputy medical director. Julian has also been deputy medical
director and lead for mortality for Cheshire and Merseyside area
team at NHS England.

Wl

h
£\

Julian is a consultant cardiologist by background and has worked
at Liverpool Heart and Chest Hospital alongside his current roles.
He has had extensive experience in medical management roles for several years.
Julian undertook his research at Manchester Royal Infirmary with support from the
British Heart Foundation. He is a keen sportsman and beekeeper.

Jonathan Hodgkin, non-executive director

Jonathan is an economist by training and has extensive
experience of working at the interface of the public and private
sectors as a consultant, regulator and company director in the
utilities sector.

He has held many director positions throughout his career. As a
business consultant Jonathan has advised governments,
regulators and companies around the world on industry restructuring, strategy and
regulation.

Catherine Holland, non-executive director

Catherine is a writer, speaker, coach/mentor and facilitator,
developing the practice of senior leaders. A member of the Golden
Egg Academy, she is currently writing children’s books, and is chair
of the Icelandic Horse Society of Great Britain.

Catherine is an associate consultant with Amara Collaboration, a
contributing author to Street Smart Awareness and Inquiry in Action,
and co-designer and facilitator in transformational leadership development retreats.

A former social worker and trainer and assistant director in social services, Catherine
worked for 14 years in the Probation Service, first as a director for corporate services
and later as chief executive of Staffordshire and West Midlands Probation Trust, the
second largest probation trust in the UK.

Catherine designed and led West Midlands Probation through a successful
performance and culture turnaround programme, and project managed the merger
with Staffordshire Probation, the new trust going on to be recognised for excellence
and awarded four stars by the British Quality Foundation.
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Catherine led SWM Probation Trust through extensive and challenging changes
brought about by the government’s Transforming Rehabilitation programme,
becoming chief executive of Staffordshire and West Midlands CRC, and later the
newly formed Reducing Reoffending Partnership.

Liz Hughes MBE, non-executive director

The Dudley Group welcomed Liz to its board in December 2019.
Liz is deputy medical director for Health Education England and
a consultant in chemical pathology and metabolic medicine at
Sandwell and West Birmingham Hospitals NHS Trust and
honorary professor at the University of Birmingham, University of
Warwick and University of Aston and visiting professor at
Worcester University.

Professor Hughes established the physician associate role in the NHS, a role that
many hospitals now have within their workforce, securing the first ever non-medical
faculty at the Royal College of Physicians. She is proud that when it first began in
2015 there were 183 and now there are nearly 3,000 physician associates employed
in the NHS.

Medical education and training is a passion for Professor Hughes who has also
established a GP training scheme with the Chinese government and developed
speciality medical training within the Middle East.

Liz is a national expert in the treatment of inherited lipid disorders and is one of the
founder members of the national charity HEARTUK with which she has worked
extensively with multi professional healthcare professionals and patients.

In 2016, the aviation profession honoured Liz for her contribution towards training
doctors in aerospace-related medicine. She was the winner of the Improving Safety
in Medicines Management category in the Patient Safety Awards 2013. She was
awarded an MBE for services to healthcare education and training in 2020.

She has held a number of national roles including chair of Academic Careers and
Research Evidence and is HEE's disability champion.

Tom Jackson, finance director

Tom is a career NHS finance professional with 30 years’ service.
For the last 13 years he has operated at board level in a range of
organisations including community, acute, primary care and
commissioning.

A Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance, Tom is £
motivated by adding value and transformation to his finance leadership role.
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Karen Kelly, chief operating officer

Karen joined us as chief operation officer (COO) in January 2018
from Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust where she held the
post of executive director of operations.

A graduate of Keele University, Karen qualified as a nurse in 1993
and worked for more than 23 years at the University Hospital of
North Staffordshire where she held a variety of roles including the first matron role
for Urgent and Emergency Care before moving into managing the Directorate of
Emergency Care.

Prior to joining us as a COO, Karen had been involved in overseeing a range of
large-scale service developments and improvement projects. She became part of the
transformation team tasked with turning around Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation
Trust — becoming head of nursing there in 2010. Following this, she held the post of
medical nurse director, followed by deputy director of operations at The Royal
Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospital Trust.

Karen is passionate about leadership development and working alongside people to
promote quality of care being delivered that ensures our patients are safe.

Vij Randeniya, non-executive director

Vij is an experienced non-executive director within the health
service. He is deputy chairman of Birmingham Women'’s and
Children’s NHS Foundation Trust and sits as the vice chair on the
governing body of Aston University. He is also the chair for one of
DEFRA’s committees for the Environment Agency. Vij is a former
trustee and vice chair of the Royal Society for Public Health and
former chief fire officer for West Midlands Fire Service. Vij has
substantial experience of large-scale project management, leadership and change
management. Vij was awarded the OBE in 2006.

Mary Sexton, chief nurse

Mary joined the Trust as interim chief nurse in January 2019 and
became substantive in November 2019. An experienced
corporate lead for nursing, quality and governance, she brought
with her more than 15 years’ experience at executive level.

Mary is an experienced nurse leader, with a wealth of
experience in providing robust oversight of the nursing,
midwifery and Allied Health Professional workforce resulting in an improved patient

39



and staff experience. She has extensive experience in service transformation and
professional standards as well as the delivery of compliance with regulatory
standards and effective governance to support learning.

Mary, who began her career as a nurse at East Surrey Hospital in 1983, has worked
in a variety of settings including acute, community and mental health at local and
regional level.

In addition to her chief nurse role Mary is the Trust’s director of infection prevention
and control and our executive lead for safeguarding and is our maternity safety
champion.

Adam Thomas, chief information officer

Adam rejoined the Trust in 2009 and brings more than 15 years
of NHS experience in clinical and senior management positions
to his executive role.

A graduate of Aston University, Adam qualified as a pharmacist
and proceeded to undertake postgraduate qualifications in
clinical pharmacy, independent prescribing and digital healthcare
leadership. He worked in medical oncology at The Dudley Group
and brings a special clinical interest in improving cancer outcomes for the Black
Country. He is also a registered IT professional, holding a Fellowship of the British
Chartered Institute for IT professionals. Adam is currently undertaking a Masters
degree in Digital Health Leadership, focussing on how intelligence can address
population health inequality.

He is established as a digital leader within the region and a strong advocate for
collaborative connected care systems. He continues to support strategic agendas as
well as quality improvement. Adam is the provider collaborative board lead for digital,
data and technology. He speaks at a national level on digital leadership, as well as
digital-data strategy in health and care.

Diane Wake, chief executive

A nurse by background, Diane has worked in the NHS for 38 >,
years. She has been a chief executive in the NHS for 10 years. 4
She joined The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust as chief
executive in April 2017.

Diane trained as a nurse between 1984-1987 and has an %L\
extensive background in nursing, occupying senior leadership
positions in surgical specialities of urology, colorectal, vascular and breast.
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Diane has a wealth of experience in both clinical practice and leadership roles. She
was previously chief executive at Barnsley Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust from
2013 to 2017 and interim chief executive at Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen
University Hospitals NHS Trust, where she also worked as chief operating officer
and executive nurse from 2007.

Diane’s experience made her an ideal candidate to become a reviewer as part of the
Keogh Trusts in 2013 and then part of the CQC inspection process, chairing CQC
inspections in East Kent, University Hospitals North Midlands, BARTS and Leeds
Teaching Hospitals.

Diane has a passion for patient safety and high-quality care and has knowledge and
expertise in implementing robust governance processes.

She is committed to system working both within place and at Integrated Care System
level. She is the SRO (senior responsible officer) for the ICS leading on cancer,
elective and diagnostics. Diane is also the SRO for provider collaborative across the
Black Country system where collaboration and partnership working has never been
stronger.

Lowell Williams, non-executive director

Lowell was the chief executive officer of Dudley College of
Technology from 2008-2019 and led the college to an Ofsted
Outstanding rating in the 2017 inspection. In January 2018, he
was named as one of seven appointments to the government’s
advisory group, the National Leaders of Further Education,
which is made up of principals from colleges who have been
rated good or outstanding. Lowell led the creation of Dudley’s
Academies Trust.
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Board of Directors’ attendance

Board
Position Commencing End ::?:l:ic?fnce

out of 11*
Chief executive Diane Wake 03/04/17 10
Director of finance Tom Jackson 01/02/18 11
Chief operating officer Karen Kelly 02/01/18 9
Medical director Dr Julian Hobbs 02/10/17 9
Chief nurse Mary Sexton 29/11/19 10
Chief people officer James Fleet 10/03/20 10
e T gy Katherine Sheerin ~ 07/07/20  30/11/21 7/7
Chief information officer Adam Thomas™** 01/09/19 11
Trust secretary Liam Nevin** 19/08/19 31/10/21 6/6
Chairman Dame Yve Buckland 20/11/20 31/05/23 10
Non-executive director Prof Liz Hughes 15/11/19 15/11/22 10
Non-executive director Julian Atkins 04/01/16 31/05/23 11
Non-executive director Catherine Holland 01/09/18 31/08/24 10
Non-executive director Lowell Williams 01/12/19 31/03/23 9
Non-executive director Prof Gary Crowe 01/07/19 01/07/22 10
Non-executive director Vij Randeniya 20/11/20 31/03/24 11
Non-executive director Jonathan Hodgkin ~ 01/04/18 31/03/24 8
fissociate non-executive m‘ﬁﬁfﬁ]am 13/0521  12/05/23 9/10
FESEENS MEN-EEITE Gurjit Bhogal™*  13/05/21  12/05/23 10/10

director

*There was no meeting held in August 2021

**non voting

***Became voting effective from 01/01/22

****associate non-executive directors are non voting

Notice periods — the notice period for all executive directors is three months. Non-executive
directors do not have a notice period.
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Patient experience

Complaints handling

There was an increase in complaints activity from 2020/21 (711) to 2021/2022 (935),
an increase of 31.5 per cent. There was an increase of 4.86 per cent for the number
of complaints received from 2019/2020 to 2020/2021 and therefore 31.5 per cent is
much higher than anticipated. The COVID-19 pandemic impacted on the number of
complaints received during 2020/21. Complainants delayed raising complaints during
the first, second and third waves of COVID-19, and there were later increased
concerns about visiting and waits for appointments and procedures affected by
COVID-19 and the recovery of services.

The focus remains on responsiveness, engaging with users and proactively
encouraging patients and their families to give feedback.

The Trust received 3,715 informal concerns and comments to the Patient Advice and
Liaison Service (PALS) in 2021/2022, which is an increase from the previous year
(2020/21) figure of 3,362. This is an increase of 353 cases (10.5 per cent). This is a
reflection on the restrictions to visiting to the Trust during the COVID-19 pandemic
and, again, issues with the recovery of services and delay in appointments and
procedures. Relatives were contacting PALS to assist in communicating with their
loved ones as an inpatient.

The Trust has made several changes and improvements in response to patient
complaints. Complaints are reviewed monthly to identify themes and trends across
the Trust. These are then shared with the divisions. Improvement actions and
learning is put into practice and reported to the Patient Experience Group, the
Quality and Safety Committee and the Board of Directors.

Patient panels/focus groups

We have hosted a number of virtual patient panels and supported several
departments and teams to deliver Listening into Action events throughout the year to
capture people’s views and experiences on what we did well and what we could
improve to help us shape future service planning and development.

Patient experience champions

We have implemented the Patient Experience Champions role within the Trust and
teams have identified a Patient Experience Champion for their area. The champions
will promote patient experience within their areas to help to drive Trust-wide
improvements, share good practice and provide the best patient experience and
care.
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Patient Voice Volunteers

In partnership with the Trust’s patient safety team, we have developed a framework
for the implementation of our new Patient Voice Volunteers (PVVs) to use their
experiences of using services to inform and influence the delivery, planning and
quality of services we provide.

Patient Experience Strategy

The Patient Experience Strategy 2021-2023 is a two-year plan which builds on the
work we have been undertaking with our patients, their relatives and carers. We are
committed to actively engaging and involving patients, their relatives and carers to
listen and act on the information we receive. This strategy will promote working
together and will set out how we will do this to ensure maximum involvement and
engagement. The aim of the strategy is to ensure that all patients, relatives, carers
and visitors have a positive experience in our care, ensuring their emotional and
physical needs and expectations are met.

Experience of Care Week

We celebrated Experience of Care Week 2021, which is an annual event that
celebrates healthcare staff impacting patient experience every day. With the support
of NHS England and NHS Improvement, it offered us the chance to celebrate the
work that’s happening to improve experiences of care with our staff, patients and
their families and carers. Throughout the week we shared feedback from our patients
to highlight the importance of what matters most to patients, and to celebrate
successes to demonstrate the great work that our staff do every day to ensure the
best patient experience.

Staying Connected

We set up the Staying Connected initiative which allowed relatives to send ‘a letter to
a loved one’ and ‘virtual flowers’ to patients on the wards while there were
restrictions on visiting. Staying Connected posters are displayed on the Patient
Experience boards throughout the Trust and have been promoted through the Trust's
internal communications for staff and on the external website for patients to be able
to stay in contact with their loved one during the pandemic.

Training

We have continued to deliver customer care training to newly qualified nurses and
other staff within the Trust to raise the profile of patient experience and to highlight
the importance of what matters most to patients.
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Local survey development

We have designed and facilitated a number of local surveys via online links and QR
codes to improve the accessibility of giving feedback to allow patients to provide
feedback on their experience of services. These are promoted on the new Patient
Experience boards and tablets.

Encouraging patient feedback and sharing success

Feedback is received via a number of mechanisms that have been designed to
enhance the patient experience and improve learning, including complaints, PALS,
national and local surveys, focus groups, Listening into Action events and the
Friends and Family Test. Throughout 2021/2022, we have continued to build on our
‘What Matters To You’ campaign across the Trust and via social media channels.
This campaign aims to raise the profile of patient experience across the Trust,
capture feedback and share successes.

Stakeholder relations

Integrated care

The Dudley Group is proud to join 14 other health and care organisations as part of
the Healthier Futures Integrated Care System (ICS) serving the 1.5 million people in
the Black Country and West Birmingham. Working with other key partners, people
and communities, the partnership aims to improve the health and wellbeing of local
people by working together to:

e improve the health of our population by reducing inequalities in health
outcomes and improving the quality of and access to services;

e attract more people to work in health and care in our region through new ways
of working, better career opportunities, support, and the ability to balance
work and home lives; and

e work together to build a sustainable health system that delivers safe,
accessible care and support in the right locations in order to get the greatest
value from the money we spend.

During the last 12 months, the partnership has played a key role in responding to
COVID-19 and our focus now shifts to supporting our communities, staff and the wider
system of health and care to recover from it.

Acute collaboration

The Trust has worked closely with the three other acute trusts in the Black Country
and West Birmingham on how we should collaborate to improve the services we

offer to patients. A programme of clinical change has been agreed, with a
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programme board established comprising the chairs, chief executives and lead
directors from all four organisations. System clinical leads have been appointed for
some services and these include consultants from the Trust. Clinical summits have
been held to determine ways to improve clinical outcomes, effectiveness and
accessibility of services with active engagement from Trust staff.

Black Country Pathology Services (BCPS)

BCPS comprises the four pathology laboratories in the Black Country for the
sustainability and transformation partnership (STP). It provides the pathology
services for the acute hospitals and also local GPs. Some of the laboratories offer
specialist services to the wider NHS and also work on research studies.

Black Country & West Birmingham STP Cancer Board

The Black Country and West Birmingham STP Cancer Board is established to
drive delivery of the National Cancer Strategy through aligning commissioning
responsibilities across the cancer pathway and enabling collaborative working
across providers.

It provides a critical link between the Black Country and West Birmingham STP
and West Midlands Cancer Alliance (WMCA) and will ensure that emerging
cancer plans are consistent with wider STP transformation programmes, as
appropriate.

The group reports to the STP Health Partnership Board. The Trust’s chief executive
Diane Wake is chair of the cancer board.

Healthier futures partnership - statement from the independent chair

This year, we have once again seen real strength in the health and care services
locally. Despite providing hospital care for more than 8,500 people affected by
COVID-19, NHS services have continued to provide other emergency and routine
care and treatment. There have been over 7.4 million primary care appointments,
over 18,000 babies born, more than 1,200 urgent heart surgeries, over 2,400
hip/knee operations and around 700,000 mental health contacts. Our partners in
West Midlands Ambulance Service have responded to over 650,000 999 and 111
calls. Many services have had to adjust the way that they have worked to respond to
demands and to keep staff and patients safe. | recognise how hard some of these
changes have been for those using services, but they have been necessary in these
unprecedented times, and they have ensured we have been able to be there for
those most at need, when they need us most.

Health and care services have been working tirelessly to keep people safe in their
own homes, promoting independence, supporting rehabilitation and preventing
emergency admissions by wrapping care around people as close to home as
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possible. These efforts have not only protected those who have been receiving this
excellent care but also protected services from becoming overwhelmed, thus
protecting others who need them too. We have over 300 care homes in the Black
Country and West Birmingham and many more carers visiting people at home. My
thanks go to all of those working in care for their fantastic work.

Our thriving community and voluntary sector have continued to work tirelessly to
provide essential companionship and support to communities to remain strong
throughout the pandemic. All four community and voluntary sector councils have
come together to form an alliance which will provide resilience to their offer of
support and allow them to grow stronger over the coming years.

With over 2.5 million doses delivered since December 2020, perhaps the greatest
example of our partnership working has been our vaccination programme. We have
opened over 100 vaccination sites, ranging from GP surgeries and pharmacies, to
community halls, places of worship and of course some of our larger centres. There
have been over 70 volunteers helping these sites to work well and many, many more
clinical leaders, vaccinators, administrative staff and others supporting the roll-out.
Recognising the hesitancy and some areas of low uptake, this year we have adopted
a grass roots level of engagement. Community COVID-19 Champions have worked
with local authority, voluntary and community groups and NHS staff to reach
communities and take a targeted approach to getting the right information to people
who need it. This network of trusted voices has undoubtedly made a difference and it
is a model which has been highlighted in several national reports as best practice. |
am pleased to see that through partnership working we are seeing those hesitant
continuing to come forward and get the lifesaving vaccine.

Another highlight for me this year has been the collective work of our people board.
The collective expertise of health and care leaders in this space has resulted in over
600 international nurses joining our system, many apprentice opportunities being
created across all our partner organisations, many training opportunities, awareness
sessions to support those with protected characteristics, a raft of health and
wellbeing support for our workforce and events put on that celebrate those working
so hard on the frontline, including a really successful event to mark Black History
Month. This is an area which will continue to gather momentum over the coming year
as we combine efforts to make the Black Country the best place to work.

This last year has affected us all in many ways and we have seen the far-reaching
terrible impact of COVID-19 on local people and communities. There is, however, a
positive that we should take from the fact that this pandemic has bought public
health issues to the forefront and the positive impact we can have when we work
better together. Across the Black Country and West Birmingham, we have some the
country’s most deprived neighbourhoods, some of the worst health outcomes and
poorer than average life expectancy. It is no coincidence that we have seen a bigger
impact than many areas from COVID-19 but it is something which we indisputably
need to work together to address. This pandemic has focused our partnership’s
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attention on the inequalities that exist for some of our communities such as those
who are black, Asian and minority ethnic. As we focus on restoring services we are
looking to ensure that we create a system which is weighted to support those most
vulnerable, improves access and reduces these inequalities. We are committed to
working with partners and communities to create an environment in which local
people can live healthier lives and to make a concerted effort to reach out to those
with poorer access to improve health outcomes and reduce the inequality gap.

Throughout the last 12 months, much like the previous year, the strong relationships
across our partnership have ensured we have been in the best position to tackle the
COVID-19 pandemic. It is true though that our partnership is only as great as the
people within it and, despite the most tumultuous of years, those working across
health and care have dug deep to keep services going and to protect those most
vulnerable. On behalf of our partnership, | want to recognise the strength,
compassion, commitment and determination of our people and say thank you to
each and every one of them for all they have done, and continue to do.

Looking to the future, we have made good progress towards establishing the future
Integrated Care Board (ICB) and our new Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) ready
for the Health and Care Bill to be enacted in July 2022. These changes will also see
the movement of West Birmingham Place to the Birmingham and Solihull Integrated
Care System. Our commitment is to work with colleagues in Bsol to make that
transition a smooth one and for there to be minimal disruption for the people in West
Birmingham. | am delighted to say that we have recruited new board members for
the ICB; these new appointments, with their strong personal motivations and
experiences, will bring different ideas, perspectives and backgrounds to create a
stronger and more creative environment, forge ever stronger partnerships across our
area and deliver a healthier future in the Black Country.

Our strength comes from the relationships we have with each other, and this will
continue to grow as our system builds new partnerships and collaboratives. Together
we exist to benefit local people, and through our continued collaboration, | am
confident we can deliver truly integrated health and care services of which everyone
in the Black Country can be justifiably proud.

Jonathan Fellows

Independent chair
Black Country and West Birmingham Healthier Futures Partnership
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Audit Committee

During the year, the Audit Committee operated in accordance with its responsibilities
as set out in its terms of reference, which included:

To agree the audit plan, audit fee and approach (including areas of risk, fraud
risk, misstatement and materiality), and receive findings of the external auditor
in relation to the financial statements, value for money opinion, the Quality
Accounts (where applicable), the report to those charged with governance
and to consider the implications of and management’s responses to their
work. More specifically, the Audit Committee considered the auditor’'s
identified significant risks as part of their plan in relation to fraud in revenue
recognition, management override of controls, and the valuation of property,
plant and equipment. It has commented on its approach and attitude to fraud
to the external auditor.

To receive and approve the Annual Report and Accounts.

To review, monitor the integrity (including the application of accounting
principles and policies) and approve the financial statements and other
reports when delegated by the board or in conjunction with the board and to
provide assurance to the board.

To review the systems which underpin the Trust’s reporting including the
establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated
governance (including budgetary control), risk management and internal
controls (including counter fraud measures) across the whole of the Trust’s
activities, both clinical and non-clinical, that support the achievement of the
Trust’s objectives, and in so doing;

To ensure that there is an effective internal audit and Local Counter Fraud
function that meets Government Internal Audit Standards and that provides
appropriate independent assurance to the Audit Committee, chief executive
and Board of Directors.

The key issues that the Audit Committee considered during the year were in relation
to the following:

Internal Audit identified some internal control weaknesses regarding audits in
the areas of payments to vaccination centre staff, nurse staffing finance and
workforce data validation, Governance Framework and the governance
arrangements within the Maternity Department. Management has
implemented action plans in respect of each of these areas and progress on
the implementation of the recommendations of Internal Audit is being
overseen by the Audit Committee.
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= Internal Audit will have finalised their reports in respect of charitable funds and
procurement, both with substantial assurance.

= The process by which the Board Assurance Framework was updated to
reflect the management of risks related to the Trust’'s new strategic goals was
considered and challenged during the year, resulting in improvements being
made to provide greater analysis and oversight of key risks.

= The progress of the Trust’s Consultant Job Planning programme against the
plan was considered during the year to receive assurance that completion
compliance was being checked and monitored.

In each case, the Audit Committee considered the information and explanations from
management, and sought assurance that actions were put in place to address the
issues raised. More detail on some of these areas is included in the Annual
Governance Statement.

The external auditor, Grant Thornton, provides a progress report to each Audit
Committee meeting set against the audit plan. The Audit Committee measures the
effectiveness of the external audit process, its timing and outputs against this plan.

The external auditor is appointed by the Council of Governors for a maximum five-
year term following a competitive tender process against a set of quality and value
for money criteria and following the recommendation of a tender committee which
includes executive, non-executive and governor representation. The most recent
tender process in 2019 resulted in the appointment of Grant Thornton who have
been the Trust’'s external auditors for the period covered by this Annual Report.

Gary Crowe - chair Non-executive director (committee chair) 6/6

Julian Atkins Non-executive director 6/6
Gurjit Bhogal Associate non-executive director 4/6
Vij Randeniya Non-executive director 5/6
Tom Jackson Director of finance 5/6
Liam Nevin Trust secretary (left Nov '21) 4/4
Julian Hobbs Medical director 3/6
Diane Wake Chief executive officer 3/6
Julie Dawes Interim trust secretary (Nov-Dec’21) 11
Helen Board Deputy trust secretary 4/6
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The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust has applied the principles of the NHS
Foundation Trust Code of Governance on a comply or explain basis. The NHS
Foundation Trust Code of Governance, most recently revised in July 2014, is based on
the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code issued in 2012.

g AR

Signed: Diane Wake
Chief Executive

Date: 16 June 2022

ODP Day in theatres
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Remuneration Report

Annual statement on remuneration (Information not subject to audit)

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee operates to review and evaluate the
board structure and expertise, as well as to agree a job description and person
specification for the appointments of the chief executive and audit executive
directors. The committee also identifies and nominates suitable candidates for such
vacancies and recommends its proposed appointment for chief executive to the
Council of Governors.

Interview panels for executive director appointments are usually made up of existing
directors, governors and external stakeholders. The committee determines the
appropriate levels of remuneration for the executive directors. Remuneration levels
are normally determined by reference to such factors as those applying in equivalent
organisations in the NHS, changes in responsibility, performance, salary increases
agreed for other NHS staff and guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

During the year, substantive appointments were made to the post of director of
strategy and partnerships.

For the purpose of the Annual Report and Accounts, the chief executive has agreed
the definition of a "senior manager” to be voting executive and non-executive
directors only.

Evaluation of the Trust board

Executive directors were set objectives and were evaluated by the chief executive as
part of the annual appraisal process and the chief executive’s own performance was
evaluated by the chairman. The non-executive directors’ objectives were set by the
chairman and their evaluations were carried out by the chairman. Objectives were
set by the senior independent director for the chairman as part of the evaluation
process.

Senior manager remuneration policy (Information not subject to audit)

Remuneration for executive directors does not include any performance-related
elements and there are no plans for this in the future. No significant financial awards
or compensation have been made to past senior managers during the reporting
period. There is no provision for the recovery of sums paid to directors or for
withholding payments of sums to senior managers. Senior managers' service
contracts do not include obligations on the Trust which could give rise to or impact
on remuneration payments for loss of office. Senior managers' individual service
contracts mirror national terms and conditions of employment and include notice
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periods and any termination arrangements. In the event of a contract being
terminated, the payment for loss of office will be determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. Payment will be based on contractual obligations.
Payment for loss of office will not be made in cases where the dismissal was for one
of the five 'fair' reasons for dismissal.

In setting the remuneration policy for senior managers, consideration was given to
the pay and conditions of employees on Agenda for Change. The Trust uses
benchmarking data to ensure all salaries, including those over £150,000, are
reasonable and provide value for money.

The Trust has not consulted with employees when determining the senior managers'
remuneration.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Information not subject to audit)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee of the board and
holds at least one meeting per year. During 2021/2022, it held three meetings and
attendance at meetings were as below. Executive directors also attend the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on occasion. The terms and conditions for
the executive directors and senior managers of the Trust are included in their
individual contracts of employment which includes notice periods and any
termination arrangements.

The Trust has an Equal Opportunity and Diversity Policy in place which was
approved in January 2020 and covers all aspects of the Trust’s business. An
Equality and Diversity Policy Statement in relation to the board was approved in
March 2021.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Attendance (/3)
membership
Jonathan Hodgkin Non-executive director 2
Catherine Holland Non-executive director 2
Vij Randeniya Non-executive director, 3

chair of committee
Lowell Williams Non-executive director 2
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Future policy tables

These set out the Trust’s policy for future remuneration of senior managers.

Executive directors

Salary and Taxable Annual Long-term Pension-related | Other
fees benefits performance | performance | benefits remuneration
related related
bonuses bonuses
Description | Basic pay Chief Executive NHS Pension Medical
for executive | and Finance Scheme Director paid
role Director have a membership: under M&D
lease car. The Chief People terms and
Finance Officer, Chief conditions.
Director also Information Medical
has home Officer, Director
electronics. The Director of remuneration
taxable benefit Governance/Bo | paid as a
associated with ard Sec and pensionable
this is reported Chief Nurse responsibility
on yearly allowance.
P11d’s. Also in receipt
of a working
The following away from
are paid a home
N/A N/A paymentin lieu | allowance.
of their pension
through agreed | Chief
Trust scheme: Operating
Chief Officer,
Executive, Director of
Chief Finance, Chief
Operations Nurse and
Officer, Director | Chief People
of Finance, Officer receive
Medical a working
Director away from
home
allowance.
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Salary and Taxable Annual Long-term Pension-related | Other
fees benefits performance | performance | benefits remuneration
related related
bonuses bonuses
How that To ensure DGFT has This enables This is
component | the Trustis historically the Trust to essential to
supports well-led and | needed to recruit sufficient | ensure a
the short all shortand | secure talent at medically
and long- long term recruitment to executive qualified
term objectives key roles from director level person can
strategic are met, the | outside of the and accords occupy the
objectives salary for region. On this with custom role of Medical
of the senior basis, the and practice in Director.
foundation managers Trust's the rest of the
trust must be Remuneration NHS.
competitive Committee has
in order to approved a N/A N/A
recruit and working away
retain from home
talented allowance,
individuals. which is
applicable to all
posts where
recruitment
from outside of
the area is
required (this is
not a VSM
allowance).
An Executive Trust Expenses This is As determined
explanation | director Policy applies determined in by national
of how that salaries are to all staff, accordance terms and
component | determined including senior with NHS condition of
operates by the managers. Pension employment.
Remunerati | Taxable Scheme
on benefits Benefits. No
Committee incurred fell additional
of the Trust, within the payments are
informed by | scope of this made.
benchmark policy. Levels
salary of benefits
derived from | reflect national
established terms and N/A N/A
national conditions for
NHS pay other staff
surveys. groups to
Executive ensure
directors are | consistency
appointed
ona
permanent
basis under
a contract of
service at an
agreed
salary.
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Salary and Taxable Annual Long-term Pension-related | Other
fees benefits performance | performance | benefits remuneration
related related
bonuses bonuses
The Fixed salary As determined As determined
maximum determined by NHS by national
that could by Pension terms and
be paid in Nominations Scheme condition of
respect of & Entitlements. employment.
that Remunerati N/A N/A N/A
component on
Committee,
in line with
NHSE/I
VSM pay
guidance.
Where The
applicable, performance
a of
description executives
of the is reviewed
framework through a
used to formal
assess annual
performanc | performance
e process,
which is led
by the Chief N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Executive
and involves
input/feedba
ck on
executive
performance
from non-
executive
directors.
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Non-executive directors

Description

How that
component
supports the short
and long-term
strategic objectives
of the foundation
trust;

An explanation of
how that
component
operates

The maximum that
could be paid in
respect of that
component

Where applicable, a
description of the
framework used to
assess performance

Fee payable

Fee for the chair, deputy chair, senior
independent director, chair of Audit
Committee, and other non-executive
directors

To ensure the Trust is well-led and all
short and long term needs met, the fee
for non-executive directors must be
competitive in order to recruit and
retain talented individuals

The chair and non-executive members
are entitled to be remunerated by the
Trust for so long as they continue to
hold office as chair or non-executive
member. They are entitled to receive
remuneration only in relation to the
period for which they hold office.
There is no entitlement to
compensation for loss of office. The
level of remuneration is determined by
the governors with due regard to the
remuneration paid in other foundation
trusts

The rate of remuneration payable to
the chairman of the Trust is £48,324
p.a. The senior independent director
and deputy chair are remunerated at
£15,230 p.a. and the chair of Audit
Committee is remunerated at £15,079
p.a.

The remuneration for the other non-
executive directors is between
£13,190 and £13,585 p.a.
Performance of non-executive
directors is assessed by the chairman
annually, and for the chairman, by the
senior independent director.
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Any additional
fees payable for
any other duties
to the foundation
trust

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Such other items that are
considered to be
remuneration in nature

Expenses incurred in the
course of their duties such as
public transport, mileage and
subsistence as determined by
Trust policy.

To ensure non-executive
directors are appropriately
compensated for those
journeys they have
undertaken on behalf of the
Trust. The policy for non-
executive director expenses
is the same as that applying
to other staff

Mileage and subsistence
allowances for non-executive
directors are set by the
Council of Governors.

N/A

N/A



Salary and pension entitlements of senior managers (audited)

a). Remuneration

Year Ended 31 March 2022

Salary * Performa Long # All Total
Expen | nce pay term Pension
se and performa | Related
payme | bonuses | ncepay | Benefits
Name and Title Not nts and
e (taxabl bonuses
e)
(bands | (to the
of nearest | (bands of | (bands of (be(l)r;ds (bil}ds
£50,§)0 £100) | £5,000) £5,000) £2.500) | £5.000)
£000 £ £000 £000 £000 £000
. . . 210 - 210 -
Diane Wake, Chief Executive 215 215
150 - 150 -
Tom Jackson, Director of Finance 155 0 155
225 - 20 - 250 -
Julian Hobbs, Medical Director 230 22.5 250
150 - 15 - 165 -
Karen Kelly, Chief Operating Officer 155 17.5 170
145 - 152.5 - 295 -
Mary Sexton, Chief Nurse 150 155 300
Andrew McMenemy, Director of
Workforce & OD A 0
145 - 32.5- 175 -
James Fleet, Chief People Officer B 150 35 180
Adam Thomas, Chief Information 30 - 12.5 -
Officer C 35 15 40 - 45
45 -
Yve Buckland, Chair 50 2,900 50-55
15 -
Julian Atkins, Non Exec 20 800 15-20
15 -
Gary Crowe, Non Exec 20 15-20
10 -
Jonathon Hodgkin, Non Exec 15 700 10-15
15 -
Catherine Holland, Non Exec 20 15-20
10 -
Elizabeth Hughes, Non Exec 15 10-15
Ian James, Non Exec D 0
Richard Miner, Non Exec E 0
10 -
Vijith Randeniya, Non Exec F 15 10-15
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Notes:-

Total remuneration includes salary, non consolidated performance-related pay, benefits in kind as well as severance payments. It does not include employer pension
contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

The Chief Executive and Director of Finance do not have any pension related benefits in 2021/22.

* Expense Payments relate to home to base travel reimbursement for Non Executive Directors
# The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20, less the contributions made by the individual.

The real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or decrease due to transfer of pension rights. This value derived does not represent an amount
that will be received by the individual. Itis a calculation that is intended to provide an estimation of the benefit being a member of the pension scheme could provide.
The pension benefit table provides further information on the pension benefits accruing to the individual.

Changes to the Board

A Andrew McMenemy left 31 March 2020 E Richard Miner left 31 March 2021
B James Fleet started 19 March 2020 F Vijith Randeniya started 7 November 2019 and became Non Executive on 18 December 2020
C Adam Thomas became a voting Director 1 January G Gurjit Bhogal started 13 May 2021

D Ian James started 1 July 2019 and left 30 October

b). Pension benefits

As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.

Real Real Total Lump Cash Real Cash Employer's
increas | increas | accrue | sumat | Equivalen | Increase | Equivalen | contributio
ein e in d pension | t Transfer | in Cash | t Transfer nto
pensio lump pensio age Value at | Equivalen | Value at | stakeholde
Name and n at. sum gt n at' related 1 April t Transfer | 31 March | r pension
Title pensio | pensio | pensio to 2021 Value 2022
n age n age nage | accrued
at 31 pension
March at 31
2022 March
2022
(bands | (bands | (bands (bands
of of of of
£2,)500 £2,)500 £5,;)OO £5.000)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Diane Wake,
Chief
Executive 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tom Jackson,
Director of 120 -
Finance 0-25 0 55-60 125 1,091 0 1,101
Julian Hobbs,
Medical 150 -
Director 0-25 0 65-70 155 1,292 34 1,346
Karen Kelly,
Chief
Operating
Officer 0-2.5 0 60 -65 | 155-160 1,324 39 1,384
Mary Sexton, 7.5 - 120 -
Chief Nurse 10 0-2.5 [55-60 125 1,095 48 1,180
James Fleet,
Chief People 10 -
Officer 2.5-5 0 15 15-20 125 9 155
Adam
Thomas,
Chief
Information
Officer 0-25|0-251] 5-10 5-10 68 7 79
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Note:-

Figures shown reflect time in office during the year and include accrued benefits and contributions in respect of full salary, which will include both
management and medical contributions.

The Chief Executive chose not to be covered by the pension arrangements during the reporting year.

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in

time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and anv contingent spouse's pension pavable from the scheme. A CETV is a pavment made bv a
Real Increase in CETV - This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. The figure excludes any increase due to inflation, and takes

account of contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common
market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
The benefits and related CETVs in the above table do not allow for a potential future adjustment arising from the McCloud judgement.

Due to the lead time required to perform calculations and prepare annual reports, the CETV figures quoted in this report for members of the NHS Pension
scheme are based on the previous discount rate and have not been recalculated.

The Trust is required to disclose the expenses paid to Directors, Non Executive Directors and Governors.
The band of the expenses paid for 2021/22 was £2,500 - £5,000 (2020/21 £2,500 - £5,000)

Fair pay disclosure (audited)

NHS foundation trusts are required to disclose the relationship between the
total remuneration of the highest paid director in their organisation and the
lower quartile, median and upper quartile remuneration of the organisation's
workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid Director in the Trust in the
financial year 2021/22 was £225,000 - £230,000 (2020/21 £215,000 -
£220,000). This is a change between years of 4.6%.

In 2020/2021 the Director occupying the position of the highest paid Director
was due to payment of pay award arrears. In 2021/2 there are no arrears paid,
hence there is a change to the Director occupying this role following an
increase in salary.

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay,
benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments. It does not include employer
pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

For employees of the Trust as a whole, the range of remuneration in
2021/2022 was from £12 to £507,000 (2020/21 £10 to £488,000). The
percentage change in average employee remuneration (based on total for all
employees on an annualised basis divided by full time equivalent number
(FTE) of employees) between years is 4.45%. This is in line with the national
pay awards issued and employee progression through pay scales.

% change for % change for
highest paid employees as a
2021/22 director whole
Salary and
allowances 4.6 4.45
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Performance pay/bonuses 0 0

The remuneration of the employee at the 25th percentile, median and 75th percentile
is set out below. The pay ratio shows the relationship between the total pay and
benefits of the highest paid director (excluding pension benefits) and each point in
the remuneration range for the trust's workforce. 10 employees received
remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director (2020/21, 8).

25th 75th
2021/22 Percentile | Median | percentile
£ £ £
Total Remuneration 8,619 25,639 40,354
Salary component of total remuneration 4,026 21,777 36,121

Pay ratio  28.1:1 94:1 6.0:1

25th 75th
2020/21 Percentile | Median | percentile
£ £ £
Total Remuneration 6,754 24,526 38,890
Salary component of total remuneration 2,093 20,901 34,692

Payratio 33.7:1 9.3:1 59:1

Staff numbers used in the calculation have increased by 746 from 2020/2021.
However, 594 of the increase relates to zero hour contracts. This relates to
increased bank staff that the Trust has taken on in its role of the employment hub for
the Covid vaccination programme across the wider Black Country area. The
magnitude of this change has resulted in a slight widening of the pay ratio between
the highest paid director and each of the 25th percentile, median and 75th percentile.
Generally, pay costs have also increased following the agreement of a 3 per cent
pay award for 2021/2022.

The Trust believes that the median pay ratio is consistent with the pay, reward and
progression policies for its employees taken as a whole.

Governor and director expenses (Information not subject to audit)

During 2021/2022, 17 individuals (2020/21, 16) were executive or non-executive
directors for the Trust. Of these, 8 (2020/21, 9) received expenses in the reporting
period and the aggregate sum of expenses paid was £4,631.15 (2020/21
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£12,108/89). In addition 27 individuals (2020/21, 25) were governors for the Trust.
Of these, one governor (2020/21, 0) received expenses in the reporting period and
the aggregate sum of expenses paid was £110.00 (2020/21, £nil).

Better Payment Code of Practice

The Better Payment Code of Practice requires the Trust to aim to pay all undisputed
invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice,
whichever is later.

The Trust significantly improved its performance against the Better Payment Code of
Practice in 2020-2021 and was able to improve further in 2021-22 as high levels of
compliance against the code was achieved in each of the 12 months.

2021/22 | 2021/22 A 2020/21 | 2020/21
Number| £000 A Number| £000

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 52,103 | 282,419 | 45,617 | 254,545
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target | 50,297 | 277,167 | 40,842 242,631
Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid

within target 97% 98% 90% 95%
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 1,347 | 47,052 1,515 | 49,756
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 1,309 | 46,534 775 | 41,378
Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid

within target 97% 99% 51% 83%

The Trust can confirm that is has complied with the cost allocation and charging
requirements set out in HM Treasury and Office of Public Sector Information
guidance. This guidance discusses how public sector organisations should charge
for information.

Dovomre—

Signed: Diane Wake
Chief Executive
Date: 15" June 2022
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Staff report

About our employees

In this section you will find a breakdown of the workforce profile, staff in post
during the year and information about how the Trust promotes equality, diversity
and inclusion and how it engages with its workforce.

The Trust employs 5,548 substantive staff by headcount as of 31t March 2022.

An analysis of workforce statistics indicates they are comparable with the local
Dudley population although a greater proportion of people from BAME background
choose to work at The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust. The higher proportion
of female workers to male is typically reflected across other combined acute and
community trusts, and across the NHS as an organisation

Staff in Post

Staff Group Headcount™® FTE*™
Add Prof Scientific and Technic 214 195.40
Additional Clinical Services 1302 1118.79
Administrative and Clerical 1151 1028.26
Allied Health Professionals 439 380.24
Healthcare Scientists 55 48.71
Medical and Dental 584 560.13
Mursing and Midwifery Registered 1803 1567.65
Grand Total 5548 4899.18

* Primary Assignment Only
** Includes Secondary Assignments



Workforce Profile 2022

<=20%ears 13.20% 1.24%
21-25 8.33% B.4AT%
26-30 14.31% 14.04%
31-35 14.33% 14.56%
36-40 11.44% 11.82%
41-45 10.65% 11.23%
46-50 11.92% 11.37%
51-55 13.26% 12.78%
56-60 9.29% 9.26%
61-65 4.12% 4.27%
66-70 0.81% 0.68%
>=71Years 0.24% 0.25%
Female 81.83% 81.45%
Male 18.17% 18.55%
Bame 19.25% 20.55%
MNot Stated 10.65% 10.80%
White 70.10% 68.66%
No 60.89% 62.67%
Not Declared 35.40% 33.29%
Prefer Not To Answer 0.07% 0.07%
Yes 3.64% 3.97%

Religious Belief

Atheism 10.61% 10.92%
Buddhism 0.31% 0.23%
Christianity 39.98% 39.33%
Hinduism 1.58% 1.57%
| do not wish to disclose my religion/belief 29.50% 28.19%
Islam 4.38% 4.52%
Jainism 0.07% 0.07%
Judaism 0.02% 0.02%
Other 5.44% 5.97%
Sikhism 1.82% 1.95%
No Response Provided 7.28% 7.23%
Bisexual 35.00% 0.40%
Gay or Lesbian 1.12% 1.14%
Heterosexual or Straight 65.12% 67.02%
Not stated (person asked but declined to provide a response) 26.06% 24.12%
Other sexual orientation not listed 0.09% 0.13%
Undecided 0.04% 0.02%
No Response Provided 7.19% 7.19%
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Trust Population compared to local population
(Dudley MBC - 2011 Census)

100.00%
90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
o m .
0.00% [ |
Asian / Asian British Black / Black British Mixed Other White
® Trust Population 11.05% 6.13% 1.62% 12.55% 68.66%
m DMBC 6.05% 1.49% 1.84% 11.85% 89.99%
Trust Population - Age Band by Ethnicity
120,005
100.00%
80.00%
60.00%
40,00%
000K . [ - [ [ - - - - - - | [ ]
<=20Years 21-25 26-30 31-35 36-40 41-25 A46-50 51-55 56-60 61-65 6670 >=71 Years
w Asian / Asian British 5.80% 11.49% 14.25% 10.77% 11.59% 13.64% 11.89% 8.04% 7.20% 75%% 18.42% 14.29%
m Black [ Black British 1.45% 5.96% B9 9.03% 6.71% 6900 380% IB1% 4.09% 253% 71.89% 0.008
u Mixed 1.45% 2198% 3.59% 223% 1.23% 0.96% 0.95% 0.56% 0.97% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Other 11.59% 12.55% 13.09% 11.63% 9.45% 13.00% 12.68% 11.00% 14.01% 20.68% 18.42% 28.57%
' White T9.71% 67.02% 60.08% 66.34% T1.0d% 65.49% TO.68% 76.50% 73.74% 69.20% 85.26% 57.14%
m Grand Total 100.00% 100.00% 100,008 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Staff numbers (audited)
Permanently Permanently
Total employed Other Total employed Other
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-22 31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2021
2021722 2021122 2021122 2020021 2020721 2020721
No. No. No. No. No. No.
Medical and dental 781 675 106 599 512 87
Ambulance staff 20 19 1 0
_______ Administration and estates 443 395 a7 1,036 957 79
____________ 2,162 1,735 427 1,484 1,337 147
g, 1,942 1,567 375 1,830 1,540 290
MNursing, midwifery and health visiting learers 4 4 0 5 5
_______ Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 676 567 109 293 234 59
_______ Healthcare science staff 53 50 3 0
Social care staff 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0
Total average numbers 6,078 5,012 1,067 5,247 4,585 662
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Staff costs (audited)

Year Ended 31 March 2022 Year Ended 31 March 2021
Total  Permanent  Other Total  Permanent  Other
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Salaries and wages 244,551 242,472 2,079 212,181 210,175 2,006
Social security costs 23,473 23,473 0 20,038 20,038 0
Apprenticeship Levy 1,206 1,206 0 1,039 1,039 0
Employer's contributions to NHS Pensions 24,984 24,984 0 22,431 22,431 0
Pension cost - employer contributions paid by NHSE on provider's behalf
(6.3%) 10,886 10,886 0 9689 9,689 0
Pension Cost - other 92 92 0 77 77 0
Termination Benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0
Temporary Staff (including agency) 26,543 0 26,543 16,079 0 16,079
NHS Charitable funds staff 101 101 0 59 59 0
Total 331,836 303,214 28,622 281,593 263,508 18,085

Sickness absence data

The detail of staff sickness / absence from work for the year are:

For the
Year
2021
Total
Days Lost 51,767
Total Staff
Years 10.7
Average Working Days Lost per
whole time equivalent (WTE) 4,834

This sickness absence data represents the calendar year ended 315t December not
the financial year.

Staff with disabilities

The Dudley Group is subscribed to the Disability Confident Scheme and was
awarded Disability Confident Leader status in April 2021. This reflects our positive
commitment to employing people with disabilities.

As part of the Trust’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Plan, we have established a
set of dynamic staff networks including one for colleagues with a disability or long-
term condition. This has a dedicated and protected budget, a nominated chair and
identified executive and non-executive sponsors. We have developed a suite of
supportive guidelines to sit alongside our overarching Equal Opportunity and
Diversity Policy. These include Supporting Colleagues with their Mental Health and
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Supporting Colleagues with Disabilities which contain a Reasonable Adjustment
passport for staff and managers to use.

Our Inclusive Recruitment Guidelines support managers to make adjustments for
candidates and also to use more inclusive questions and encourage activities as well
as competency-based questions. We continue to develop helpful, supportive
guidelines and training for all of our colleagues to encourage diverse practice and
thinking.

As part of our social responsibility, we will continue to strengthen our partnerships
with Job Centre Plus and Remploy and continue to work with local partners in local
authority, social care and the voluntary sector.

The Equality Act requires employers with 150 plus employees to produce and
monitor data on their workforce to demonstrate that they can show compliance with
the public sector equality duty. Workforce equality monitoring data is collected when
an individual commences employment at The Dudley Group, although staff can opt
out of this. The workforce profile is based on the Trust's staff in post data as at 31
March 2022. Staff survey information is based on the 2021 staff survey analysis.

Engaging with our workforce and communities

The Trust is committed to working in partnership with its employees to maximise its
potential to deliver against its business objectives, through robust arrangements for
joint working which include consultation and negotiation. We appreciate the need for
collaborative working on the underpinning aims and values to ensure exemplary
practice in the employment and treatment of staff. The Trust recognises the
importance of proper representation by recognised trade unions, and we are
committed to involving and engaging with Staff Side, trade unions and staff through
our Joint Negotiating Committee to ensure that we maintain effective workplace
employee relations.

Good communication and engagement across the Trust is a priority to ensure
colleagues, patients and the public know what is happening in the Trust. We use
many different channels to engage our workforce and community in service
development.

The Hub

The Hub is the Trust’s intranet and enables us to share news and updates with all
our staff. This includes health campaigns, finance information, workforce and
recruitment updates. It shares successes such as award wins and innovations, and
alerts staff to any operational changes. The Hub is also the central repository for all
clinical and non-clinical procedural documents, links and essential information.

In the Know
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In the Know is an email bulletin to all staff and our private finance initiative partners
and is the go-to source of information in the Trust, allowing us to share key updates
quickly.

Team Brief

Led by the chief executive each month, this online event enables staff to receive
updates on Trust performance and developments, and to ask questions.

Live Chat

This takes place every two weeks and is led by the chief executive. It is a very
popular online forum for staff to put questions and to receive an immediate response
from the senior management team. They have the option to do this anonymously.
This year has seen several ‘themed’ Live Chats with guest expert hosts, such as an
opportunity to put questions on vaccines, home working, sustainability and our new
Trust strategy.

Healthcare Heroes

Healthcare Heroes is an opportunity to recognise and reward the great work of our
teams, individuals and volunteers. Staff and patients submit nominations each month
and the winners, chosen by the chief executive, are paid a surprise visit and
presented with a certificate and prize.

Patient Safety and Experience Bulletins

We continue to engage clinicians with important patient safety and experience
information through weekly email bulletins on specific themes.

Long Service Awards

We feel that 10, 25, 30, 40 and 50 years are big milestones in an NHS career and
we recognise this with our Long Service Awards. These events happen annually and
we are looking forward to inviting staff to the 2022 awards ceremony at the Trust in
December 2022. In 2021, we recognised 317 members of staff and celebrated a
collective total of 6,620 years of service in the NHS. In April 2022, we held an
additional ceremony to recognise staff that joined the NHS between 1982 and 1989,
who didn’t receive their 30-year recognition before it was introduced last year. We
are also looking to introduce a first year letter of recognition, which will be a letter
from the chief executive sent directly to staff on their first anniversary at the Trust.

Social media

We have a strong social media presence and regularly post news about the Trust,
events, our services and health advice on Facebook and Twitter. We actively
encourage staff to engage with us on Twitter and more and more departments now
have their own Twitter accounts. We have around 14,300, total page followers on
Facebook and nearly 6,700 followers on Twitter.

69



Dudley Improvement Practice (DIP)

The DIP method consists of a range of training, collaborative problem solving and
facilitated workshops, which together support teams with a structured approach to
their improvement journeys. This is underpinned by developing leadership
behaviours that promote an improvement culture, and by a management system that
links improvement activities to the Trust’s true norths and strategic goals. DIP
believes in three essential elements of Continuous Improvement:

1. Engagement — the power of collaboration is maximised by engaging the people
who do the work every day and, therefore, have the most insight about how to
improve it.

2. Equality — harnessing the great diversity in our people by treating everyone as
‘thinking equals’ drives innovation and creativity.

3. Empowerment — developing a coaching style of leadership to make our people
feel valued and psychologically safe to propose new ways of working, to
contribute and to learn together.

In 2022, two large workstreams are being supported for a full 12 months; Urgent and
Emergency Care (UEC) and Women and Children Services (W&C). Both these
launched with events in February and March where multi-disciplinary teams co-
designed improvements to patient flow and experience through these services. UEC
is starting with a focus on staff wellbeing, which is so important given the pressure
these teams are under. The maternity team is prioritising improvement to its
antenatal outpatient processes in order to reduce the time women spend in clinic.

DIP will continue to support the Imaging Department which has become a case study
for improvements in their staff survey results over the last 12 months.

Over 1,200 members of staff have now undertaken improvement training and new,
bite-sized eLearning modules have been developed by the in-house DIP team.

Corporate resilience

The corporate resilience team provides the means for the Trust to gain assurance on
aspects of health and safety, fire, emergency planning and business continuity.

The aim of the team is to provide support to the Trust in the above with specific focus
on the objectives which include the provision of resilience, ensuring its robustness is
tested and meets the needs of the Trust and others it supports. The team aids in the
requirement of the Trust to ensure the safe and smooth running of its daily activities
and its legal and moral obligations.

The team’s objectives extend to supporting the Trust in providing exemplary
standard of care to its patients, while ensuring the health and safety of their staff.

During the 2021/2022 period the team has:
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Staffed the incident room as part of the COVID-19 response, acting as the
accountable team to receive and disseminate data as and when required.
Worked with and supported departments to ensure their business continuity
plans, risk assessments and COSHH (Control of Substances Hazardous to
Health Regulations 2002) assessments are not only in place, but are up to
date, manageable and robust.

Undertaken a successful surveillance visit with the HSE (Health & Safety
Executive) with records taken as necessary.

Worked with and supported departments to increase compliance with COSHH
and risk assessments.

Completed the fire risk assessments for all departments within the Trust,
ensuring that ownership of these risk assessments is explained and accepted
by all concerned.

Provided competent support and advice with the building of the new AMU
modular build, engaging with the estates teams and the contractors.
Provided additional staff training, as required, for fire safety, risk assessment,
COSHH and DSE (display screen equipment) assessor workshops.
Increased communication with staff at all levels. The team now has slots on
the divisional risk meetings, have created health and safety lead meetings
and produce communication emails containing relevant information.
Increased the number of trained fire leads from 59 to 112, which has led to
increased reporting of hazards and damage through the fire lead checklist
process.

Increased the number of health and safety leads from 37 to 75 and provided
support and training to these in relation to risk and COSHH assessments.
Led on the social distancing audits and risk assessments through policy
development and implementation.

Provided initial support and advice in relation to face fit testing in response to
COVID-19.

Moving forward, the team’s objectives for 2022/2023 include:

Providing more training to new fire and health and safety leads to ensure
compliance.

Continuing to work with and support departments on health and safety, fire
and EPRR (Emergency Preparedness Resilience and Response) matters.
Co-ordinating the audit of the use of non-safe sharps and needlestick
incidents and reporting to the deputy director of nursing.

Providing competent advice and support with the Emergency Department
redesign.

Continuing to lead with the Incident Response for the Trust.

Staff health and wellbeing
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Ensuring our staff health and wellbeing is a key area of focus, linking to both the
ongoing effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our staff, and wider recruitment and
retention work, which will ensure we deliver on one of our Trust aims to be ‘a brilliant
place to work and thrive’. We are committed to ensuring that all members of staff at
the Trust have access to health and wellbeing information, resources and
professional support if required. We understand that there is no one size fits all
approach to health and wellbeing, and we aim to embed a holistic and preventative
approach. This approach will aim to help support staff to stay well in work and
ensure wellbeing becomes part of daily working life, embedded in our culture and
behaviours.

Over the past year, we have seen continued high levels of sickness absence due to
COVID-19, anxiety, stress and depression which has led to more focused work to
support staff wellbeing wider than our core occupational health service (SHAW —
Staff Health and Wellbeing). There have been developments in both our SHAW
service and our wider wellbeing service, as detailed below. Ongoing development is
in progress to ensure our wellbeing offer and SHAW service is strengthened moving
forwards.

Occupational Health (SHAW) service

e A new occupational health lead has been appointed and a review of the
service is in development.

e Core occupational health services continued to be offered including pre-
employment health assessments, immunisations and vaccinations, health
surveillance, treatment and follow-up of inoculation injuries/sharps injuries,
in-employment health assessments and health checks. Management referrals
to the occupational health service are also offered to ensure that staff are
cared for and supported when required.

e Physiotherapy service continues to be offered to staff who benefit from a fast-
track service where they can self-refer and receive specialist musculoskeletal
support.

e Access to face-to-face counselling via our Trust employed staff counsellor.

Wellbeing offer

The NHS People Plan outlines that all healthcare organisations should have a
wellbeing guardian and a non-executive director has been appointed to this role in
the Trust. The wellbeing guardian enables the independent challenge to the senior
leadership team and can hold them to account for their corporate role in creating a
culture of wellbeing for all employees. Recruitment of Trust wellbeing champions is
in progress.

The Board of Directors continues to monitor the Trust activities to promote wellbeing

through the newly formed Health and Wellbeing Steering Group and the Workforce

and Staff Engagement Committee (WSEC). The steering group is responsible for the

co-ordination and strategic leadership of all aspects of the wellbeing agenda and

upward reports into the Workforce Staff Engagement Committee and finally to board.
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Membership of the steering group and the committee includes key representatives
from each of the departments and divisions and both are chaired by a non-executive
director.

A wellbeing business partner (BP) has been recruited to oversee wellbeing at
organisational level and develop the wellbeing offer further. This person has worked
with the organisational development team to support development of three in-house
training sessions focusing on wellbeing: Let’s talk about wellbeing, Let’s have a
wellbeing conversation, and Let’s be a wellbeing champion. The wellbeing BP has
worked with other areas to ensure wellbeing is featured in the corporate induction
and our organisational commitment to wellbeing is detailed in our job
advertisements.

New staff wellbeing intranet pages have been developed to include signposting to
additional information and resources at Trust, ICS and national level.

The new flexible working and supporting attendance policy has been informed by the
wellbeing BP and lead for occupational health.

There is ongoing engagement with staff around the wellbeing offer including joining
team meetings and highlighting the offer, as well as running ad hoc wellbeing
sessions for staff as required.

We are supporting the development of a new staff wellbeing hub, which will offer a
safe space for staff to relax and unwind during break times.

We are working towards the Bronze ‘Thrive at Work’ accreditation.

There is access for all staff to the BHSF RISE employee assistance programme,
which offers counselling, wellbeing support, online GP service, legal and financial
advice, as well as a range of bespoke resources to support our staff to stay well in
work. Appointments are offered either virtually or via the phone and access is also
available for adult family members of our staff.

Monthly webinars and educational wellbeing sessions are offered to staff, accessed
via our interactive wellbeing calendar, and shared regularly via our internal
communications and social media channels. Sessions have focused on a variety of
topics including sleep, resilience, nutrition, stress, physical activity, self-care,
mindfulness, financial wellbeing and menopause awareness. Topics link to national
wellbeing awareness days/months, as well as areas of focus as detailed in the NHS
E/l wellbeing diagnostic tool. Access to session recordings is later made available to
staff via our wellbeing YouTube channel.

The Trust continues to offer additional wellbeing benefits to include free parking,
access to the Action Heart gym, free access to our outdoor gym, a cycle to work
scheme, flu vaccinations and COVID-19 vaccinations and Trust walks.

Additional wellbeing support services are also shared with our staff via the ICS and
over the past year have included a series of menopause awareness sessions,
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bereavement support sessions, the launch of an online health and wellbeing
repository and access to the staff mental wellbeing hub, providing fast access to
mental health support services.

The wider national offer is also available to staff and details of this is accessible via
our Wellbeing intranet pages and shared with staff, including the 24/7 staff support
helpline, and free mental wellbeing apps including Headspace and Unmind.

We have launched onsite yoga sessions for staff to take a pause as well as enjoy
some exercise with colleagues. This is currently being developed further.

Training

Ensuring that staff have access to development opportunities to enable them to be at
their best at Dudley has been a continuing commitment during 2021. Although the
pandemic continued to impact on the ability to deliver some activities, all
development programmes were re-launched during 2021 and some additional
courses were developed. This includes leadership and management programmes,
nurse and AHP development, apprenticeships and additional focused wellbeing
training has expanded the offer available to staff. The Trust's Managers’ Essentials
programme for all line managers, launched in 2020, has continued to be delivered
and provides a clear standard of compassionate leadership for all people and teams.

There are training opportunities for clinical and non-clinical staff which includes
access to qualifications in English and Maths through to degrees and Masters
qualifications. Performance and development is supported through the Trust’s
appraisal review process for all staff. The Board of Directors ensures that quality
improvement is central to all activities. This is achieved by routine monitoring,
participation in national improvement campaigns, celebrating success with our staff
awards and proactively seeking patient views on our services.

Countering fraud

The Trust has continued to ensure its staff are aware of responsibilities towards
fraud and bribery and have both a fraud and corruption policy and an anti-bribery
policy to support staff, and takes its responsibility for countering these issues very
seriously.

We have a Local Counter Fraud service and one of our key aims is to work together
to promote an anti-fraud culture. Newsletters and alerts, including on COVID-19
related scams, are published and promoted regularly on the Hub to ensure staff
understand that fraud against the NHS will not be tolerated.

Equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI)
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The Dudley Group is fully committed to becoming a more inclusive organisation,
ensuring equal opportunity, celebrating diversity, and encouraging and supporting
the workforce we employ to reach their potential. Equality, diversity and inclusion
(EDI) is enshrined in our vision and values of care, respect and responsibility that
underpin the day-to-day activities and diverse communities of our workforce and the
community we serve. We strive to be a brilliant place to work and thrive for everyone
who works as part of our team.

The Trust is committed to raising awareness of diversity to ensure equality of
opportunity across the broad range of differences that characterise individuals, and
to establish a supportive working environment where everyone is valued equally, and
treated with dignity and respect. The Trust believes that this commitment will lead to
improved healthcare outcomes for our patients.

We continue to be members of the Stonewall champions programme and the
Employers Network for Equality and Inclusion (enei), both of which support progress
on being a workplace that truly values equality, diversity and inclusion.

The Trust is committed to utilising best practice benchmarking tools to self-assess
and evaluate our approach and progress on equality, diversity and inclusion. TIDE
(Talent Inclusion & Diversity Evaluation) is a benchmarking tool which the Employers
Network for Equality and Inclusion (enei) has developed to assess organisational
performance and progress in relation to diversity and inclusion. TIDE measures our
organisation against eight different areas of diversity and inclusion practice and
benchmarks us against other healthcare organisations.

In 2020, the Trust completed the self-assessment and achieved 36 per cent. Since
then we have worked hard to improve our processes, policies and procedures. We
have completed the self-assessment in 2021 and seen a significant improvement,
achieving 72 per cent. The report also identified areas where improvements could be
further made. After benchmarking was completed, the Trust was awarded a Silver
level Tide mark by the Employers Network for Equality and Inclusion (enei). We are
working through an action plan to enable us to further improve our TIDE mark
performance in 2022.

The Trust had achieved the Disability Confident Employer status (level 2) some time
ago. The Disability Confident journey can support organisations to recruit, retain and
develop disabled people. The Disability Confident badge also is a sign to people with
disabilities that the organisation recognises the value they can bring. During 2021,
we embarked on our journey to become a Disability Confident Leader status (level 3)
and in April 2021 we were awarded the status and now proudly display this on our
job adverts and supporting material.

During the latter part of 2021, the Trust signed up to become early adopters of the
RACE code. This work is ongoing and we will use the results of our assessment to
improve the working lives of our Black, Asian and Minority Ethnics workforce. The

Trust is committed in ensuring there is a golden thread throughout our Equality,
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Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, plans, processes and polices to achieve race
equity.

During 2020 and 2021, the Trust commenced a targeted campaign to gain interest in
the development of different staff networks. As a result, our EmbRACE, disability,
and lesbian, gay, bi-sexual, transgender, queer (LGBTQ+) and our women’s
networks were established. These networks focus on peer-to-peer support, raising
awareness and providing a critical eye to the Trust’s policies and processes. All have
a dedicated budget and protected time, a nominated chair and identified executive
and non-executive sponsors. All networks have ambitious work programmes focused
on delivering the Trust’s commitment to improving the working lives of our staff and
ensuring they feel like they belong in the NHS. We continue to expand the current
networks’ membership and each one has robust priorities which we fully support and
will drive improvement.

The Trust funded a fulltime network co-ordinator at the beginning of the year to
provide dedicated support and development of our staff networks. This has
supported the networks to grow, celebrate events and work on delivering their
priorities. The Board of Directors continues to monitor the Trust activities to promote
diversity and inclusion through the newly formed Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion
Steering Group (EDI) and the Workforce and Staff Engagement Committee.

The steering group is responsible for the co-ordination and strategic leadership of all
aspects of the inclusion agenda and upward reports into the Workforce Staff
Engagement Committee and finally to board. Membership of the steering group and
the committee includes key representatives from each of the departments and
divisions and both are chaired by a non-executive director.

The Royal College of Nursing (RCN) runs a well-established Cultural Ambassadors
Programme, which was adopted for the Black Country region. The role of a cultural
ambassador is to support organisations to ensure that disciplinary panels are
diverse, and decisions are free from bias. We communicated to staff this opportunity
and now have the role in place and support the Black Country NHS trusts in
providing independent ambassadors when required.

Due to COVID-19, many of the usual calendar events such as celebrating diversity
and inclusion, awareness of religious celebrations, attending Birmingham Pride and
celebrating Black History Month were all conducted virtually as we adhered to social
distancing measures and recommendations. We hope to restart celebrating these
events face to face when the opportunity arises as we believe participation raises
awareness of the importance of diversity and inclusion within the workplace.

During 2021, we played particular attention to protecting our frontline staff. We
ensured all our frontline staff had a risk assessment and where appropriate were
deployed in a safer working environment.

All staff are required to complete a module on equality and diversity through the
Trust’s mandatory training programme which includes learning disability and autism
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awareness. All new employees complete this training as part of their induction into
the Trust. Further inclusion training has been developed and delivered throughout
the year in our Managers’ Essentials and Developing Leaders programmes. These
programmes are aimed at anyone who has responsibility for colleagues and aims to
upskill them on compassionate, inclusive leadership skills. During these
programmes, colleagues cover unconscious bias and choosing your behaviour, the
Equality Act with case studies, inclusive leadership and being an effective ally.

During 2021, the Board of Directors embarked on a Cultural Intelligence training
journey delivered by a specialist training provider. In 2022, this programme of work
will be further developed and rolled out across our senior leadership teams. This will
support our senior leadership team to deliver the equality objectives introduced into
their appraisals.

The Trust is developing an Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy for 2022 which
aims to further improve the working lives of all staff and ensure that everyone feels
like they belong in the NHS. The strategy will be underpinned by our detailed Dudley
People Plan including actions which will further improve our overall diversity. The
metrics which help influence our actions are the staff survey, Workforce Race
Equality Standard (WRES), Workforce Disability Equality Standard (WDES), the
Gender Pay Gap data and career conversations with colleagues.

During 2021, the Trust has further developed our human resources (HR) key
performance indicator dashboard to drill further into live data and consider ethnicity,
disability, gender and sexuality. This has supported us to target staff groups and
conduct career conversations where we can clearly see we have under
representation. So far, we have conducted this work with our black, Asian, minority
ethnic (BAME) nurses and women in areas where the gender pay gap is driven from.
After hearing the lived experiences and ascertaining from them what would help
address key concerns, we are developing action plans to improve staff experience.
This work will continue into 2022 and beyond.

During 2021, we developed our Inclusion Champion programme to ensure that we
offer diverse membership on our recruitment panels for our most senior roles. This
supports a visible organisational commitment to equality, diversity and inclusion for
candidates as well as providing additional benefits in panel fairness and equity with
expert members championing diversity. During 2022, we are working to overhaul our
recruitment training to train all managers to be Inclusion Champions, enriching the
recruitment experience for candidates and ensuring inclusion is a golden thread
throughout our recruitment process and procedures.

We will continue to build our partnerships across the Black Country Integrated Care
Systems (ICS) such as Cultural Ambassadors Programme and Black Lives Matter
(BLM) initiatives.

Mandatory equality duties
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In support of the effective delivery of the equality duties of the Equality Act 2010 and
the Public Sector Equality Duties (PSED), there are other mandatory requirements
for the Trust as an NHS organisation. These include:

* NHS Standard Contract (SC13 Equity of Access, Equality and Non-Discrimination),
compliance of which is regulated and monitored by the Care Quality Commission
(CQC) and local Clinical Commissioning Group.

» Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES)

» Workforce Disability Equality Standard (WDES)
» Gender Pay Gap (GPG) reporting

 Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2)

* Accessible Information Standard (AIS)

» Sexual Orientation Monitoring Standard

On 31st March 2022, the Board of Directors comprised nine non-executive directors
including the chair and eight executive directors; 63.93 per cent are male and 36.61
per cent are female. Aross the Trust, 81.83 per cent of staff are female and 18.17
per cent are male; 19.25 per cent are BAME (Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic) and
70.10 per cent white, with 10.65 per cent not stated.

Staff turnover

Our staff turnover for the year was 7.39 per cent. More information on our staff
turnover can be found at the NHS workforce statistics published by NHS Digital.

Staff survey
Staff experience and engagement

The NHS Staff Survey is conducted annually and is one of the largest workforce
surveys in the world. It asks NHS staff in England about their experiences of working
for their respective NHS organisation. From 2021/2022, the survey questions align to
the seven elements of the NHS ‘People Promise’, and retains the two previous
themes of engagement and morale. These replace the 10 indicator themes used in
previous years. All indicators are based on a score out of 10 for specific questions
with the indicator score being the average of those.

We use the results each year to determine our focus for staff engagement,
identifying what is working well and where we need to make improvement. We
engage with staff on these issues further, for example through director-led
workshops.
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The survey was held between 27th September and 26th November 2021. All staff
employed on 1st September 2021 were invited to complete the survey via a
confidential online link. We used the company Picker to carry out the survey for us.

Summary of performance

Our response rate of 59 per cent (3,185 people) is our best to date and compares
with 46 per cent in 2020 and 43 per cent in 2019. It is considerably higher than the
48 per cent average for the 217 NHS trusts.

The survey had a significant re-fresh for 2021 with some key changes around
themes, question content and focus. For the first time, the survey questions were
aligned with the NHS People Promise, which sets out in the words of NHS staff the
things that would most improve their working experience. The reporting has been
updated to track progress against the seven People Promise elements:

e We are compassionate and inclusive
e We are recognised and rewarded

e We have a voice that counts

e We are safe and healthy

e We are always learning

e We work flexibly

e We are ateam

There are 56 questions that can be compared between 2020 and 2021 - due to
significant changes in the survey between 2020/21, not all questions are
comparable. Of those 56 questions:

e 2 are significantly better
e 42 show no significant change
e 12 are significantly worse

The two showing most improvement were ‘not experienced harassment, bullying or
abuse from managers’ (90 per cent — 2020 85 per cent); and ‘not experienced
harassment, bullying or abuse from other colleagues’ (84 per cent — 2020 79 per
cent).

The most declined score was ‘enough staff at organisation to do my job properly’ (24
per cent — 2020 32 per cent).

The national report allows us to compare with other trusts and gives us a sense of
whether the results we see at Dudley are a result of local issues, or if they reflect a

sense of the NHS as a whole this year.
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Across all themes/questions, we are mostly aligned to the benchmark average —
there are some questions where we are better than average, and others where we
might need to improve.

Scores for each indicator together with that of the survey benchmarking group (Acute
and Acute & Community Trusts) are presented below.

Indicators 2021/22 2021/22

(People Promise elements and Trust score Benchmarking group score

themes)

People Promise:

We are compassionate and 7.2 7.2

inclusive

We are recognised and 57 5.8

rewarded

We each have a voice that 6.6 6.7

counts

We are safe and healthy 58 59

We are always learning 52 5.2

We work flexibly 59 59

We are a team 6.5 6.6

Staff engagement 6.7 6.8

Morale 5.6 5.7
2019/20 and 2020/21

Scores for each indicator together with that of the survey benchmarking group (Acute
and Acute & Community Trusts) are presented below.

2020/21 2019/20
Trust score Benchmarking Trust score Benchmarking
group score group score
Equality, diversity | 9.1 9.1 9.0 9.2
and inclusion
Health and 5.8 6.1 5.5 6.0
wellbeing
Immediate 6.8 6.8 6.6 6.9
managers
Morale 5.9 6.2 5.7 6.2
Quality of care 7.3 7.5 7.2 7.5
Safe environment— | 7.9 8.1 7.7 8.2
bulling and
harassment
Safe environment- | 9.5 9.5 9.5 9.5
violence
Safety culture 6.7 6.8 6.5 6.8
Staff engagement 6.8 7.0 6.7 71
Next steps

There are two main phases to the work we do with teams to understand, share,
engage and action their staff survey results.
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The first phase is the initial cascade and engagement with the teams that need to
work on improvement the most. They are currently looking at action plans and what
engagement they need to do with their teams. The second phase is the sharing more
widely with our whole organisation.

The survey results serve to highlight the overwhelming impact on our staff of
embedding a culture of compassionate, inclusive, engaging and effective leadership.
Role modelling these leadership behaviours consistently and across all parts of the
Trust is the only way of creating and sustaining a working environment where staff
feel valued, appreciated, respected and motivated.

The human resources, organisational development and Dudley Improvement
Practice teams will work with the divisional, professional and corporate leadership
teams and Staff Inclusion Networks to review the plans developed last year in order
to revise, update and strengthen the actions where necessary.

Delivering the Dudley People Plan:

e Implementing the Workforce Race Equality Standard and Workforce Disability
Equality Standard delivery plans, and delivering a single integrated Equality,
Diversion and Inclusion Strategy;

e Launching the Trust’s Wellbeing Strategy and enhanced wellbeing offer;

e Strengthening career pathways and development/progression opportunities
for all staff groups;

e Supporting delivery of the Equality & Inclusion Networks priorities;

e Continuing to roll-out of Managers’ Essentials to all line managers across the
Trust programme;

e Building the Trust’s workforce technology platform and infrastructure
(data/insights/functionality /interoperability);

e Continued visibility of the executives/board.
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Christmas in the Action Heart
vaccination centre
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Trade Union facility time

Under The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirement) Regulations 2017,
the Trust is required to publish certain information on trade union officials and facility
time on the Trust website and government portal.

Facility time covers duties carried out for the trade union or as a union learning
representative, for instance accompanying an employee to disciplinary or grievance
hearing. It also covers training received and duties carried out under the Health and
Safety at Work Act 1974.

Trade union representatives and full-time equivalents (FTE)

Trade union representatives: 4
FTE trade union representatives: 3.76

Percentage of working hours spent on facility time

0% of working hours: 0 representatives

1 to 50% of working hours: 3 representatives
51 to 99% of working hours: 0 representatives
100% of working hours: 1 representative

Total pay bill and facility time costs

Total pay bill*: £3,031,130.00
Total cost of facility time: £30,272.64
Percentage of pay spent on facility time: 0.01%

Paid trade union activities

Hours spent on paid facility time: 2,020

Hours spent on paid trade union activities: 48.2

Percentage of total paid facility time hours spent on paid trade union activities:
2.39%

*Includes all substantive staff costs, on call payments to substantive staff and overtime paid to
substantive staff

Expenditure on consultancy
Details of expenditure on consultancy can be found on page 156 of the accounts.
Off payroll engagements

There were no off payroll engagements during 2021/22. It is our policy not to use off
payroll engagements.
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Reporting of other compensation schemes - exit packages 2021/22

Agreements
Number

Total Value of Agreements
£000

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement
contractual costs

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual
costs

Early retirements in the efficiency of the service
contractual costs

Contractual payments in lieu of notice

14

57

Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or
court orders

Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval

Total

14

57

Of which: non contractual payments requiring HMT
approval made to individuals where the payment
value was more than 12 months of their annual salary

Exit packages - other (non compulsory) departure payment 2020/21

A09CY25 A09CY26 A09PY25 A09PY26
Total value Total value
Payments of Payments of
agreed agreements agreed agreements
2021/22 2021/22 2020/21 2020/21
Expected
sign No. £000 No. £000
Voluntary redundancies including +
early retirement contractual costs
Mutually agreed resignations + 1 44
(MARS) contractual costs
Early retirements in the efficiency +
of the service contractual costs
Coptractual payments in lieu of + 14 57 14 95
notice
Exit payments following
employment tribunals or court +
orders
Non-contractual payments
requiring HMT approval (special +
severance payments)*
Total + 14 57 15 139
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Gender pay gap

Information on the Trust's gender pay gap can be found on the Cabinet Office
website at www.gender-pay-gap.service.gov.uk

Hospital volunteer service

The Trust outside of the pandemic has around 500 volunteers from the local
community giving their time on a regular basis to make a real difference to patients,
visitors and staff at the Trust.

Recovering from the pandemic, whilst proving to be a slow process, has given
opportunities for an exciting future for the service. We currently have around 230
volunteers and efforts are being concentrated on recruiting and placing suitable
individuals around the Trust.

We are currently recruiting individuals to support in the following areas:

¢ Nutrition and hydration

e Wayfinding and outpatients
e Chaplaincy

e Emergency Department

e Patient experience

e Pharmacy

e Driving

We welcome individuals of all ages who can either offer a regular weekly shift at one

of our sites or those who are willing to join our database to be called upon for ad hoc
events.
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Our volunteer driver service continues to
help with deliveries of medication and
feeds to our most vulnerable patients,
and for delivery and collection of medical
equipment and the return of lost property
to its owner. A volunteer 4x4 driver
service is also in place to support the
Trust in the event of bad weather,
bringing staff into work as well as any
other reasonable requests.

Throughout the year our volunteers have
helped visitors with PPE requirements
and greeted visitors to outpatient areas,
taking temperatures and asking relevant
COVID-19 screening questions in line
with government guidelines to help keep
everyone safe.

They have continued to make drinks and
support patients at mealtimes in non-
COVID-19 areas.

Volunteering on the wards

The use of technology is embraced by the volunteer service. We are able to use
tablet devices to keep in touch with volunteers on site and have access to tablet
devices to use with patients. These devices are equipped with language translation
as well as a wealth of resources for our chaplaincy volunteers. We encourage family
members to get in touch if they require a volunteer to support patients with electronic
communication such as Skype. Audio books can also be made available as required.

Volunteers’ funding

NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSEI) Volunteering Services Fund invited
applications for funding to support the restoration of services after the COVID-19
pandemic. The Trust was granted £21,500.

The monies awarded are being used as follows:

e A clinical support worker for a fixed term of 12 months, aligned with the
Trust’s professional development team, to quickly expedite the reintroduction
of volunteers in clinical areas. This individual will offer skills training and
encouragement to volunteers who may otherwise feel nervous about
volunteering in these areas. With support and training, these volunteers will
be able to do so much more including mealtime assistance and feeding
patients is a priority, along with our volunteer friend service, building on the
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work that was achieved in this area pre-pandemic. The work of the clinical
support worker would be complemented by the volunteer best practice
assessors.

e We are offering volunteers a drinks voucher so that they can get a drink as a
thank you for all their hard work.

NHS Charities Together Volunteering Futures Fund, supported by the Department
for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport, invited grant applications from NHS Charities
who are already successfully delivering youth volunteering projects. The core
objective of the fund is to support young people with a focus on those who
experience barriers to volunteering, to build their skills, wellbeing and social
networks through volunteering.

The Trust Charity made an application for £97,047 and was successful.

The monies are being used for the Trust’s new youth volunteering programme —
DGFT Advance:

e 12 months fixed term contract for a clinical support worker to help train young
people based in ward areas, equipping them with skills to best support
patients.

e 12 months fixed term contract for administrative support to help with
recruitment, training and support.

e Mandatory and optional training for our younger volunteers to support them in
their chosen placement areas as well as for their own future career plans.
Subject areas include: CPR, wellbeing, food safety, mental health and
sensory loss.

e Tablet devices for safe, secure signing in for younger volunteers to support
security and safeguarding.

e Ten 2in 1 laptops for volunteers to use with patients. These are to create
storyboards, enable activities, access language translation and podcasts, as
well as enabling communication with family members unable to visit in person.

e Trolleys for delivery of patient notes and equipment.

e Snack trolley for wards, outpatients and staff areas.

e Work experience platform to support those wishing to pursue a career in
healthcare.

e Volunteer travel expenses.

e Volunteer refreshment vouchers.
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Sustainability and the environment

Reflecting the Trust's commitment to the environment, the new strategic plan
approved this year contains an explicit reference in one of our five goals — Drive
sustainability, financial and environmental. Despite the challenges of managing
services through the pandemic, the Trust has been able to make some further
progress in our approach to environmental sustainability.

Following publication of Delivering a Net Zero NHS in October 2020, which
committed the NHS to becoming the first national health system in the world to
achieve net zero (by 2040 for emissions under direct NHS control and 2045 for
emissions in the wider supply chain), the Trust has partnered with other
organisations in the Black Country to progress action on different fronts.

Some key headlines for this year include:

e Green Plan Working Group has met regularly and reported progress to
Finance & Performance Committee. Meetings have been changed from
quarterly to monthly and a group specifically addressing estates issues with
our PFI partner Mitie has been established. The working group has overseen
submission of the Greener NHS Data Collection which is being used to
develop national and regional benchmarking information.
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Management support to the greener NHS agenda will be strengthened by the
appointment of a staff member who can focus on sustainability full-time in line
with practice at many other NHS trusts.

A prototype dashboard has been developed internally to track changes to key
metrics that drive the Trust’s carbon footprint such as energy, waste streams
and travel. The electricity purchased on the Trust’s behalf by Mitie was from
renewable sources.

The greenteam, an informal network of staff interested in the green agenda,
has met virtually throughout the year. The group organised a series of events
to celebrate NHS Sustainability Day in June 2021 including a webinar with the
sustainability team from Mitie. Reusable bamboo cutlery was distributed to
staff to reduce the need for single-use catering plastics.

The Car Lease Policy has been amended to restrict new leases to cars that
are either zero or ultra-low emission vehicles in line with expectations from the
Greener NHS programme.

Plans to encourage car sharing through the use of a dedicated app for staff to
use are at an advanced stage and the app is expected to be deployed early in
the new financial year.

The availability of recycling facilities in South Block at Russells Hall Hospital
has been increased making it easier for staff to stream waste and increase
the amount that goes directly into recycling. The hope is to extend this model
to other non-clinical areas.

Staff have worked with Mitie to pilot a system for increased recycling in
theatres. It is hoped to extend this across all theatres.

Theatre staff have started to use reusable theatre caps which is estimated will
save about 100,000 single use viscose caps from incineration annually.

The Trust has made the switch to using recycled paper wherever possible.
This is estimated to save the equivalent of over 41,000 Christmas trees over a
year.

Meat Free Mondays have been introduced in staff and visitor catering outlets
to encourage lower carbon alternatives and increase the number of
vegetarian and vegan options as requested by staff. An electronic food
ordering system has been implemented and this is intended to reduce the
amount of food waste.

Due to the need to maintain strict infection prevention and control measures, some
of the ideas to introduce more reusable clinical products such as theatre gowns, and
reusable items into catering, have had to be paused. As the NHS moves from
pandemic to endemic it is hoped that restrictions for healthcare settings will start to
ease, making it possible to introduce some of these ideas to reduce reliance on
single-use items. The Trust will monitor the situation carefully and balance the need
to maintain high levels of cleanliness to prevent infection against the harmful effects
of single-use items.
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Staff continue to be encouraged to make changes to their behaviour wherever they
can and adopt three simple pledges:

* Recycling — sort it!
* Energy — save it!

* Plastic — avoid it!

New recycling stations,
South Block

Code of governance

Foundation Trust membership

The membership of the Trust comprises local people and staff who are directly
employed by us or our partner organisations. Our minimum age for
membership is 14 years; there is no upper age limit. Full details of who is
eligible to register as a member of the Trust can be found in the Trust
Constitution which is available on our website www.dgft.nhs.uk. Any public
members wishing to come forward as a governor when vacancies arise or to
vote in governor elections must reside in one of the Trust’s constituencies.
Staff are automatically included as members within staff group constituencies
unless they choose to opt out.

During 2021/2022, we continued to promote membership to local communities
and the importance of having a voice. We continue to maintain a public
membership of more than 13,000. As of 31st March 2022 the Trust had a total
of 13,288 public members.
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More information about the Trust and the latest news can be found on our
website at www.dgft.nhs.uk. The members’ area of the website also contains
information about being a member and the contribution members make to the

ongoing success of the organisation.

Members can:

* be involved in shaping the future of healthcare in Dudley by sharing

their views;
« vote in governor elections;

» stand for election to represent their constituency (candidates must be

minimum 16 years old);

« attend behind the scenes tours and member events;

+ participate in public meetings, public and patient involvement panels

and focus groups; and

» fundraise for The Dudley Group NHS Charity.

Throughout most of the year, the Trust was operating under Level 4 restrictions
owing to the coronavirus pandemic and consequently all face-to-face engagement

events were cancelled.

Public membership

31st March 2020 13,671
31st March 2021 13,443
31st March 2022 13,288

Membership constituency breakdown report as of 31st March 2022

Public Constituencies

Number of Members

Brierley Hill 1,673
Central Dudley 2,311
Halesowen 1,072
North Dudley 1,274
Rest of England 2,171
South Staffordshire and Wyre Forest 1,097
Stourbridge 1,608
Tipton and Rowley Regis 2,006

Public membership breakdown by age, gender and
ethnicity

Number of Members

0-16 years

9
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o | 17-21 years 164
oo
< | 22+ years 12,481
Not stated 634
_ | Male 4,324
(]
T | Female 8,656
()]
o
Unspecified/not stated 308
. | White 10,377
Ig Mixed 382
ﬁ Asian or Asian British 1,175
Black or Black British 393
Other 64
Not stated 895

Staff constituencies

Staff constituencies

Number of Members

Allied Health Professionals and Healthcare Scientists 708
Medical and Dental 584
Nursing and Midwifery 3105
Non clinical 1151
Partner organisations 624

Council of Governors

The Council of Governors was formed on 1st October 2008 and is responsible
for holding the non-executive directors to account for the performance of the
Board of Directors. The majority of the Trust’s governors are elected through
the public membership to make up the Council of Governors which consists of

25 governors in total:

Public elected: 13 governors

Staff elected: 8 governors
Appointed from key stakeholders: 4 governors

Tables summarising the Council of Governors and the constituencies they

represent can be found on pages 92 and 93.
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The Board of Directors continues to work closely with the Council of
Governors through regular attendance at both full Council of Governor
meetings and the committees of the council. Both non-executive and executive
directors are assigned as nominated attendees at the Council of Governors’
sub-committees. This provides opportunities for detailed discussion and
debate on strategy, performance, quality and patient experience and enables
governors to see non-executive directors function. Governors regularly attend
public Board of Directors’ meetings and are invited to observe meetings of the
committees of the board and encouraged to contribute by the respective
chairs.

The Board of Directors is accountable to the Council of Governors, ensuring it
meets its Terms of Authorisation. A Register of Interests confirming individual
declarations for each governor is available on the Trust’s website or is
available on request by calling 01384 321124 or emailing
dgft.foundationmembers@nhs.net.

All the Trust’'s governors comply with the ‘fit and proper’ persons test as
described in the Trust’s provider licence. The conditions are incorporated into
the Foundation Trust Constitution.

The Council of Governors has the following key responsibilities:

« appointing and/or removing the chair, including appraisal and
performance management;

* appointing and/or removing the non-executive directors;

« appointing the external auditors;

» advising the Board of Directors on the views of members and the wider
community;

« ensuring the Board of Directors complies with its Terms of Authorisation
and operates within that licence;

+ recruiting and engaging with members;

* advising on strategic direction;

* receiving the Annual Accounts, any report of the auditor on them, and
the Annual Report at the Annual Members’ Meeting,

« approving significant transactions which exceed 25 per cent by value of
Trust assets, Trust income or increase/reduction to capital value;

* approving any structural change to the organisation worth more than 10
per cent of the organisation’s assets, revenue, or capital by way of
merger, acquisition, separation or dissolution;

» deciding whether the level of private patient income would significantly
interfere with the Trust’s principal purpose of providing NHS services;
and

« approving amendments to the Trust’s Constitution.
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Where an item is reserved for both Council of Governors and Board of
Directors approval, for example a change to the Trust’s Constitution, then this
change would not be made if either party did not approve the recommendation
put before them. In practice, a constructive and close working arrangement is
maintained between the Council of Governors and board through the chairman
and lead governor.

The Trust continues to work closely with the Council of Governors to further develop
the governor role to reflect the requirements of the Health and Social Care Act and
other best practice and guidance. Ongoing training and development is provided by
the Trust, allowing experts from within and outside the Trust to work with the Council
of Governors to identify key aspects of their role. This includes how they influence
strategy within the Trust, and how they will engage with members and the wider
community so that their views and opinions can be heard.

Council of Governors committees

The Council of Governors reviewed its committees and their terms of
reference and operates the following:

« Appointments and Remuneration Committee (chairman Yve Buckland)
» Experience and Engagement Committee (chairman Yvonne Peers)

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year
and is responsible for ensuring a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure
for the appointment, appraisal, reappointment and removal of the chair and
non-executive directors, reviewing their number, specific skill mix and
remuneration as set out in the relevant aspects of the Code of Governance
and in line with the Trust’s Constitution.

The committee, chaired by the Trust’'s chairman, oversees the recruitment process
through the use of interview and stakeholder assessment panels. The Appointments
and Remuneration Committee submits its recommendations for appointments,
outcomes of appraisals, reappointments and removals to a meeting of the full
Council of Governors.

The table on page 40 provides a summary of the non-executive members’
length of appointment.

Council of Governors Membership and Meetings 2021/2022
Figures show number of meetings attended that were held during the term of office.
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Public Governors

Name Constituency

Fred Allen (end of term Dec 2021) Central Dudley 3/3
Helen Ashby (elected Dec 2020) Stourbridge 4/4
Karen Clifford (resigned Nov 2021) Halesowen 1/2
Joanna Davies-Njie (end of term Dec Stourbridge 1/3
2020)

Alex Giles (Elected Dec 2021) Stourbridge 2/2
Sandra Harris Central Dudley 2/4
Mike Heaton Brierley Hill 2/4
Vicky Homer (elected June 2021) South Staffordshire and Wyre 3/4

Forest

Maria Lodge-Smith Brierley Hill 3/4
Hilary Lumsden Halesowen 4/4
Chauntelle Madondo Rest of England 1/4
Lizzy Naylor (elected June 2021) North Dudley 1/4
Nicola Piggott North Dudley 0/4
Alan Rowbottom Tipton & Rowley Regis 3/4
Richard Tasker Central Dudley 1/2

Staff Governors

Name Constituency

Kerry Cope (elected December 2021) Nursing & Midwifery 2/2
Jill Faulkner Non Clinical 3/4
Syed Gilani (elected June 2021) AHP & HCS 3/4
Louise Deluca (elected June 2021) AHP & HCS 0/3
Atef Michael Medical and Dental 2/4
Michelle Porter (elected Dec 2020) Partner Organisations 2/4
Louise Smith (elected Dec 2020) Nursing & Midwifery 0/4
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Appointed Governors

Name Constituency
Rebbekah Collins (appointed June 2021) Dudley Metropolitan Borough 2/4
Council
Dr Mohit Mandiratta (appointed Dec Dudley Clinical Commissioning 1/4
2020) Group
Maria Kisiel University of Wolverhampton 2/4

Medical School
Mary Turner Dudley CVS & Trust volunteers 3/4

The Council of Governors monitors attendance at full council meetings and
committee meetings as agreed under the governors’ Code of Conduct. In all
instances above where governors have maintained less than the required
attendance, the Council of Governors is satisfied that there was reasonable cause
for non-attendance.

Full Council of Governors meetings are regularly attended by key clinicians and
senior staff from across the Trust, providing presentations and question and answer
sessions to help governors understand how the organisation works.

Governor elections and reappointments

During 2021/2022, elections were held for vacancies in the following
constituencies:

* Public: North Dudley, Central Dudley, South Staffordshire and Wyre
Forest, Stourbridge, Brierley Hill — one vacancy in each

« Staff: Nursing and Midwifery, Allied Healthcare Professionals and
Healthcare Scientists — two vacancies in each

In accordance with the Trust’s Constitution, we use the method of single
transferable voting for all elections. This system allows voters to rank
candidates in order of preference and, after candidates have either been
elected or eliminated, unused votes are transferred according to the voter's
next stated preference.

During the year, a total of 18 members put themselves forward as nominees for the
vacancies arising with more than 10 per cent returning votes in contested elections.

Civica Election Services was appointed to oversee the election process,
returning the following governors for a three-year term:
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Public: Brierley Hill, Mike Heaton

Public: Central Dudley, Richard Tasker

Public: North Dudley, Lizzy Naylor

Public: South Staffordshire and Wyre Forest, Vicky Homer

Public: Stourbridge, Alex Giles

Staff: Nursing and Midwifery, Kerry Cope

Staff: Allied Healthcare Professionals and Health Care Scientists, Syed Gilani,
Louise Deluca

The Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council appointed Councillor Rebbekah Collins for
a three-year term effective from June 2021.

Governors reaching end of term of office or resigning during 2021/2022

June 2021

Ann Marsh, Staff elected: Allied Healthcare Professionals and Health Care Scientists
(end of term of office)

Margaret Parker, Staff elected: Nursing and Midwifery (end of term of office)
Councillor Steve Waltho, Appointed: Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council
(replaced)

Yvonne Peers, Public elected: North Dudley (end of term of office)

November 2021
Karen Clifford, Public elected: Halesowen (resigned)

December 2021

Joanne Davies Njie, Public elected: Stourbridge (end of term of office)
Fred Allen, Public elected: Brierley Hill (end of term of office)

February 2022

Louise Delucca, Staff elected: Allied Healthcare Professionals and Health Care
Scientists
(resigned)

March 2022
Maria Kisiel, Appointed: University of Wolverhampton (retired March 2022)

Council of Governors Review 2021/2022

Since authorisation, our Council of Governors has regularly conducted a
review of its effectiveness in discharging its statutory and other duties. During
quarter four, the council undertook an effectiveness review and will use the
results to support an action plan to address those areas highlighted as
requiring development. Early analysis of the feedback has highlighted themes
that the council judges to be positive along with some items for improvement
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which includes reinstating face-to-face meetings and public engagement
activities, increased governor engagement with their role and delivery of the
statutory duties.

The governor training programme is constructed on a modular basis held on a
minimum of six sessions throughout the year. The modules are structured to
support newly-appointed and elected governors and as a refresher for all
council members.

These modules were delivered for the newly-elected governors from the
elections in quarters one and three and as refresher for those returned for a
further term of office and new governors. One-to-one support is in place for all
new governors and buddying is encouraged for those more experienced
governors to support newly-appointed governors. Annual training on fire safety
and infection control is offered across two sessions in the year allowing
governors to attend at least one of these sessions.

The coronavirus pandemic has meant that the Council of Governors has had
to adopt a new way of working and has successfully adapted to the world of
virtual meetings. They have continued to maintain good attendance at the
Annual Members Meeting, quarterly council meetings and at a series of
development events to supplement their training.

Council members have also maintained an attendance at Board of Directors
committees and working groups.

Governors have joined the Programme Board that was looking after the ED
redesign project.

The Annual Members Meeting was held as a virtual event and featured reports from
the executive team, auditors and the lead governor reporting on the year 2020/21.
There was good attendance by local stakeholders, Trust members and members of
the public who were encouraged to submit questions relating to the Annual Report
and Accounts.

Governor engagement with Trust members and local communities

The Trust supports governors in raising public and staff awareness of the work
of the Trust and their role within their constituencies. The 'Out There’ initiative
continues to support governors to undertake their role in finding out what
people think about the Trust and feed back their views to the Board of
Directors. Owing to the coronavirus pandemic, face-to-face engagement was
limited during the year.
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A regular feature of the foundation members’ email update, which was
circulated monthly up until November 2021, is an invitation to attend the
Council of Governors and Board of Directors meetings and to submit any
questions they wish to raise in advance.

Throughout the year, governors have continued to participate in virtual Trust
activities that seek to assure and improve standards of quality and patient
experience and have joined online patient feedback and listening sessions hosted by
the Trust and other health economy stakeholders including the Peoples Network,
Healthier Futures and Healthwatch.

Governor fundraising activities

The Council of Governors’ charity campaign to raise funds for fold-out beds for
the children’s ward at Russells Hall Hospital closed during 2021/2022. The
council is now considering plans for its next fundraising project for 2022/2023.

Lead governor

The lead governor role is designed to assist the Council of Governors where it
may be considered inappropriate for the chairperson, or the deputy chair, to
deal with a particular matter. The lead governor will also provide an
independent link between the Council of Governors and the Board of
Directors.

Mr Fred Allen held the role of lead governor until he reached his end of term of
office in December 2021, having served the maximum of three full terms as
public elected governor for Central Dudley. During the year, nominations were
sought for his successor with Helen Ashby, public elected governor for
Stourbridge, taking up the post in shadow form before becoming lead governor
in December 2021.

How to contact a governor or director

There are several ways Trust members or members of the public can contact
either their governor or a member of the Board of Directors:

» at Council of Governors meetings in public;

« at Board of Directors meetings in public;

» at the Annual Members’ Meeting;

+ at members events; and

+ via the Foundation Trust office on email or by phone.

For dates and times of these meetings and other members’ events, please
visit the members section on the Trust website at www.dgft.nhs.uk or contact
the Foundation Trust office:
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Email dgft.foundationmembers@nhs.net
Telephone (01384) 321124

Write Freepost RSEH-CUZB-SJEG, 2nd Floor, South Block, Russells Hall
Hospital, Pensnett Road, Dudley, DY1 2HQ

Several governors are also happy to be contacted directly and their details can be
obtained using the details above.

NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance Disclosures

» The Trust’s Council of Governors, see pages 92 to 96.

« The Trust’s Board of Directors, see pages 32 to 39.

* Nominations and Remuneration Committee, see page 52.
* Audit Committee, see page 48.

» The Foundation Trust's Membership, see page 86 to 88..

NHS Oversight Framework

NHS Oversight Framework

NHS England and NHS Improvement’s NHS Oversight Framework provides the
framework for overseeing systems including providers and identifying potential
support needs. The framework looks at five national themes:

quality of care, access and outcomes
preventing ill health and reducing inequalities
people

finance and use of resources

leadership and capability.

Based on information from these themes, providers are segmented from 1 to 4,
where 4 reflects providers receiving the most support, and 1 reflects providers with
maximum autonomy. A foundation trust will only be in segments 3 or 4 where it has
been found to be in breach or suspected breach of its licence.

Segmentation

At the time of the last annual report the Trust was subject to Section 31 notices, all of
which have now been lifted by the Care Quality Commission as described in the
Annual Governance Statement.

The Trust has been assigned a segmentation rating of 3 as of 31st March 2022.

Segmentation of 3 or 4 would indicate a trust is, or is likely to be, in breach of its
licence. For more information on how the Trust reviews its governance, risk
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management and systems of internal control see the Annual Governance Statement
at pages 100 to 121.

This segmentation information is the Trust’s position as of 31st March 2022. Current
segmentation information for NHS trusts and foundation trusts is published on the
NHS Improvement website www.england.nhs.uk/publication/nhs-svstem-oversight-
frameworksegmentation/

Statement of the chief executive's responsibilities as the
accounting officer of The Dudley Group NHS Foundation
Trust

The NHS Act 2006 states that the chief executive is the accounting officer of the
NHS foundation trust. The relevant responsibilities of the accounting officer,
including their responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public finances for
which they are answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the
NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by NHS
Improvement.

NHS Improvement, in exercise of the powers conferred on Monitor by the NHS Act
2006, has given Accounts Directions which require The Dudley Group NHS
Foundation Trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the
form and on the basis required by those Directions. The accounts are prepared on
an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of The
Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, other items
of comprehensive income and cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the accounts and overseeing the use of public funds, the Accounting
Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the Department of Health and
Social Care Group Accounting Manual and in particular to:

e observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS Improvement, including the
relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis;

¢ make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

o state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (and the Department of Health
and Social Care Group Accounting Manual) have been followed, and disclose
and explain any material departures in the financial statements;

e ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation,
delegated authorities and guidance;

¢ confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,

balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
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patients, regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS foundation trust’s
performance, business model and strategy; and

e prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and disclose any
material uncertainties over going concern.

The accounting officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS
foundation trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with
requirements outlined in the above-mentioned Act. The accounting officer is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS foundation trust and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

As far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the foundation
trust’s auditors are unaware, and | have taken all the steps that | ought to have taken
to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
entity’s auditors are aware of that information.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the

responsibilities set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer
Memorandum.

Dovomte

Signed: Diane Wake
Chief Executive
Date: 15" June 2022
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Annual Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Accounting Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of
internal control that supports the achievement of the NHS Foundation Trust’s
policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental
assets for which | am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to me. | am also responsible for ensuring that the NHS Foundation Trust is
administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently
and effectively. | also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level
rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of The
Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The
Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31st March 2022 and up to
the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Directors has established committees of the board where they review
the corporate risks to ensure their effective management and mitigations.

In addition, each division of the Trust, through their divisional governance framework,
reports to the Risk and Assurance Group on their management of risks at an
operational level. The group oversees the effective operation of the Trust’s risk
register and provides challenge to the levels of assurance throughout the
organisation. The Risk and Assurance Group meets monthly chaired by the chief
executive and reports into the Quality and Safety Committee.

The Trust has a comprehensive induction and training programme, supplemented by
e-learning training packages and additional learning opportunities for staff.
Collectively, these cover a wide range of governance and risk management topics
for both clinical and non-clinical staff in all disciplines and at all levels in the
organisation.
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Enhanced or additional training is available from the corporate governance team on
aspects of the wider risk management and governance agenda.

The risk and control framework

The Foundation Trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the
CQC.

The Board of Directors provides leadership on the management of risks, determining
the risk appetite for the organisation and ensuring that the approach to risk
management is applied consistently. Through the Board Assurance Framework, the
board determines the total risk appetite the Trust is prepared to accept in the delivery
of its strategic objectives. The board takes its assurance from the Risk and
Assurance Group and its board committees. This incorporates the controls in place
to manage the identified risks to their determined target score and the monitoring of
any required actions where the risk exceeds the board’s appetite for risk in that area.

To ensure a consistent approach, the Trust’s Risk Management Strategy and Policy
provides guidance on the identification and assessment of risk and on the
development and implementation of action plans. Risk identification is clinically
driven and divisions undertake continuous risk assessments to maintain their risk
registers and to implement agreed action plans. Risks are assessed by using a 5x5
risk matrix where the total score is an indicator as to seriousness of the risk. Action
plans to address or manage risks are recorded in the risk register and managed at
divisional and/or board level. Regular reports are submitted to the Risk and
Assurance Group and committees of the board to confirm the progress made in
managing any identified risks.

Each level of management, including the board, reviews the risks and controls for
which it is responsible. The board and board committees monitor the progress
against actions to minimise or mitigate risks in accordance with the Risk
Management Strategy. The strategy was reviewed by the Audit Committee in
September 2020.

Papers received at the Board of Directors meetings and at board committee
meetings identify the risks to the achievement of Trust objectives and their link to the
risk register. The Trust uses a dedicated monitoring system. This records and
monitors all risks across the organisation including the current and targeted mitigated
risk scores and progress against the identified action plans where the risk is above
its target score. Active risk management forms part of the divisional governance
framework with the operational risk registers being a standing item on the Risk and
Assurance Group’s agenda. Positive assurance to date confirms the effectiveness of
the management and control of these identified risks. Action plans are in place to
address any perceived gaps in control or assurance that arise during the year.
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The Board Assurance Framework identifies the key risks to the achievement of the
Trust’s objectives and the assurance mechanisms and it reports on the effectiveness
of the Trust’s system of internal control in those areas. The Board Assurance
Framework was reviewed during the course of the year in order to refresh the
framework to reflect the review of the Trust Strategy that launched in the autumn of
2021 and align to the new strategic goals. This will ensure that the strategic risk
framework reflects changes to the strategic priorities of the Trust.

Each board committee considers the strategic risks that fall within its terms of
reference and the reports are triangulated with the Corporate Risk reports
considered by the committees. The Board Assurance Framework supports this
Annual Governance Statement and is informed by partnership working across the
Black County Sustainability and Transformation Partnership, and through working
with the Dudley Clinical Commissioning Group (part of the Black Country and West
Birmingham CCGs), Council of Governors, and other stakeholders. The Board
Assurance Framework focuses on those key risks to achievement of the Trust’s
objectives; below are the significant issues that have been tracked and reported to
the board and the degree of risk remaining at the end of the year.

The reporting framework requires risks to be identified, on both board and committee
front summary sheets that accompany all reports submitted, providing an ongoing
record of emerging issues which allow the link back to the Board Assurance
Framework and the Corporate Risk Register.

The Trust faced the following maijor risks during the course of the year which
includes clinical and longer term risks:

¢ Inability to discharge patients in a timely manner to support emergency patient
flow and restoration of planned services.

e NHS national level of control of work priorities within provider organisation
through National Escalation Level 4.

e Increased demand and high levels of sickness in our workforce due to
COVID-19 related iliness resulting in the inability to deliver safe, effective
services.

e Reputational and financial damage caused through the CQC court
proceedings.

¢ Financial viability risks caused by legislative changes in the national and local
health economy and in particular the potential implications of the ICP in
Dudley.

e Failure of the IT infrastructure/cyber incident causing widespread operational
capability issues

The Trust was subject to enforcement undertakings in the preceding year that
acknowledged it was in breach of its license conditions. In November 2021, NHS

Improvement and the Licensee agreed that it was not appropriate to continue with
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the undertakings currently in force, due to the passage of time and changes in the
Trust’s circumstances.

The Trust adopts a robust approach to data quality and governance with more
information available on page 112.

The Trust is practising good data security against the National Data Guardians’ 10
data security standards and the Trust completes an annual Data Security and
Protection (DSP) Toolkit to provide assurance. Board assurance is provided by the
Caldicott and Information Governance Group (CIGG); the data protection officer
(DPO), senior information risk owner (SIRO), chief information officer (CIO) and
Caldicott Guardian are core members of this Group.

The Trust also has well established arrangements to monitor quality governance and
improvements in quality. These include the use of performance dashboards, a
clinical and nursing audit programme, the review and monitoring of Nursing Care
Indicators and the robust monitoring against local and national targets for quality
measures including healthcare associated infections (HCAI), pressure ulcers and
falls.

The Trust has further developed its integrated performance report during 2021/2022
and is using Statistical Process Control (SPC) reporting which informs the
effectiveness of our business improvement processes. A consistent base set of data
is used to report to each of the relevant board committees — workforce & staff
engagement, finance and performance, and quality and safety committee, as well as
operationally to the divisions and the executive. Quality dashboards are also
provided for each ward giving visual feedback on quality metric delivery for staff and
patients.

The Trust has a regular programme of Nursing Care Indicator audits, along with the
use of the AMaT auditing tool as a methodology to capture the quality of care given
to patients. The monthly audits of key nursing interventions and associated
documentation are published, monitored and reported to the Board of Directors by
the chief nurse. This is supported by on-going real-time surveys, triangulating the
views of patients and using these to make improvements. The Trust continues to
monitor the standardised hospital mortality ratio (SHMI) to monitor its performance
compared with national levels.

Regular reports on the progress against key quality priorities provide assurance that
these are actively managed and progressed at an operational level. Internal audit
involves external stakeholder partners and provides an independent opinion on the
adequacy of the arrangements for ensuring compliance with the Care Quality
Commission Regulatory Standards.
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Information risks are managed and controlled through the Trust’s established risk
management processes. The Trust has a Caldicott and Information Governance
Group (CIGG), which reports to the Audit Committee, whose remit is to review and
monitor all risks and incidents relating to data security and governance. The Trust’s
Caldicott Guardian, SIRO (director of finance and information) and information
governance manager are members of the CIGG.

The Trust is registered with the Information Commissioner’s Office registration
number Z8909702.

The Trust is working to the Data Security and Protection (DSP) Toolkit which is an
online self-assessment tool that allows organisations to measure their performance
against the National Data Guardian’s 10 data security standards. All organisations
that have access to NHS patient data and systems must use this toolkit to provide
assurance that they are practicing good data security and that personal information
is handled correctly. There are 38 Assertions (33 of which are mandatory and five
non-mandatory) within the Data Security and Protection Toolkit requiring 110
mandatory pieces of evidence. In the June 2021 submission the Trust met all
standards.

All committees of the board are chaired by non-executive directors. The board has
established seven committees each with clear terms of reference which are reviewed
annually to ensure they remain appropriate to support the board.

Committee effectiveness reviews were undertaken by each committee in March
2022 and some amendments to workplans and terms of reference were made as a
result. There are no outstanding actions arising from these reviews.

Each committee chair provides a formal summary of key issues arising from the
committee to the Board of Directors meeting. This summary report provides
information on the assurance received at the committee which supports the Trust’'s
assurance framework and performance reporting ultimately received by the board.

The Trust informs and engages with its key stakeholders in relation to risk through a
number of forums. This includes regular review meetings with the Trust’s regulators
and commissioners and the sharing of performance reports with the Trust’s Council
of Governors. Key stakeholders include local and national politicians, Dudley Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG), our PFI partner Summit Healthcare (Dudley) Ltd, the
Council of Governors, the Foundation Trust (FT) members, patient groups, patients,
the local community and the Local Authority Select Committee on Health and Adult
Social Care.

In response to the governance challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Trust has also adopted additional forms of assurance outside of its formal
decision-making structures. For example, there are regular meetings of non-
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executive directors and the chief executive, that are minuted and ensure that key
operational matters are given additional scrutiny.

Non-executive directors are assigned additional roles and also engage in a variety of
programmed activities to allow them to triangulate information received though
formal meetings. This includes participating in Trust-wide Team Briefs, joining
divisional team meetings, shadowing and volunteering sessions and contributing to a
number of improvement forums.

All directors have completed in-year appraisals that have continued to feed into a
structured Board Development Programme that commenced in April 2021. This will
provide an additional evidence base for the board to identify and focus on the key
challenges over the next 12 months

During 2020/2021, the work of the internal auditors and the board review of the
Board Assurance Framework and supporting governance processes had identified
some gaps in control which resulted in specific action plans being drawn up with their
progress reported to, and monitored by, the Audit Committee:

e Payments to vaccination centre staff

e Nurse staffing finance and workforce data validation

e Governance Framework and the governance arrangements within the
Maternity Department

Management have implemented an action plan to address each of the control areas.

Implementation of the Seven Day Services management recommendations is being
overseen by the Quality and Safety Committee and Internal Audit will have finalised
their reports in respect of charitable funds and procurement; both with substantial
assurance.

None of the gaps had impacted on the final delivery of the Trust’s stated objectives.

The head of internal audit opinion includes an assessment of the Trust’s Risk
Management processes and control framework.

The Audit Committee

Greater detail on the role of the Audit Committee is set out elsewhere in the Annual
Report, however the Audit Committee, comprised of non-executive directors, is
established to provide assurance to the board that there is an effective system of
integrated governance, risk management and internal control across the whole of the
Trust’s activities (both clinical and non-clinical), that supports the achievement of the
Trust’s objectives and that this system is established and maintained.

108



After each of its meetings during the year, the Audit Committee provides a written
report to the Trust board that details the matters discussed, key issues identified and
any items requiring referral to Trust board.

Further, as part of discharging its main functions, the Audit Committee prepares an
annual report for the Trust board and the chief executive as accounting officer of the
Trust and expresses its considered opinion on key aspects of governance based
upon the evidence and assurances it has received.

Workforce safeguards

The Trust regularly reviews progress and delivery against its People Plan (Dudley
People Plan) which is aligned to the NHS People Plan 2020/2021 and the Trust’s
strategic objective for the Trust to be ‘a brilliant place to work and thrive’, including
key workforce development, transformation and wellbeing initiatives. The plan was
approved by the board in November 2020. The plan has five key pillars:

e A workforce for now and in the future

e A caring, kind and compassionate place
e Equality, fairness and inclusion

e Improvement and development culture
¢ Using technology to innovate

The implementation of the plan is overseen by the Workforce and Staff Engagement
Committee, supported by an Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Steering Group, which
is chaired by a non-executive director and also a Health and Wellbeing Steering
Group which is chaired by the Trust’'s Wellbeing Guardian who is a non-executive
director of the Trust.

The main areas of workforce performance including absence rates, vacancy rates,
staff retention, agency spend, appraisal and mandatory training compliance are
reported within the specific Workforce Key Performance Indicator (KPI) Report,
which is also reported to the Board of Directors.

The Trust collates and reviews data every month for a range of workforce metrics,
quality and outcomes indicators and productivity measures. This enables the Trust to
undertake safe workforce planning and delivery against its ambitious People Plan
priorities, including improvements in staff satisfaction and inclusivity. For example, a
range of targeted recruitment campaigns were launched for nursing and healthcare
support workers, there has been continued support and championship for the
development of the Trust’s Inclusion Networks which have expanded their
membership, as well as enhanced staff health and wellbeing packages put in place,
particularly reflecting the extraordinary pressures on staff resulting from the COVID-
19 pandemic.
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The Trust has published on its website an up-to-date register of interests, including
gifts and hospitality, for decision-making staff (as defined by the Trust with reference
to the guidance) within the past 12 months as required by the ‘Managing Conflicts of
Interest in the NHS’ guidance.

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme,
control measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the
scheme regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from
salary, employer’s contributions and payments into the scheme are in accordance
with the scheme rules, and that member pension scheme records are accurately
updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the regulations.

Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under
equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with.

Further information on staff matters is available in the staff section of the Annual
Report.

Failure to remain financially sustainable in 2021/2022 and beyond

For the full duration of 2021/2022, as with the previous year, the NHS was subject to
more centralised command and control to support the national COVID-19 efforts.
This has led to a significant increase in both revenue and capital costs that have
been met from central funds. In addition, there has been a suspension of routine
contracting mechanisms.

Additional resources have been channelled through the Black Country and West
Birmingham Integrated Care System (ICS) and all constituent organisations have
agreed a formal risk share arrangement to manage any additional pressures arising
in individual organisations. The collection of national and local arrangements and
assurances has enabled the Trust to reduce the relevant risk score on the corporate
risk register as the year has progressed.

NHS organisations have been advised that funding for 2022/2023 will be based on
the second half of 2021/2022 and that recovery will be required across all areas with
improvement trajectories referred to as ‘glidepaths’. The Trust’s sustainability going
forward is heavily reliant on two main factors; the prevailing financial framework and
the Trust’s internal ability to recover baseline spend plans to pre-COVID-19 levels
(2019/2-20).

Commitments have been made by central government and mechanisms are being
created by NHS Improvement/England to ensure all resource requirements are
addressed. The Trust continues to support medium term planning objectives to
secure a recurrently financial balanced position. Oversight continues to be provided
by the board and the Finance and Performance Committee. The sheer magnitude of
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the level of increase in spend since 2019/20 indicates that recovery to that level of
spend will prove challenging in the medium term.

Never Events
The Trust has not experienced any Never Events in 2021/2022.
Green Plan

The Trust’s Green Plan was approved by the board in December 2020. Following
formal adoption of the new strategic plan in September 2021, director-level
responsibility of this agenda now sits with the director of finance. The Green Plan
complies with the requirements outlined by NHS England and ensures that its
obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting
requirements are complied with. You can read more about the work we do to provide
our services in a sustainable way on page 87.

Care Quality Commission (CQC)

Following a CQC inspection in January and February 2019, the Trust was rated by
the CQC overall as ‘Requires Improvement’. Urgent and Emergency Care had
originally been rated as ‘Inadequate’ in the safe domain. Following a further review of
Urgent and Emergency Care in February 2021 this improved to ‘Requires
Improvement’. The final Section 31 notice was removed in March 2020. Emergency
Care had an overall ‘Requires Improvement’ rating. Diagnostic imaging was
additionally rated as ‘Inadequate’ at service level, and also on both the safe and well
led domains. The Trust was rated ‘Requires Improvement’ in the well led inspection.

Since March 2018, following the introduction of e-NEWS, e-Sepsis and intensive
work within the Emergency Department and across the whole Trust, mortality
outcomes for sepsis have fallen. In a four year period we have seen 20 per cent less
deaths in hospital.

There is a sepsis team within the Trust and a programme of education for staff. The
Trust has introduced an educational package in relation to the deteriorating patient
which includes patients with sepsis with three different levels of attainment, and ward
area accreditation in respect of the management of the deteriorating patient. More
than 500 of our clinical staff have completed this additional training.

The Trust’s sepsis data demonstrates that the Trust is now performing at target and
in excess of the national average. Nurse staffing has been reviewed by the chief
nurse and safe staffing is reported to the Board of Directors as part of the chief nurse
monthly report.
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The Trust was prosecuted by the CQC for failing to provide safe care and treatment
to two individuals resulting in avoidable harm or a significant risk of avoidable harm
in 2018. At the sentencing hearing in November 2021 the Trust was fined £1.266
million per case, a total fine of £2.5 million to be paid by December 2023.

The Trust has been diligent in learning from the accepted failings and taken actions
to invest in and significantly improve our services; work that continues with the
support of the Dudley Improvement Practice Team.

During the year, the Trust commissioned an external well led review with
assessments made against each of the Care Quality Commission key lines of
enquiry (KLOESs). The report concluded that the organisation had improved its
service delivery and noted the significant progress in developing relationships and
effective clinical leadership. The recommendations to build on the achievements to
date have been incorporated into an action plan to support continued improvement.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources

The extended period of heightened central control in relation to the pandemic
response during the last two years has meant that use of resources has not held as
high a profile within the organisation as in previous years. However, the Trust
continues to benchmark its spend with available metrics including the Use of
Resources framework and Model Hospital. Throughout 2021/2022 the Trust has
continued to review Patient Level Information and Costing System (PLICS) data
locally to provide assurance that the costing data was robust and to identify specific
clinical pathways where the Trust appeared to be an outlier. These were cross
referenced to Getting It Right First Time metrics where available and are being used
to identify where resources can be used more effectively. This has been discussed
at the Financial Improvement Group that has continued to meet monthly.

The Trust has built a long-term financial model which is being constantly updated
with new information as the financial landscape in the NHS changes. This enables
forward planning in the Trust.

The usual operational planning process was suspended in March 2020 to divert
management resources to managing the pandemic. The Board of Directors,
supported by the Finance and Performance Committee, were kept informed of the
changes in the planning and financial regime throughout the year and the Finance
and Performance Committee has reviewed the development of a local productivity
framework based on cost per weighted activity unit.

The in-year resource utilisation is monitored by the board and its committees via a
series of detailed reports covering finance, activity, capacity, human resource
management and risk. Clinical risk assessments are conducted on individual savings
proposals that may impact on the provision or delivery of clinical services. Subject to
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the emergence of the detail of the future financial framework, the Trust is likely to
have a significant underlying financial challenge.

Performance review meetings assess each division’s performance across a full
range of financial and quality matrices which, in turn, form the basis of the monthly
integrated performance report to the Finance and Performance Committee. The
Trust has been assigned a segmentation rating of 3 as at 31st March 2022 with
regard to the NHS Improvement Single Oversight Framework.

The key processes embedded within the Trust to ensure that resources are used
economically, efficiently and effectively, centre around a robust budget setting and
control system which includes activity related budgets and periodic reviews during
the year which are considered by executive directors and the Board of Directors. The
budgetary control system is complemented by Standing Financial Instructions, a
Scheme of Delegation and Financial Approval Limits. This process enables regular
review of financial performance by highlighting areas of concern via variance
analysis. The Finance and Performance Committee also receives a monthly report
showing the Trust’s performance against the block contract and top-up
arrangements that were introduced nationally in 2020/21 as a consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The external auditors also give comment upon this aspect of
the Trust business.

As Accounting Officer, | have overall accountability for delivery of the Annual Plan
and | am supported by the executive directors with delegated accountability and
responsibility for delivery of specific targets and performance objectives. These are
formally reviewed and monitored monthly by the Board of Directors and its
committees. Independent assurance on the use of resources is provided through the
Trust’s internal audit programme, Audit Committee and external agencies such as
NHS Improvement, External Audit and the CQC.

Information governance

The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), as implemented by the UK Data
Protection Act 2018, came into UK law on 25th May 2018. It introduced a duty on all
organisations to report certain types of personal data breach to the relevant
supervisory authority. The Security of Network and Information Systems Directive
("NIS Directive") also requires reporting of relevant incidents to the Department of
Health and Social Care (DHSC) as the competent authority from 10th May 2018.

An organisation must notify a qualifying breach of personal data within 72 hours. If
the breach is likely to result in a high risk to the rights and freedoms of individuals,
organisations must also inform those individuals without undue delay. Those
breaches that also fulfil the criteria of a NIS notifiable incident will be forwarded to
the DHSC where the Secretary of State is the competent authority for the
implementation of the NIS directive in the health and social care sector. The
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Information Commissioner remains the national regulatory authority for the NIS
directive.

The Trust has self-reported to the Information Commissioner on four occasions
during 2021/22. No regulatory action was taken against the Trust in relation to any of
these cases and the learning from the incidents was disseminated through the
Trust’s governance processes.

Annual quality report

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health
Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare quality
accounts for each financial year. NHS Improvement (in exercise of the powers
conferred on Monitor) has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the
form and content of annual quality reports which incorporate the above legal
requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.

During 2020, new guidance was issued in light of the COVID-19 pandemic advising
that there was no requirement for a foundation trust to prepare a quality report and
include it in its annual report for 2019/2020 or any requirement to commission
external assurance on its quality report. Updated guidance issued in January 2021
supported the same arrangements for the following financial years.

The Board of Directors agreed that the 2021/2022 Quality Account will be prepared
and issued as a separate document and confirm that they have taken the following

measures to ensure the Quality Report. Updated guidance has supported the same
arrangements for the financial year 2021/2022.

Governance and leadership

The executive and non-executive directors have a collective responsibility as a board
to ensure that the governance arrangements supporting the Quality Accounts and
Report provide adequate and appropriate information and assurances relating to the
Trust's quality objectives. Board sponsors are nominated for all Quality Priorities
providing visible board leadership of specific quality initiatives.

Whilst the chief executive has overall responsibility for the quality of care provided to
patients, the implementation and co-ordination of the quality framework is delegated
to both the chief nurse and medical director. They have joint responsibility for
reporting to the Board of Directors on the development and progress of the quality
framework, clinical framework and clinical management and for ensuring that the
Quality Improvement Strategy is implemented and evaluated effectively.

114



Policies

High quality organisational documentation are essential tools of effective governance
which will support the Trust to achieve its strategic objectives, operational
requirements and bring consistency to day-to-day practice. A common format and
approved structure for such documents helps reinforce corporate identity, helps to
ensure that policies and procedures in use are current, and reflects an organisational
approach. A standard approach ensures that agreed practice is followed throughout
the organisation. With regard to the development of approved documentation, all
procedural documents are accessible to all staff supporting the delivery of safe and
effective patient care.

Development and reporting of quality indicators and the Quality Account

The systems and processes which support the development of the Quality Accounts
focus on engagement activities with public, patients and staff and utilising the many
media/data capture opportunities available.

This year has seen the Trust continue with the priorities from the previous year which
include patient experience and discharge management. The topics were agreed by
the Board of Directors and the Council of Governors on the basis of their importance
both from a local perspective (eg based on complaints, results of the monitoring of
Quality Indicators) and a national perspective (eg reports from national bodies:
NHSI, CQC findings etc.).

The Trust reviews its Quality Priorities annually and is currently engaging with
governors, staff and members of the public and partner organisations to consult on
the 2022/2023 quality priorities.

People and skills

In addition to the leadership provided by the Board of Directors, clinical divisional
management teams (led by clinical directors and co-ordinated by general managers)
are accountable for and ensure that a quality service is provided within their
respective divisions and areas of authority. They are required to implement the
Quality Improvement Strategy, providing safe, effective and personal care and
ensure that patients have a positive experience and are treated with courtesy,
respect and kindness.

Training opportunities are available for clinical and non-clinical staff and competency
is monitored as part of the Trust’s appraisal system. The Board of Directors ensures
that quality improvement is central to all activities. This is achieved by routine
monitoring, participation in national improvement campaigns, celebrating success
with our staff awards and proactively seeking patient views on our services.
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The Dudley Improvement Practice (DIP) is the Trust’s long-term commitment to
creating a culture of Continuous Improvement. DIP training in improvement
fundamentals is now an integral part of the two in-house leadership training
programmes: Managers’ Essentials and Developing Leaders. The training and post-
training improvement coaching provides our people with the skills and support
needed to complete an improvement project as part of their development portfolio
and achieve DGFT Managers Accreditation.

During 2021, the DIP supported improvement activity with teams along the upper
and lower gastro clinical pathways. This included improvement events and extensive
team support with the gastro ward and the Imaging Department. These departments
had been identified as outliers in the previous year’s staff survey for morale and staff
involvement. In the most recent staff survey, these departments have now become
positive case studies showing clear signs of culture change.

In 2022, the areas that will receive focused support from DIP, Organisational
Development and Human Resources for the full year are Urgent and Emergency
Care (UEC) and Women’s and Children’s Services. This work started in UEC with a
strategic Value Stream Analysis (VSA) event in which multi-disciplinary teams from
the Emergency Department, Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) and Acute
Medicine worked together towards three true north objectives of Collaboration, Flow
and Wellbeing. Progress will be reported quarterly at Trust Management Team
meetings.

Data quality and governance

Data Quality (DQ) Assurance over the various elements of quality, finance and
performance is of key importance to management and the board. Reviews of the
Trust’s system of internal control in respect of data quality are undertaken in each
year through the internal audit work plan.

The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust continues to develop digital and data
services heightening the reliance upon good data quality. Data quality is pivotal to
the Trust’s innovation plans. High levels of data quality are required for modern
analytic techniques and artificial intelligence (Al). When new digital services are
introduced, high data quality must be assured from the outset. We do this by
providing real-time data support tools to allow operational teams to see the impact of
their interventions and interrogate the quality data entry. This is underpinned by open
and transparent engagement with data generators to aid progression of quality
standards.

Our high Digital Data Quality Maturity Index (DQMI) levels have been maintained
and, in some cases, improved despite the obvious challenges of the ongoing
COVID-19 response. Maintaining the normal level of interaction in data quality
groups has been a challenge through the COVID-19 pandemic due to operational
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pressures and clinical priorities. The Data Quality and Standards Group provides
assurance oversight, knowledge sharing and escalate decision points by direct
engagement with information asset owners, operational teams and executive
directors.

Despite various changes to the national mandates of performance we continued to
monitor and report on key performance metrics, ensuring patients were cared for
appropriately. Particular focus was given to restoration and recovery of services as
we navigate elective care recovery and continued COVID-19 pandemic response.
Close monitoring of time sensitive care needs is being delivered to meet the national
priorities.

This year the health informatics portfolio team has embedded the data relationship
manager (DRM) role into the Trust. These key roles are seen as the translators of
data analytics into insight that can be acted upon by operational teams. These
subject matter experts coach clinical and operational colleagues through their data,
data quality and what it means in practice. The data relationship managers also
listen to the needs of the operational teams to support evidence-based decision
making. Data relationship managers are aligned with divisions of the Trust and part
of their role is to help identify, understand and influence opportunities to improve
data quality and promote the impact it has on organisational performance, patient
care and safety. Throughout the year the DRMs have worked closely across all
divisions of the Trust to help operational and clinical colleagues articulate and
understand the issues and decisions they face. Through this approach we have seen
significant improvements in the oversight and assurance available to all levels.

The Trust’s IT Department (Terafirma) maintains ISO27001 accreditation, holds
Cyber Essentials (CE) certification and has achieved 100 per cent compliance with
regards to the NHSD Data Security Protection (DSP) Toolkit and Data Guardian
Standards. Our approach to delivering data security is defined in the Trust board
approved Cyber Security Strategy which identifies the key data security and
protection risks including but not limited to; supply chain compromise (SCC),
business email compromise (BEC) and the Internet of Things (loT).

The Trust has implemented sophisticated technology solutions and controls including
data leak protection (DLP), advanced threat protection (ATP), geo-referencing and
secure domain firewalling to address key data security risks and continues to invest
in new technologies and solutions to provide further assurance. In the constantly
evolving technology and cyber workspace, the Trust maintains its commitment to
provide robust assurances and delivery plans to further enhance our controls and
ensuring alignment with the Network and Security Systems (NIS) Directive.

As the Trust continues to increase the deployment of digital workflows to support
clinical and operational activities, the technology solutions which have been
implemented continue to provide significant assurance; however, workforce remains
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a risk in terms of an access point for a major cyber attack. This is due to a number of
factors including human response which may, for example, increase susceptibility to
attempted phishing attacks.

Staff cyber awareness is a key focus for 2022 with the introduction of Trust wide
Cyber Awareness training, regular scheduled staff awareness campaigns and the
introduction of Cyber Bulletins.

This financial year has seen a strong commitment from the board to invest in modern
technologies and Public Cloud infrastructure in accordance with national policy
recommendations. These modern tools enhance the speed, access and availability
of digital-data services to our population and workforce alike. Simultaneously, the
technology add layers of protection, security and service resilience to the Trust’s
clinical services.

The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust’s head of cybersecurity and IT governance
currently chairs the Black Country Integrated Care System cybersecurity sub-group.
In this role, the Trust has developed and influenced a collaborative knowledge
sharing network between local experts to meet the challenges of modern healthcare
IT delivery and the amplified cyberthreat landscape that COVID-19 has presented. In
addition, the Trust’s Digital, Data and Technology Directorate has provided expertise
and support to partner organisations within the system in Root Cause Analysis
(RCA) to support the commitment to data confidentiality, integrity and accessibility.

Review of effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control is informed by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the
executive managers and clinical leads within the NHS Foundation Trust who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control
framework. | have drawn on performance information available to me. My review is
also informed by recommendations received as part of the Trust commissioned Well-
Led review by an external party, comments made by the external auditors in their
ISA 260 report and other reports. | have been advised on the implications of the
result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the board,
the Audit Committee, Risk and Governance Committee and Quality and Safety
Committee, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement
of the system is in place.

The Board Assurance Framework and the Trust’s risk management arrangements
provide me with evidence that the controls to manage the risks to the Trust achieving
its principal objectives have been reviewed and are effective. My review is also
informed by the work of external and independent assessors and advisors including
the Care Quality Commission.

118



During 2021/2022, the work of the internal auditors and the board’s review of the
Board Assurance Framework and supporting risk management and governance
processes, had identified some internal control weaknesses and perceived gaps in
control which have been reported as part of the Trust’s routine and ongoing
monitoring arrangements.

Specifically, whilst not significant issues in themselves, Internal Audit identified some
internal control weaknesses in regard to audits in the areas of:

e Payments to vaccination centre staff

¢ Nurse staffing finance and workforce data validation

e Governance Framework and the governance arrangements within the
Maternity Department

Management have implemented action plans in respect of each of these areas and
progress on the implementation of the recommendations of Internal Audit is being
overseen by the Audit Committee. Some planned completion dates have been
impacted by the need to divert resources to the management of the COVID-19
pandemic and this has required an extension to these dates, which has also been
scrutinised and approved by the committee.

The Trust complies with the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance with the aim
to deliver effective corporate governance, contribute to better organisational
performance and ultimately discharge our duties in the best interests of patients.

Counter fraud provisions are in place in line with the NHS Counter Fraud Authority
(NHSCFA) Standards. The Trust complies with its responsibilities to fully implement
a Code of Conduct that includes reference to fraud, bribery and corruption and the
requirements of the Bribery Act 2010. The effectiveness of the implementation of the
process and staff awareness of the requirements of the code is regularly tested.

The Head of Internal Audit opinion stated that the Trust has an ‘adequate and
effective framework for risk management, governance and internal control. However,
our work has identified further enhancements to the framework of risk management,
governance and internal control to ensure that it remains adequate and effective’.

However, none of the identified weaknesses were deemed to be significant in terms
of the overall systems of internal control of the Trust.

EU exit

The UK left the EU on 315t January 2020 and the transition period expired on 318t
December 2020. The Trust has not experienced any issues relating to exiting the
EU.
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COVID-19

On 16t March 2020, the Government announced additional measures to seek to
reduce the spread of coronavirus across the country. The NHS has been dealing
with the pandemic since this date. Currently the NHS is working with a Level 4
National Incident and directions continue to be issued to all acute trusts to recover
and restore services to pre-pandemic levels. There has been a national delivery plan
published to tackle the backlogs of COVID-19 in elective care.

The Trust is now working through implementation of these plans.

The NHS is reviewing social distancing and mitigations in place to improve capacity
capability at acute hospitals. The Trust continues to follow restoration of services in
the following way:

Priority 1: Urgent and cancer patients
Priority 2: Long waiting patients
Priority 3: Routine patients

The Trust had committed to achieving the following trajectories in relation to
achieving pre-COVID-19 activity level:

e Activity increase of 30 per cent by March 2025

o Zero 104 week waits by July 2022

e Zero 78 week waits by April 2023

e Zero 65 week waits by March 2024

e Zero 52 week waits by March 2025

e Cancer 62 day target achieved by March 2023

e Cancer 28 faster diagnosis achieved by March 2024
e DMO1 Target to achieve 95 per cent by March 2025

The Finance and Performance Committee and the board have continued to oversee
operational performance in relation to both COVID-19, and restoration and recovery
plans. The board has also closely monitored infection prevention and control through
a monthly assurance framework. This will continue to monitor against the above
trajectories.

COVID-19 vaccination programme

In December 2020 The Dudley Group took on the role of lead employer for the Black
Country and West Birmingham Integrated Care System (ICS) vaccination
programme. This involves:

e Assessing workforce demand for the ICS vaccination programme, across the
different delivery models and develop supply channels;
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¢ Recruiting, onboarding, training and deploying the workforce to undertake
roles in the various delivery models for the ICS, including establishing banks
of current staff to deploy as required, liaising with local agencies and NHS
Trust banks to secure shifts and the employment of new staff;

e Establishing and overseeing a single rostering system across the ICS;

e Liaising with national supply routes to seek additional staff from national
suppliers;

e Liaising with the regional Workforce Bureau and Regional Vaccination
Operation Centre, including providing KPI and performance reporting;

e Arranging payment to staff; and

e Liaising with volunteers.

The Black Country and West Birmingham Employment Bureau has been recognised
as a highest performing bureau, having recruited a vaccination workforce of over 5,000
additional bank staff, with high average shift fill rates.

Governance of the vaccine programme is through the ICS Programme Board and
internally through the Trust’s Finance and Performance Committee and ultimately
the Trust Board.

Conclusion

My review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control has
confirmed that:

e The Trust has a generally sound system of internal control designed to meet
the organisation’s objectives and that controls are generally being applied
consistently.

e Based on the work undertaken by a range of assurance providers, there were
no significant control issues identified during 2021/2022.

e | confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
patients, regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS Foundation Trust’'s
performance, business model and strategy.

e We prepare the financial statements on a ‘going concern’ basis.

e Where improvements had been recommended, especially those made by the
CQC within their section 31 notices, we have acted on them and tracked their
implementation at both management and board/committee level.

| therefore, believe that the Annual Governance Statement is a balanced reflection of
the actual control position in place within the year.
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Docomre

Signed: Diane Wake
Chief Executive
Date: 16 June 2022
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of
the accounts

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare
accounts for each financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of the
Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Trust and of the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and
cash flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, directors are required to:

e apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of
State with the approval of the Treasury,

e make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent, and

o state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose
the position of the Trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with
requirements outlined in the above mentioned direction of the Secretary of State.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Trust and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities. The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they
have complied with the above requirements in preparing the accounts.

By order of the board

Dromte

Diane Wake
Chief Executive
Date: 15 June 2022
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Signed: Kevin Stringer
Director of Finance
Date: 16 June 2022
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Independent auditor's report to the Council of Governors of the Dudley Group
NHS Foundation Trust

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust
(the “Trust’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2022,
which comprise the Consolidated and Foundation Trust Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and Foundation Trust Statements of Financial
Position, Consolidated and Foundation Trust Statements of Changes in Taxpayers'
and Others' Equity, Consolidated and Foundation Trust Statements of Cash Flows
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Accounts Directions issued under Schedule 7 of the National
Health Service Act 2006, as interpreted and adapted by the Department of Health
and Social Care Group accounting manual 2021 to 2022.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Trust as at
31 March 2022 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Trust’s
expenditure and income for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards as interpreted and adapted by the Department of Health and Social
Care Group accounting manual 2021 to 2022; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health
Service Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020)
(“the Code of Audit Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the group and the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Accounting Officer’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the group’s and the Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
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draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the group or the Trust to cease to continue as
a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Accounting Officer’s conclusions, and in accordance with the
expectation set out within the Department of Health and Social Care Group
accounting manual 2021 to 2022 that the group and Trust’s financial statements
shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks
associated with the continuation of services provided by the group and Trust. In
doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of
financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom
(Revised 2020) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector
entities. We assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the
group and Trust and the group and Trust’s disclosures over the going concern
period.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the group’s and the Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Accounting Officer’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate.

The responsibilities of the Accounting Officer with respect to going concern are
described in the ‘Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and Those Charged with
Governance for the financial statements’ section of this report.

Other information

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of
Audit Practice
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Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020
on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are
required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply
with the disclosure requirements set out in the NHS foundation trust annual reporting
manual 2021/22 or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are
aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual
Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily
addressed by internal controls.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the parts of the Remuneration Report and the Staff Report to be audited have
been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Accounts Directions issued under
Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act 2006; and

e based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Trust, the other information published
together with the financial statements in the annual report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

e we issue a report in the public interest under Schedule 10 (3) of the National
Health Service Act 2006 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we refer a matter to the regulator under Schedule 10 (6) of the National Health
Service Act 2006 because we have reason to believe that the Trust, or an officer
of the Trust, is about to make, or has made, a decision which involves or would
involve the incurring of unlawful expenditure, or is about to take, or has begun to
take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and
likely to cause a loss or deficiency.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and Those Charged with
Governance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Executive’s responsibilities as
the accounting officer set out on page(s) 102 to 104, the Chief Executive, as
Accounting Officer, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in
the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Directions included in the NHS
foundation trust annual reporting manual 2021/22, for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Accounting Officer determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Accounting Officer is responsible for
assessing the group’s and the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Accounting Officer has been informed by the
relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Trust and the group without the
transfer of the services to another public sector entity.

The Audit Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those Charged with
Governance are responsible for overseeing the group and Trust’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’'s
report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to
detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to
the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material
misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected, even though the
audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK).

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud is detailed below:

e We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are
applicable to the group and Trust and determined that the most significant which
are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements are those
related to the reporting frameworks (international accounting standards and the
National Health Service Act 2006, as interpreted and adapted by the Department
of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2021 to 2022).

e We enquired of management and the Audit Committee, concerning the group and
Trust’s policies and procedures relating to:
— the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;
— the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

— the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-
compliance with laws and regulations.
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o We enquired of management, internal audit and the Audit Committee, whether
they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or
whether they had any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

e We assessed the susceptibility of the group and Trust’s financial statements to
material misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating
management's incentives and opportunities for manipulation of the financial
statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of management override of
controls. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to:

— journal entries that altered the Trust’s financial performance for the year;

— potential management bias in determining accounting estimates, especially in
relation to:

— the calculation of the valuation of the Trust’s land and buildings; and

— accruals of income and expenditure at the end of the financial year.

e Our audit procedures involved:

— evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place
to prevent and detect fraud;

— journal entry testing, with a particular focus on significant journals at the end of
the financial year which impacted on the Trust’s financial performance;

— challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its
significant accounting estimates in respect of property, plant and equipment
valuations;

— assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as
part of our procedures on the related financial statement item.

e These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently
more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also,
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become
aware of it.

e The team communications in respect of potential non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, including the potential for fraud in revenue and/or
expenditure recognition, and the significant accounting estimates related to
related to the valuations of the Trust’s land and buildings.

e Assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities
of the group and Trust’'s engagement team, and component auditors, included
consideration of the engagement team's and component auditor’s;

— understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar
nature and complexity through appropriate training and participation

— knowledge of the health sector and economy in which the group and Trust
operates
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— understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the group
and Trust including:

— the provisions of the applicable legislation
— NHS Improvement’s rules and related guidance
— the applicable statutory provisions.

¢ In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an
understanding of:

— The group and Trust’s operations, including the nature of its income and
expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand
the classes of transactions, account balances, financial statement consolidation
processes, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that
may result in risks of material misstatement.

— the group and Trust's control environment, including the policies and
procedures implemented by the group and Trust to ensure compliance with the
requirements of the financial reporting framework.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — the Trust’s arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception — the Trust’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion,
we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Trust has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Our work on the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work
will be reported in our commentary on the Trust’s arrangements in our Auditor’'s
Annual Report. If we identify any significant weaknesses in these arrangements, they
will be reported by exception in a further auditor’s report. We are satisfied that this
work does not have a material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer

The Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the
Trust's resources.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Trust’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under paragraph 1 of Schedule 10 of the National Health Service
Act 2006 to be satisfied that the Trust has made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to
consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust's arrangements
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for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are
operating effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having
regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in December
2021. This guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper
arrangements’. When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice
requires auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements under three
specified reporting criteria:

¢ Financial sustainability: how the Trust plans and manages its resources to
ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

e Governance: how the Trust ensures that it makes informed decisions and
properly manages its risks; and

e Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Trust uses
information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages
and delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Trust has in place for each
of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our
risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’'s Annual Report. In undertaking our
work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant
weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Delay in certification of
completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Dudley
Group NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with
the requirements of Chapter 5 of Part 2 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and
the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed our work on the Trust’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, in
accordance with Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust's Council of Governors
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust's Council of Governors as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

M C Stocks

Mark Stocks, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor
Birmingham

22 June 2022:
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Independent auditor’s report to the Council of Govermnors of the Dudley
Group NHS Foundation Trust

In owr auditor's report issued on 22 June 2022, we explained that we could not formally conclude the
audit and issue an audit certificate for the Trest for the year ended 31 March 2022, in accordance with
the requirements of Chapter 5 of Part 2 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code of Audit
Practice, until we had completed our work on the Trust's armngements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources. We have now completed this work, and the results of cur work
are st out below.

Opinion on the financial statements

In owr auditor's report for the year ended 31 March 2022 issued on 22 June 2022 we reported that, in
cur opinicn the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Trust as at 31 March 2022
and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Tnest's expenditure and income for the year then
ended;

=+ have been properfy prepared in accordance with infemational accounting standards as interpreted
and adapted by the Department of Health and Social Care Growp accounting manual 2021 o 2022,
and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Sensice Act 2006

Mo matters have come to our attention since that date that would have a material impact on the financial
staternents on which we gawe this opinion.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - the Trust's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception — the Trust's ammangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice. we are required to report to you i, in our opinion, we have not been
able to satisfy ourselves that the Trust has made proper amangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2022,

We have nothing to report in respect of the abowe matter except on 2% Septernber 2022 we identified a
significant weakness in how the Trust plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to
delver its services. This was in relation to the Trust being unable to demonsirate that they had adequate
savings plans in place to break even in 2022723, thus putting significant pressure on their finances. We
recommended that the Trust identify all cost mprovement programmes needed to meet the savings
target, agree them with relevant budget leads and assess their impact on service quality.

Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer

The Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, is responsible for putting in place proper amangements for
secunng econcmy, efficiency and effectivensss in the use of the Trust's resources.

Auditor's responsibilities for the review of the Trust's amangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are reguired under paragraph 1 of Schedule 10 of the Nafional Health Service Act 2006 to be
satisfied that the Trust has made proper amangements for secuning economy, efficiency and
effectivensss in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether
all aspects of the Trust's amangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources are operating effectively.

We have underaksn ocwr review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the
guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in December 2021. This guidance sefs out the
arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper amangements’. When reporting on these
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ammangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria;

#  [Financial sustainability: how the Trust plans and manages its resources to ensure it can
continue to delfver its services;

»  Gowvemnance: how the Trust ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its
risks; and

#  |mproving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Trust uses information abowt its
costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

We have documented our understanding of the arrangements the Trust has im place for each of these
three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support ouwr risk assessment and
commentary in our Auditor's Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we have considered whether thers
is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in amangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Audit certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the Dudley Group MHS Foundation Trust for the year
ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the requirements of Chapter § of Part 2 of the Mational Health
Service Act 2008 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, in accordance with
Schedulkz 10 of the Mational Health Service Act 2008, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Trust's Council of Govemors those matters we are reguired to state o them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust's Council of Governors as a body, for

our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

M O Stocks

Mark Stocks, Key Audit Parmer
for and on behalf of Gramt Thomton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Birmingham

B September 2022
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Foreword to the Accounts

These accounts for the period 15t April 2021 to 315t March 2022 have been prepared
by The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and
25 of Schedule 7 to the NHS Act 2006 and are presented to Parliament pursuant to
Schedule 7, paragraph 25 (4) (a) of the National Health Service Act 2006.

i R

Signed: Diane Wake
Chief Executive
Date: 15" June 2022
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Consolidated and Foundation Trust Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Group

Year Ended  Year Ended

Foundation Trust

Year Ended ‘Year Ended

Note 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
22 2021 2022 2021
E£000 £000 E£'D00 £'000
Operating Income from patient care activities 3 458,681 402,080 481,625 402,080
Other Operating Income 4 58,210 40,351 36,968 48,666
Total Operating Income from continuing operations 518,891 451 444 518,593 450,756
©Operating Expenses from continuing cperations 5 (502.543) (436.031) (502,483) (435,790)
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 16,348 15,410 16,130 14,966
Finance Costs
Finance income ) 54 31
Finance expense - financial liabilities 0 (11.864) (11,785)
PDC Dividends payable [} (1474} (2,764}
Net Finance Costs (14,478) (13,384) (14,528) (132,438)
Gain/(loss) of disposal of assets 13 [u] 25 o 25
Corporation tax expense 11 {38} (35} o a
Surplusi{Deficit) for the year from continuing operations 1,834 2,016 1,602 1,553
SURPLUS/DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 1,834 2,016 1,602 1,553
Other comprehensive incomeli(expense)
Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:
Impairments 13 [u] (223) o (223)
Revaluations i3 5221 2287 5221 2,287
Fair value gains/{losses) cn equity instruments designated at FV through OCI 14 64 218 o 1]
Other reserve movements (4] 1 (1 1
May be reclassified to income and expenditure where certain conditions are met:
Fair Value gains/{losses) on financial assets mandated at fair value through OCI 14 4] o o a
TOTAL COMFREHENSIVE INCOME / (EXFENSE) FOR THE YEAR 7418 4,300 5,822 3,618

The notes on pages 5 to 48 form part of these accounts.

All income and expenditure is derived from continuing operations.

There are no Nen-Controlling Interests in the Group. therefore the surplus for the year of £1,834,000 (2020/21 surplus of £2.016,000 and the Total Comprehensive
Income of £7, 118,000 (2020/21 Total Comprehensive Income of £4,300.000) is wholly atributable to the Trust
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Consolidated and Foundation Trust Statements of Financial Position

4a at 31 March 2022

Group Foundation Trust
Hote 3 Mamh 31 Mamh 3 March 31 Mamch
2022 2021 20x2 2021
Non-cument assets £000 £'000 £7000 £'000
Inznglble assets 12 5540 10,406 5,540 10,405
Propesty, plant and equipment i3 21,342 199,695 21,342 100,855
Omer Investimenisfnancial assets 14 1,468 1405 o 1]
Recatvables 16 14,345 13,736 14,945 13,735
Total non-current asssts 237399 235443 235930  Z:,038
current asaets
Inveniones 15 3,865 3,775 3612 3459
Recatvables 16 14,685 8,656 14.4M 8,653
Omer Investimenisfnancial assets 14 500 s00 o 1]
Mon-cument assets for sales and assets held In disposal groups 13 1,000 1] 1,000 1]
Cash and cash eguivalents 17 25,166 19,307 23,736 17,528
Total current asssts 45,216 32438 47819 30,040
Current Nabilities
Trade and other payables B (42782  (35.444) [42,655)  (35,094)
Ecmowings 9 537 (5,206 537) (5,206)
Provisions 0 (307 {1,239) (307 {1,239}
omer liabilltles 1 1-3.0£0] 7.263) 13,0400
Total current lkabilldes [55,685) 44 620]) 55,568 44 550)
Total assats less current Nabiities: 226,320 212952 223,181 205,509
Non-cument labllldes
Trade and other payables B i 2.571) i
Ecmowings 9 {110,095) {106,063) (110,095)
Prowisions 20 530]) 493 539}
TET, i 10a 1597 TET, i
Total non-current lisbilitiss (110,534} fo=.155) (110,834
Total sssats employsd 107,358 114,022 98.515
Financad by
Taxpayers' equity
Publlc Dividend Capfial 57,852 49207 57,892 48,207
Revaluaton resare 31,050 25,630 31,050 25,830
Income and expandiure resene 26,268 24,511 25,080 23478
Others’ aquity
Charitable Fund reserves 2,551 2410 1] 1]
Total Taxpayers' and Others' equity NTTEL 101,858 14,082 58515

The notes on pages 5 bo 46 form part of thase accounts.

The firancial statements on pages 3 to 46 were approved Dy the Board of Directors and authorisad for Isswe on thelr behalfl by
P P

Diane Wake
Chiisf Exacutive
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Taxpayers' and Others’ Equity at 1 April 2020
Surplus [ (Deficit) for the year

Transfers between reserves

Met Impairments

Revaluations - property, plant and equipment
Fair value gainsi(] ) on equity i

lidated and E d

Trust St;

FV through OCI
Public Dividend Capital Received
Other reserve movements

Consolidation adjustment
Taxpayers' and Others” Equity at 31 March 2021

Taxpayers' and Others’ Equity at 1 April 2021
Surplus [ (Deficit) for the year

Transfers between reserves

Met Impairments

Revaluations - property, plant and equipment
Fair value gainsi(] ) on equity i

FV through OCI

Public Dividend Capital Received

Public Dividend Capital Repaid

Other reserve movements

Consolidation adjustment

Taxpayers' and Others” Equity at 31 March 2022

The notes on pages 5 to 48 form part of these accounts.

for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

of Changes in Taxpayers® and Others' Equity

Group Foundation Trust
.. Taxpayers' Equity ... ... Taxpayers' Equity ............
Total -

Public Dié\dgnd Revaluation ;m:ﬁ: " Charitable  Taxpayers' Div'i:':": Revaluation g‘;’;’::lir:g Twa::i',
apital Reserve [ Fund Reserves  and oEtzEr:y Capital Ressrve Reserve Equity
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000

29,555 23,765 22810 1878 Te.008 28,555 23,765 21,925 75.245
[/} [/} 1,658 381 2,016 o o 1,553 1,553

[/} [/} o o o o o [/} [/}

0 (223) 0 0 (223) 0 {223) 0 (223)

[/} 2287 o o 2,287 o 2287 [/} 2287

[/} [/} o 218 218 o o [/} [/}
19,852 [/} o o 10,652 10,652 o [/} 19,852
o 1 a o 1 a 1 o 1

['] ['] 48 (48) o a a ['] [']
49.207 25830 24,511 2410 101,958 43207 25.830 23.478 98.515
49.207 25.830 24511 2410 101.958 49.207 25830 23.478 98.515
[/} [/} 1.710 124 1,834 o o 1,602 1,602

[/} [/} o o o o o [/} [/}

[/} [/} o o o o o [/} [/}

[/} 521 o o 521 o 5221 [/} 5221

[/} [/} o 64 64 o o [/} [/}
8,685 [/} o o B.BBS B.BBS o [/} 8,685
[/} [/} o o o o o [/} [/}

0 3] 0 0 {1 0 (1) 0

0 0 47 47) 0 a a 0 0
57.892 3050 26.268 2591 7761 57.892 31.050 235.080 114,022
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Consolidated and Foundation Trust Statements of Changes in Taxpayers' and Others' Equity

Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (FD'C) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the
predecessor MHS organisation. Additional POC may also be issusd to trusts by the Department of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflacting the cost of
capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health as the public dividend capital dividend.

Rewvaluation reserve

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse impairments
previcusly recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income. Subsequent dewnward movements in asset valuations
are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the dowmward movement represents a clear consumption of
aconomic benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the trust.

Charitable funds reserve

This reserve comprises the ring-fenced funds held by the Dudley Group MHS Foundation Trust Charity consolidated within these financial statements.

These reserves comprise Unrestricted Funds £2.238.000 (2020/21 £1,882,000) of which £1.685,000 (2020/21 £1,887.000) have been designated for specific
purposes, Restricted Funds £312,000 (2020721 £528,000) and Endowment Funds £nil (2020/21 £nil). Unrestricted Funds comprise those funds that the
Trustee is free to use for any purpose in furtherance of the Charity objectives, Restricted Funds are specific appeals for funds or donations where legal
restrictions have been imposed by the Donor, and Endowment Funds are held as capital by the Charity to generate income for charitable purposes but cannot
themselves be spent.
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Consolidated and Foundation Trust Statements of Cash Flows

for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Group Foundation Trust
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Operating surplus/{deficit) from continuing operations 16,348 15.410 16,130 14,868
Operating surplusi{deficit) 16,348 15410 16,130 14,966
Non-cash income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation 11.011 0,374 0.374
Impairments and Reversals 1,877 i] o
Income recognised in respect of capital donations (cash and non-cash) (228) (1.245) {1.245)
(Increase)Decrease in trade and other receivables (7.447) 15.724 16712
Increasel[Decrease) in other assels i o
(Increase)Decrease in inventories (90} (283)
Increasel(Decrease) in trade and other payables 11,860 (2,049}
Increasel|Decrease) in other liabilities 4,249 522
Increasel(Decrease) in provisions (1.332) 1,144
Movements in charitable fund working capital {10} (
Corporation Tax (paid) f received (36}
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS 36,304
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 13 ] 13 ]
Purchase of financial assets [u] o 1] o
Proceeds from sales of financial assets i o i} [u]
Furchase of intangible assets (1.010) (1.885) [ ] (1.865)
Proceeds from sales of intangible assets [u] o [u]
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (19,232) (22.098) (18,232)
Proceeds from sales of Property, Plant and Equipment o 180 1]
MHS Charitable funds - cash flows from investing activities 51 54 0
HNet cash generated from/{used in) investing activities (20,178) (24.711) (20,228)
Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received 8,885 19,652 8,685 19,852
Public dividend repaid [u] o
Capital element of PF| Obligations (5.250) (5.518)
Other Interest i o
Interest element of PF1 Obligations (11,785) (11.864)
PDC Dividend paid (1.907) (1.819)
Met cash generated from/{used in) financing activities i10,287) 351
Increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,859 14,170
Cash and Cash equivalents at 1 April 19.307 5.137 17.928
Cash and Cash equivalents at 31 March 25,166 19,307 23,736

The notes on pages 5 to 46 form part of these accounts.

139



1. Accounting Policies and Other Information

NHS Improvemnent, in exercising the statutory funetions conferred on Menitor, has directed that the financial statements. of MHS
foundation Trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) Group
Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the DHSC Group Accounting Manual 2021-22, issued by the Department of Health and
Social Care. The accounting policies contaned in the GAM follow Intemational Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that
they are meaningful and appropriate to the MHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting
Advisory Board. Where the DHSC Group Accounting Manual pemmits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is
judged to be most appropriate to the particular crcumstances of the NHS Fouwndation Trust for the purpose of giving a true and
fair view has been selected The particular policies adopted are described below. These hawe been applied consistently in
dealing with items considered matenal i relation fo the accounts.

Going Concern

The Foundation Trust's annual report and accounts have been prepared on a geing concem basis.

Intemational Accounting Standard 1 requires the Boand to assess, as part of the accounts preparation process, the Growp and
Trust's abdity to contnue as a going concem. Non-trading entities in the public secior are assumed to be going concems whene
the continued provision of senvice in the future s anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that senvice in
published docurments.

The financial statements shoukd be prepared on a going concem basis unless thers are plans for, or no realistic allemative
other than, the dissclution of the Group and Trust without the transfer of its senices to another entity within the public sector. in
prepanng the financial statements, the Board of Direciors has considered the Group's and Trusts owerall financial position
against the requirements of l1AS1. After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the senvices
provided by the MHS foundation Trust will continue to be provided by the public sector for the foreseeable future. For this
rexson, the directors have adopted the going concem basis in preparing the accounts, following the definition of going concem
in the public sector adopted by HM Treasury's Financial Reporting Manual.

Accounting Convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historcal cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property,
plant and eguipment, intanglble assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilties.

1.1 Consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Trust and all of its subsidiary undertakings made up
to 31st March 2022, The income, expenses, assets, liabilities, equity and reserves of the subsidiaries have been consolidated
intx thie Trust's financial statements and Group financial statements have been prepared.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiary enfities are those which the Foundation Trust is exposed 1o, or has rights to, vanable retums from its involvernent
with the entity and has the ability to affect tose retums through its power over the entity. The income, expenses, assets,
liabdities, equity and resenves of subsidiaries are consolidated in full into the appropriate financial staternent lines. The amounts
consolidated are drawn from the published financial statements of the subsidianies for the year. Where subsidianies” accounting
poficies are not aligned with those of the Foundation Trust then amounts are adjusted during consolidation where the
diffierences are material Inter-entity balances, fransactions and gainslosses are eliminated in full on consobidation. Dudley
Clinical Senvices Limited is a subsidiany of the Tnest

NHS Charitable Fund

The NHS Foundation Trust is the corporate trustee to The Dudley Group MHS Foundation Trust Charity. The Foundation Trust
has assessed its relationship to the charitable fund and determined it to be a subsidiary because the Foundation Trest is
exposad to, or has rights to, variable retums and ofher benefits for itself, patients and staff from its invodeement with the
charitable fund and has the ability to affect those retums and other benefits through s power over the fund_

The charitable fund’s statutory accownts are prepared to 31st March in aceordance with the UK Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP) which is based on UK Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102. On consolidation, necessary
adpustments are made io the chanty's assets. liakilites and transactions fo:

- recognise and measure them in accordance with the Foundation Trust's accounting polices; and

- eliminate intra-Group transactions, balancas, gains and losses.
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information {continued)
1.2 Revenue

In the application of IFRS 15 a number of practical expedients offered in the Standard have been employed. These are as
follows:

- As per paragraph 121 of the Standard the Foundation Trust will not disclose information regarding performance
obligations part of a contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less,

- The Foundatiom Trust is to similary not disclose information where the revenue is recognised in line with the
practical expedient offered in paragraph B16 of the Standard where the right to consideration comresponds directly
with the value of the performance completed to date.

- The GAM has mandated the exercise of the practical expedient offered in C7 (a) of the Standard that requires the
Foundation Trust to reflect the aggregate effect of all contracts modified before the date of initial application.

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM expands the definition of a
contract to include legislation and regulations which enables an entity to receive cash or anather financial asset that is not
classified as a tax by the Office of Mational Statistics (ON3).

Rewvenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) perfformance obligations are satisfied by transfeming
promised goods'services to the customer and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated o those performance
cbligations. At the year end, the Trust accrues income relating o performance obligations satisfied in that year. Where the
Trust's entitlerment to consideration for those goods or services is unconditional a contract receivable will be recognised. Where
entittement to consideration is conditional on a further factor other than the passage of time, a contract asset will be recognised.
Where consideration received or receivable relates to a perfformance obligation that is to be satisfied in a future period, the
income is deferred and recognised as a contract liability.

The main source of income for the Foundation Trust is contracts with commissioners for healthcare services. In 2021722 and
2020021, the majority of the trust's income from MHS commissioners was in the form of block contract arangements. The trust
received block funding from its commissioners where funding envelopes are set at a Integrated Care System level. For the first
half of the 2020421 comparative year these blocks were set for individual MHS providers directly, but the revenue recognition
principles are the same. The related performance obligation is the delivery of healthcare and related services during the perod,
with the trust's entitlement to consideration not varying based on the levels of activity performed. The Trust also receives
additicnal income cutside of the block payments to reimburse specific costs incurred and, in 2020/21, other income top-ups o
support the delivery of services. Reimbursement and top-up income is accounted for as varable consideration.

In 2021/22, the Elective Recowvery Fund enabled systems to earn income linked to the achievemnent of elective activity targets
including funding any increased use of independent sector capacity. Income earned by the system is distributed between
individual entities by local agreement. Income earmed from the fund is accounted for as vanable consideration.

Rewvenue from Research contracts

Where research contracts fall under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised as and when performance obligations are satisfied. For
some contracts, it is assessed that the revenue project constitutes one performance obligation over the course of the multi-year
contract. In these cases it is assessed that the Trust's interim performance does not create an asset with altemative use for the
Trust, and the Trust has an enforceable right to payment for the performance completed to date. It is therefore considered that
the performance obligation is satisfied owver time, and the Trust recognises revenue each year over the course of the contract.
Some research income alternatively falls within the provisions of 1AS 20 for government grants.

MHS injury cost recovery scheme

The Foundation Trust receives income under the NHS Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured
individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid, for instance by an insurer. The Foundation Trust
recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension’'s Compensation Recovery Unit,
has completed the MH52 form and confirned there are mo discrepancies with the treatment. The income is measured at the
agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision for unsuccessful compensation claims and
doubtful debts in line with IFRS 8 requirements of measuring expected credit losses over the lifetime of the asset.
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information {continued)

1.2 Revenue
Other forms of income

Grants and donations

Gowernment grants are grants from government bodies other than income from commissioners or trusts for the provision
of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to
match that expenditure. Where the grants is used to fund capital expenditure, it is credited to the consclidated statement
of comprehensive income once conditions attached to the grant have been met. Donaticns are treated in the same way
as government grants. In 2020021 the trust received DHSC centrally procured personal protective equipment. These
transactions have been recognised as a "Government Grant' as defined above. The Trust has recorded a charge to
operating expenditure when the items have been utilised and this is matched with a gain in income.

Apprenticeship service income

The value of the benafit received when accessing funds from the Gowernment's apprenticeship service is recognised as
income at the point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly to an aceredited training provider
from the Trust's Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS) account held by the Department for Education, the comesponding
noticnal expense is also recognised at the point of recognition for the benefit.

Education and Trainimg

The Trust receives income from Health Education England for education and training of medical and non-medical
trainees. Revenue is in respect of training provided and is recognised when performance cbligations are satisfied when
training has been performed. All performance obligations are undertaken within the financial year and is agreed and
invoiced to Health Education England
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information {continued)

1.3 Expenditure on Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including payments arising from the apprenticeship levy, are recognised in
the period in which the service is received from employees including non-conscolidated performance pay earned but not yet paid.

The cost of annual leave entitlement eamed but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial
statements to the extent that employses are permitted to camy-forward leave into the following period.

Pension costs

HHS Pension Scheme

FPast and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two MHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits payable
and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs uk/pensions. Both are unfunded
defined benefit schemes that cover MNHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowesd under the direction of the Secretary
of State for Health and Social Care in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS
bodies to identify their share of the underying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it
were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the
contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting pericd.

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would
be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuaral valuation, the FReM reguires that “the perod between formal
valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”™. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A waluation of scheme liability is camied out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Depariment)
as at the end of the reporting peried. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting penod in conjunction with
updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for
fimancial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2022, is based on valuation data as 31 March
2021, updated to 31 March 2022 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment,
the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have
also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the repont of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the
annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published
annually. Copies can also be cbtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actual (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into
account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers.

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2018. The results of this
valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6% of pensionable pay.

The 2018 funding valuation also tested the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap that was set following the 2012
valuation. There was initially a pause to the cost control element of the 2016 valuations, due to the uncertainty around member
bensfits caused by the discrimination ruling relating to the MeCloud case.

HMT published valuation directions dated 7 October 2021 (see Amending Directions 2021) that set out the technical detail of
how the costs of remedy are included in the 2018 valuation process. Following these directions, the scheme actuary has
completed the cost control element of the 2018 valuation for the NHS Pension Scheme, which concludes no changes to bensfits
or member contributions are required. The 2018 valuation reports can be found on the NHS Pensions website at
https:ifwaw.nhsbsa.nhs uk/nhs-pension-scheme-accounts-and-valuation-reports.
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information (continued)

1.2 Expenditure on Employee Benefits

Penslon costs:

c) Scheme provizions jcontinued)

The MHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised beliow. This k51 15 an llustrative guide only, and 15 not
Imtended o detall all the benefits provided by the Scheme or e specific condithons that must be met before these beneflis can be
obialned:

The Scheme Is a Tinal salary” schame. Annual penslons are nomaly based on 1/30th for the 1955 section and of the Dest of the
last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1760 for the 2008 s=chion of reckonable pay per year of
membership. Members who are prachiiloners as defined Dy the Scheme Regulations have thelr annual penslons based wpon fotal
penslonabis samings over the relevant penslonadle senics.

With effect from 1 Agril 2008 members can choose o give up some of thelr annual pension for an addfonal tax free lump sUm, up
to @ maximwm amount pemitted under HMRC rules. This new provision IS Known 35 “p2nsion commutation™.

Annual Increases are appied to pension payments a1 rates sefned Dy the Penslons [Increase) Act 1971, and are based on
Cchanges In retall pricas 0 the twalve montns ending 20 Septambsr In Me pravious calendar year. From 201 1-12 the Consumer
Prica Index [CPI) will be usad to repiace the Retall Prices Ingax (RP1).

Early payment of a pension, with anhancament, is avallaole to members of the schems who are permanently Incapable of fufiling
thelr duties efMactively through liness or Infimity. A death gratulty of twice final year's pensionable pay for death In service, and five
times thalr annual pension for death after reirement s payabie.

For earty refiremenss other than these due fo 18 haalth the additional pension llaoliiies are not funded by the scheme. The full
ampant of the labilty for the ad@tional costs Is chargad to e employer.

Kembers can F'I.I'HHEE additional s2rvice In the NHS Scheme and contibuie 1o monay Fll.l'ﬂ'IE-EE- AVC's hjl'trIE Zoheme's
approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.

1.4 Expenditure on Other Goods and Services

Expenditure on goods and s2nvices |s recognised when, and o the extent that they have bean recalved, and Is measured al the Talr
value of those goods and senvices. Expenditure 1s recognised In operaling expenses except where It resulis In the creation of a non-
cument assat such as propery, plant and eguipment

1.5 Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition
Fropesty, Fant and Squipment Is capitallsed whers:
- It I5 Mele for usa In delVenng SErdces of 107 dministrative purposss;
- i Is probabde that fture economic benefMs will fiow bo, or senvice patential be provided %o, the Foundation Trust;
- It |5 axpecied io be used for mare than one financlal year; and
- the cost of the [iem can be measurad rellably and;
- has an Indiidual cost of at keast £5,000; or
- the Iheme form a group of asseis which collactively hawve a cost of at least £5,000, wherne the assets are
functionally Imterdependent, they had broadly simutaneous purchase dates, are anticipated fo have
simultanecus dsposal dates and are undar the same managenal control; or
- form part of the Inifial equipping and setting up cost of a new bullding or refwbishment of 3 ward or unit,
and the ibems collecvely have a cost of at least £5,000.

Whnere a large asset, for example a bulding, Includes 3 numier of componants wit significanty dferent asset llves 2.g. plant and
equipmant, then hese components are treated a5 separale assets and depreciated over thalr own usefdl economic Fves.

Meazurement

aluation

&1 Property, Plant and Equipment assets are measured Infially at cosi, representing the costs directly attibuiable to acguinng o
cansirecting the asset and bringing It to fe location and condition necassary for It io be capable of operating In the manner
Intended by management

For property assats the frequency of revaluations wil b= at least every five years.

Thie falr value of land and bulldings are deternined by valuations camed cut by professlonally qualfied valuers In accordance with
the Royal Instiution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appralsal and Valuation Manual. The valuations are carred cut primarily on the
basis of depreciated replacement cost, modem equivalent assat basls for specialisad operational property and existng use valug
for non-specialised operational propery. Assels hedd at deoreclated replacement cost have been valued on 3 Modemn Sguhvaient
Asset Opiimisad Allemative Sie basks. For the Trusts PFI bulldings the valuaton does not inciude any VAT labllity a5 VAT IS
recoveradle on the unifary payments made by the Trust and any re-provision of the exsing bulldings would be camiad oul by the
PFI prowider. The valug of 1and for exsiing Use purposss 15 assessed at exlsting wse valug. For non-operational properies Inciuding
surplus land, the valuations are camad oul at apen manke! value.

ABESlE under construciion ane valued at ¢ost and are subseguenty revalwed by professlonal valwers when they ans orought Into uss
If Tactors Indicate hat he vale of the asset difers materially from Its camying value. Cthersse, the assel should only e revaluad
on the next occaslon when all asssts of that class are revalusd.

An Rem of property, plant and equipment which |s surpius with no plan to bring It Back Info use Is valued at fair value under IFRS 13,
If i does not meet the requirements of IAS 40 of IFRS 5.
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information (continued)

1.5 Pro Plant and Equipment [continw

Subssquent sxpendiurs

Expenditure Incurred after iiems of propenty, plant and equipment hiave besn put Into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, 5 nomally charged 1o e Income statement In the penad In which 1T s Incwmed. In siuations where 1 can b2
cleary demonstrated that the expendiiwe has resultad In an Increase In the futme economic benefts expecied 1o be obiained
from use of an Rem of property, plant and equipment and where the cost of the Hem can be measwred reliaoly, the sxpenditure is
caphalisad a5 an ad@Tonal cost of that asset or 35 3 replacement.

Depreciation
ems DTPI'HFEIT}', Fiant and EI'.I||:I'TIEI'It 4are Il!-PI'E’l}IH'IEﬂ over thelr I'EI'I'E“'Ihg usefl economic Ives In @ manner consislent with
the I'IIHE-I.IHFI‘HDH af econpmic of senice ﬂE"'l'El}' benefms.

The Trust gepreciates 15 non-Cument assets on a straight ling Dasks over the expacied life of the as5sets aner allowing for the
residual value. Usetul lives are determmined on 3 case Dy case Dasls. The typical Ives Tor the fodiowing assets are:

Assed Category Usafyl Life (years)
Bulldings - 2ach componant of 3 bullding Is asskgned its own life 5-90
Engineening Plani & Equipment 5-1%
Medical Equipment z-18
Transport Equipment 7-10
Information Technology 3-18
Furniture & Frtings z-10

Freehold land s considered to have an Infinite [fe and & not depreciated.
Property, Piant and Equipment which nas been reclassiNed as ‘Hald for Sale” ceases o e oegreciated Upon reciassMoation.

Assels In Me course of construcion and resldual Interests In of-Statement of Financial Position PFI coniraci assets are not
depreciated until the asset is braught Into use of reverts to the Trust, respectively.

Rewvaluatlon galne and losses
Revaluztion gaing are recognisad In the revaluation resende, excapt whese, and 1o the extant that, they reverse a revalation
decrease thal has previously been recognised In operating expensss, In which case ey are recognised In operabing Income.

Revalualion losses are charged o e revalation reserve to the exient that there 15 an avallable balancs for the assat
cancemed, and thereafter are changed to operating Sxpenses.

Zalns and losses recognised In the revaluation resanve are regoned In the Statement of Comprehensive Incoms as an tem of
"DINST COMPrENansive INcome’.

Impalrmants
In accordance with the GAM, Impalments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benetis or of sarvice patentlal in the
asset are charged to operaling expenses. A compensating fransfer ls mads from the revaluation resenve o the Incoms and
expendlture resarve of an amount equal to the lower of {|) the Impalrment charged o operatng expenses; and (1l the balancs In
the revaluation ressrve aftributabis to that asset before the Impalment.

An NFIEI'ITI'EM that arkses from a clear -:nns-umpunn of econDmic: benafit or of serdcs thEI'IﬂEl I& raversad when, and 1o the
extent thiat, the drcumistances that gawe rise ta the loss are reversad. Raversals are remgnlsed In nperaﬂng ncome o the
extent that the asset |5 restored to the carmying amount It would have had I the Impaliment had never been recognised. Any
remalnng revarsal Is I'E{‘-BQI'IE-EH In the revalwaton regarve. Where, at the time of the mgnal |I'I"I|:A!I'I"I'IEI'I‘I:| 3 ransfar was made
from the rewvaluation resarve to the Income and EIPEI'II]'I].II'E- resarve, an amount ks transfemed back 10 the revaluallion resende
whien the Impalment reversal Is recognised.

Other Impalrmients are reated as revaluation losses. Reversals of other Impalmenis are treated as revaluation gains.

De-recognition
Assels Intended for disposal are reciassmad as "Heldd for Zale’ once all of he Tolivwing cnteda are met

- the sale must be highly probaie and the assel avallable for Immediate sale In [ts present condition
Followlng reclassiication, the assets are measwred at the lower of thelr existing camying amount and their fair value less costs
to sell'. Depreclation ceases to e changed and the assets are not revalwed, except where the Talr value less costs 1o el falls
below he camying amount. As5e1s are de-recognised when all matenal sale contract condiions have been met. Property, pant
and aquipmient which IS o De scrappen or demaolished doas not qualify Tor recogniion s “Hald for Sale’ and Instead 15 retained
35 an operational ass=t and the assat's economic IFe Is adjusted. The assel s de-recognised when scrapping or demaliion
DESCArS,
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information (continued]

1.5 Property, Plant and Equipment [continued)

Donated, Government Grant and other grant funded aassts

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capltaiised at thelr falr value on recelpt. The donation/grant Is
credited to Ingome at the same tme, unless the donor has Impos2d a condition that the futwne economile benefits embodied In the grant
are io b2 conswmed In a manner specifed by the donor, In'which cass, the donation‘grant Is deferred within llablitles and Is camad
forwand to future inancial years to the extent that the condltion has not yet been met. The donated and grant funded assels are
subsequently accounted for In the same manner a5 other kems of proparty, plant and equipment. This Incudes assels donated to the
trust by the Department of Heakh and Soclal Care as part of the response fo the comnavins pandemic. As defined In e GAM, e
trust appiles theprinciple of donabted asset accoumting 1o the asseds that the tnust conbrols and ks cbialning economic benefits from at
the year end.

Private Finance Inittative (PFI) transactions

PFl transactions which mest the IFRIC 12 definltion of a sersice concesslon, a5 Interprated In HM Treaswry's FReM, are accounted for
as on-Statement of Financial Positlon’ by the Trust. The PF1 355815 are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come
Into wse. The 3ssets are measured inflaly at falr value In accordance with e princlpies of 1AS 17. This valuation will exclede VAT,
Sunsequenty the assets are measwred af Talr value, which [5 Kept up to date In aecondance with me Trest's aporoach for each relevant
clase of assel In accordance with the principies of 185 16, An equivaient finandal lablify |s recognised In accordance with [AS 17.

The annual contract payments are apportioned betwesn the repayment of the Iablity, a Ifecycle element, 3 inance cost and the
charges for services. The finance cost k5 calzulated using the impliclt Interest rate for the scheme. The Sendce charge |5 recognised In
operating expenses and e inance cost is charged 1o Finance Costs In the Statement of Comgrenensive Income.

The Fecycie element Is established on the Mecysle plan containad wittin the fnandal modsl. Componenis of the assst replaced by
thee oparator duning the contract {Ifecycle replacement’) are capitallsed where they meet the Trust's criterla for capltal expendiiure.
They are capitalsed at the ime they are pravided by the operator and are measurad Inifially at thalr fair vaiue. The element of the
annual unkary payment allocated o Mecycle replacemient 15 pre-getermined for each year of the sonfract from the operator's planned
programme of Ifecycie replacemant. Wihare the Ifecycle component Is provided eariler o later than axpacted, 3 shor-term finance
leasa labillty or prepayment Is recognisad respectively. Whare the falr valus of the Iifscycle componient ks less than the amount
determinad In the contract, the differance ks recognised s an expense when the replacemant Is provided. If the falr value |s greater
than the amount determingd In the contract, the difference |s treated 38 3 “ree’ asse! and a defermed Incomie balance |5 recognised.
Thie deferrad Income |5 released to the operating income ower the shortar of the remalning contract pencd or the useful scanomic ife of
the replacemant component.

1.6 Infangible Assets
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physlcal substance which are capable of baing sold separately from the rest of the

Trust's business or which anse from contrachual or other legal mghts They are recognised only where It Is probable that future economic
benefits will Niow 1o, or sendce potential be prowvided to, the Trust and where the cost of the assat can be measured rellably. Whera
Intemaly generated assats are hedd for s2rvice potentlal, this Invoives a direct contibution 10 the delvery of s2nices bo the public.

Intamally generated goomwill, Drands, masmeads, pubksning Hies, cusiomer lists and sImilar (lams are not capitalised as intangibie
assets. Expendlture on research Is not capltalised. Expendiure on develapment is capitallsed only whare il of the following can be
demaonsirated:
- the projact 16 techrically feasibie i tha point of compéetion and wil resul In an Intangibke assat for 53ie o UsE;
- the Trust Intends to complete e asset and sell or use |
- ihe Trust has the abliity o sell or us= the asset
- how the Intangiole 35581 will generate probable fUlLre economic of sendcs delvery benems &g, the presencs of 3 marke!
for i or lts outpud, or where | Is to be used for inlemal use, the usefuiness of the assat;
- HE{]HE‘IE financial, technical and other resownces are avallabie to the Trust o III['I'IHEIIE e ﬂE’l’El‘Eﬂl‘l’lEl’l‘l and g2l or usea
the assat; and
- the Trust can meaasure rellably the sxpenses attibutadle (o the assel duning development.

Softwars

Software which 15 Integral io the operation of hardware 2.9. an operating system Is capiialsad as part of the relevant Hem of property.
plant and equipment. Software which |5 not intzgral 1o the operation of hardware 2.9. appication sofware, IS capitallsed as an
Intanglie asset

Purchased computer soffware licences ane capitalised as Intanglbie non-cument assets whene expendlbure of at least £5,000 Is Incumed
and amoriised over the shorier of the term of the lcense and thelr wsatul lves.,

Measursmant

Intangible assets are recognised Inltlally at cost, comprising all drectly atinbutable costs needed to creats, produce and prepars the
asset in the point that It ks capabie of operating In the manner intended by management. Subsequently Intanglble 3sssts are measured
at current value In existing use. Where no active market susts, Infanglble assets are valued at the lower of depredated replacement
cost and the value In wse where the asset s Income generating. Revaluations gains and osses and Impalments ars treated In the
same manner 3s for progeny, plant and equipment. An Infanglole #sset which 5 surplus with no plan io bing 1 back Into us= s valued
at fair valwe under IFRS 13, IT . goes not meet the requirements of A3 40 of IFRS 3. Intanglble assats held Tor sale are measurad at
the lower of thelr camylng amount or Talr value less costs to sall'
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information {continw

1.6 Intanpible Assets

amortigation and Impalrment

Intangible assats are amortisad over thelr expected wseful economic lves In @ manner consistent with the conswmption of
economic or senice delivery benefits. The camying value of Intangible assats |5 reviewed for Impalkment at the end of the first
full year following acqulsition and In other periods If events or changes In dreumstances Indicate the camying valwee may not be
recoveranle.

Assel Category
Software Licences 2-10

1.7 Gowvernment Grants

Government grants are granis from Govemment bodies oiher than Income from Clinleal Commissioning Groups or MHS Trusts
for the provislon of sendces. Granis from the Depanment of Health, are accounted for 3s Govemment grants a5 are grants from
the Big Lottery Fund. Where the Gowermment grant ls used 1o fund revenue expenditure It is taken 1o the Statement of
Comprehansive Income to mateh that expendire. Whare the grant ks used o und capital expendiure the grant Is credied in
Inepme at the same me, uniess the grant has mposed a condifon that the fubure economic benefits emoodiad In the grant are
o e consumed In 3 manner specified by the grant, In which case, the grant Is deTemmed within llablities and |s carried foraand bo
fubure financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet been met

1.8 Inventories

Inveniores are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable valse. The cost of Inveniones i measursd using the First in, First
Ot (FIFC) matmod.

In 2020721 and 2021/22, the Trust recalved Inventares incluting personal pratective equipment from the Department of Health
and Soclal Care at nll cost. In Ine with the GAM and apphving the prncipes of the IFRS Conceptual Framework, the Trust has
accounbed for the recaipt of Miese Inventones at a desmead cost, reflacting the best avallale approximation of an Imputsd mankst
valua for the transaction basad on the cost of acquisition by Me Depariment.

1.9 Cash and Cash Egquivalents

Cash Is cash In hand and deposiis with any inanclal insifution repayable without penalty on notice of not mare than 24 hours.
Cash equivalients are Investments that matune in 3 monihs or l2ss from the date of acguisition and that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with Insignificant nsk of change In value. In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are
ghown net of bank owerdrafts that are repayabde on gemand and that form an Integral pan of the Fowndation Trest's cash
managemeni. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded a1 current valuss.

1.10 Financial Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets

Financial 3s5eis are recognised when the Foundation Trust becomsas party to the contracheal provision of the Ninancdal
Instremant or, In e case of rade reselvablas, whan the goods or sendces have been delivered. Finandal asssts are
derecognised when the contraciual nghts have expired or when me asset has been transfesred and the Foundation Trust has
transTemed sulbstantialy all of the fsks and rewards of owmership or has not retained control of the asset.

Financial asee1E ErE|H|ﬂE|j‘ I'EMQHlE-E’ﬂ atlfalrvale FII.IE- or mins ﬂI'EEﬂT' atrioutalle transacton costs for Inanclal assats nat
measured at falr value ﬂ'll'ﬂuﬂ'l FII'I]|'|1 or lass. Falr value s taken as the transacton Pl'll.‘rE. ar othenwise getammined D}' refarence o
quabad market prices, where possibie, or by valuation technigues.

Financial assets are classifed Into the Tl:llﬂlﬂﬂg GEIZEQME’E-Z fnandal assets at amorised cost, inanclal assats a1 falr value
ﬂ'll'l}l.lgh Dither ['-DH‘IH'EI'EI'I:E-HE'lﬂIIII'I‘IE'. and financial assels at Talr value ﬂ'mugh FII'l]m and loss. The classificabdon ks determinad
by the cash fiow and business model characterstics of the inanclal asseis, 3s 581 out In IFRS 8, and |s determined at the time of
Inklal recognition. &1 of the financlal assets held by the Groug are held at amoriised cost with the exception of the Invesimant
held by Dudley Group MHS Charlty which |s held at falr value through other comprenensive Income.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financlal assets measured at amortised cost are thase held within a business model whose oojective Is 1o hold financlal assets
In order to cobect confractual cash Nows and where the cash fiows ane solely payments of prncipal and Interest. This Includes
mist rade recaivables, loans racelvable, and other simple dabt Instnumesmts.

Afer Iniiial recognition, thess Mnancial assets are measured at amoriised cost using the efective Intersst memod, less any
Impalmment. The effective Interest rate Is the @te that exacly dscounts estimated future cash recelpts throwgh the Iife of the
financial asset o the gross carmying amaouni of the financial asset.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprenensive Income are those held within a business model whose
objective is achleved by both collecting contractual cash flows and seling inanclal assets and where cash fiows ane solely
payments of principal and Intersst. This category also Inciudes nvestments In equity Instruments whare the Group has opted to
classity them here.
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information (continwed])

1.10 Financial Instruments and Financial Liabilities {continued

Financlal asssts af falr valus through profit and loss

Flnancial assets measured at falr value through profit or loss are those that ane not othenwise measured at amorised cost o fair
value through oiher comprehsnsive Income. This Includes dervatives and financlal #5585 acquired principally for the purpose of
galling In the short term.

Impalrmant

For all inancial assets measured at amonised cost of 3t 13 value through oiher comprahensive INCome |eXceat aquity
Instrumeants designated at falr value through other comprehensive Income), leass recelvables and contract assets, the
Foundation Trest recognises a loss allowance represanting expecied crad? losses on the financial instument.

The Foundation Trust adopts the simpifad approach to Impalmment, In accordance with IFRS 9, and measwes the (085
allowancs for frade recelvables, contract assets and lease recelvables at an amount equal to Ifetime expected credi losses. For
other financlal assets, the lpss alowance |s measured 31 an amount equal o ifeims axpecied cremt lpsses I he credt fsk on
the financial Instrument has Inereased significanty since Initial recognition (siage 2), and othenwise at an amount equal 1o 12-
month expected cradk losses (stags 1),

HM Treasury has ruled that central govarmment bedies may not recognlse siage 1 or siage 2 Impalrments against oiher
gOoVEMMEnt dE0aNMmEnts, el Sxeciiive agencias, the Bank of England, Exchaquer FUnds, and Exchequer FUNgs' 355815
where repayment Is ensured by primary legislation. The Foundation Trust thersfore does not recogniss Ioss allowances for stage
1 or stage 2 impaiments agalnst these bodies. Addiionaly, the Depariment of Health and Social Care provides 3 guarantes of
last reson against the delsts of Its arm's length bodles and MHS bodies (exciuding MHS charfiies), and the Foundation Trust
does not recognise 1085 alowances for s1age 107 stage 2 Impalrments agains! these nodies.

For financlal assets that have become cradi Impalred since Inklal recognition (stage 3), expected credit loss=cs at the reporiing
date are measured a5 the difference between the ass2t's gross carmying amount and the present valus of the esTmatad futurs
cash fliows discounted at the inanclal asset's onginal eMective Interest rate. Any adjustment Is recognised In profit or Ios6 35 an
Impalrment gain o I0ss.

Financlal llablinties

Financlal llabiities are recognized when the Foundation Trust becomes party o the contraciual provisions of the financial
Instremant or, In the case of rade payaoles, when the goods or servicas have been recelved. Finandal llaollites are de-
recognised when the (laolity has been extinguished — that Is, the obilgation has been discharged or cancelad or has expied.

Financlal llablities at falr walus through proft and loss

Derfvalives that are llablitles are subsequently measured at Talr value through proft or loes, Emb=gded derivatives that are nod
part of a hybrid contract contalning a host that |s an asset within the seope of IFRS 9 are separataly accounted for 35 dervatives
only I thelr economic charadensiics and neks are not closely related 1o thosa of thelr host contracis, 3 separate Instnamant with
the same terms would meet the definithon of a dervative, and the hiybaid contract 15 not [ts2if measured at fair vale through profit
or loss.

Other Fimanclal llablifliss

After Initial recognittion, all other inanclal Babilites are measured al amortisad cost using the efective Inferest methad. The
effective Imeres rate ks the rate that exactly discounis eslimalted futwre cash payments through the Iifie of the assat, o the
ampitisad cost of the inancial Faoiity. In the cass of DHSC l0ans that would De the nominal rate charged on the loan.

1.11 Leases

Leases are glassied 3s Mnance leases when subsiantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transfemad o the lesses.
Al pther leasss are oassMed a5 operating leases and the rentals ane charged to operating expensas on a stralght-line basls
over the teqm of the lease. Operating lease Incentives received are added 1o the l8ase rentals and charged o operating
expanses ower the Iife of the leasa.

Financs leassg

Where substantially all risks and rawards of ownership of 3 leased asset ara bome by the MHS Foundation Trist, the assat ks
recorded 3s Progedty, Plant ang Equipment and 3 comesponging Iblity s recorded. The valse at which both are recognisad Is
the lower of the falr value of the asset or the FITEE-EH‘I vale of the minmum lease FIE]"IT‘IEHIIE-. discounted I.IEJHQ the Interest rate
Implici In the lease. The implictt Interest rate Is that which produces a constant parigdic rate of Interast on the outstanding
liaillity. The asset and Eablity are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafier Me asset is accounted for 3s an
Itam of property plant and equipment.. The annual rental ks spit between the repayment of the llabliy and a inance cost 50 as
bo achlewe 3 constani rale of nance over the lifie of the lease. The annual inance cost Is lﬂ'lﬂ'gl!ﬂ o inance costs In the
Statemant of Cumprehenslve Income.

Operating Leasss

Oiher |e3ses are Tegared 3s operating 12ases and e rentals ane charged to operaing expenses on 3 sralgnt-ing Dasls over
the term of the leass. Operating lease Incenilves racalved are added to the leass rentais and changed 1o operating s¥penses
over the life of the ease.

e ]
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information (continued)

1.10 Financial Instruments and Financial Liabilities {continued

Leases of land and bulldings

Where 3 lease Is for land and bwildings, the land component Is separated from the bullding component and the classfcation for
each Is assessed separately. Leased land Is ineated as an operaling leass.

1.12 Provisions

The MHS Foundation Trust recognises a provision where It has a present legal or construciive obligation of wnceraln timing or
amount; for which It ks probable that there wil be a future putfliow of cash or oiher respurces; and a rellable estimate can be
made of the amount. The amount recegnised In the Statement of Financial Position Is the best estimate of he resounces
required to s=tlle the obllgation. Where the effect of the Iime value of money Is significant, he estimated risk-ad|usted cash
fiows are dlscounied using HM Treasuny's discount rates efective Tor 31 March 2022,

Hominal  Prior Yaar

rate rate
Short-term Up o 5 years 0.4T% 0.02%
Medlum-ierm Afler 5 years up o 10 yeans 0.70% R EE
Long-tem ARer 10 years up o 40 years 0.95% 1.59%
Wery long-term Exceeding 40 years 0.56% 1.00%

HM Treazury provides discount rates for general provisions on a nominal rate basis. Expectad Tuture cash fows are therefare
afustad for the Impact of Inflation bafore dscounting using nominal rates. The following Inflation rates are set by HM Treasury,
effactive 31 March 2021:

Infiatlon  Prior Yaar

rats rate
Year1 4.00% 1.30%
Yearz 2.60% 1.60%
Into perpetutty 2.00% 2.00%

Eanty retiremant provisions and Injury bensent provisions Dot us2 e HM Treasury's pension discount rate of minus 1.20%
(2020v21 minwes 0U55%:) In real iemes.

Clnlcal negligance costs

MHZ Resolution [Me fading name of the MHS Liigation Awihoriy NHESLA) operates a sk poolng Schems under which the
MHS Foundation Trust pays an annual confribution to the MHS Resolution, which, In retum, seties all cinical negligence dalms.
The contribution |s charged to expenditure. Alough the HHSLA Is admiristratively responsible for all cinical negligence cases,
the legal lablilty remalns with the MHS Foundation Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions camied by the NHSLA
on behalf of the MHS Foundation Trust is disciosad at note 20, but Is not recognised In the Trust accounts.

Mon-clinlcal risk pooling

The NHS Foundation Trust pariiclpates In the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liablities to Third Partles Scheme. Bom are
risk pooling schemes under which the Trest pays an annual confribution to the NHS Resolution and In retum receives
asslstance with the costs of claims ansing. The armual membership contibutions, and any "excesses’ payable In respect of
particular claims are changed o operating expenses when the |laollity arses.

1.13 Contingencies
Contingent assets (that 15, assets ansing Trom past events whose exsience will pnly be confirmed by one oF more future events

not whally within the entity's control) are not recognised as assels, but are @isclosad In nobe 24 where an Infiow of economic
benefts ls probable.
Contingent kablities are not recognised, but are disclosed In node 24, unless the probabiity of a transfer of economic bensfits &
remate. Contingant liabliities are defined as:
- possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occumence
of pne oF mare uncertain future events not whoily within the entity's control; or
- present obligations arsing from past events but for which It Is not probable that a ransfer of economic
penafits will arlse or Tor which the amount of the obiigation cannot be measured with suficient relablity.

1.14 Public Dividend Capital

Puslic dividend capltal s a type of pulic secior equity inance, which represents the Department of Health and Soclal Care's
INvESIMENt I the trust. HM Treasury has determined that, being iS5ued under SEtUtDry 3Utonty ramer than under contract,
PDC Is not a financial Instrument within the meaning of 1AS 32.

&t any ime, the Secretary of State can issue new POC i, and require repayments of PO from, the trust. PDC Is recorded at
the value received.

149



1. Accounting Policies and Other Information {continued)

1.14 Public Dividend Capital {continued)

An annual change, refiecting the cost of capital utllised by the trust, Is payable to the Depanment of Health and
Zooial Care as POC dividend. The charge Is calculaied at the real rate set by the Secratary of State with the
cansent of HM Treaasury (cumenty 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the frust. Relevant net assels are
calculatad as the value of all assefs l2ss all labiitles, except far

- donatad and grant funded assets
- charitabie funds
- avarage dally cash balances hald with the Govemment Sanking Sarvice (SES) and Mational Loans
Fund [MLF} deposits [2xciusing cash balances held In GBS accounts that relate to 3 short term
warking canial facllity)
- approved axpendiure on Covid-19 capltal assats
- @55ei5 under consiructon Tar I'IEUDHE"!' diraciad schemes
- any PDC dhidend balance racelvalle of payasle.
The average relevant nat asssis Is calculated as 3 simple average of opening and ciosing relevant net assets. In
accondance with the I'E['..I'EI'I'IEI'I‘IE lald down hjl'tl'lE DEPEI'U‘HEI'I‘I of Health and Soclal Care, the dividend for the year
I8 calculated on the actual average reievant nel assels as 561 out In the “pre-awdit” verslon of the annual accounis.
Thie dividend thies calewated Is not revised should any adjustment fo net assats oecur 35 a result the awdit of the
annual accounts. The POC dvidend calcuiation s bassd upon the rust's group accounts (Le. Ingluding
subsldianas), but axcluging consolidated charttabie funds.

1.13 Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the NHS Foundation Trust are outside the scops of VAT and, In general, output tax does not
apaoly and Input tax on purzhases s not recoverable. Imecoverable VAT Is charged fo the relevani expendiiure
category of Included In the capitallsed purchase cost of feed assets. Where outpud tax |5 chargad of Input VAT |5
recoveradle, e amaunis are stated net af VAT,

1.16 Foreign Exchange

The functional and presentational currencles of the Trest are steding.

A transaction which Is denominated In a forelgn cusrency Is transiated Into the functional cumency at the spot exchange rate an
e date of the transaction. Where e Trust has 355815 or llablities denominaled In a Toreign clamency at the Sialement of
Financial Poslton daba;

- monetary Rems [other than finandal Instruments measwred at Talr value through Income and expendiiure’) ane
tranglated at the spol exchange rate on 31 March;

- nor-monetary assets and lablitlies measuned al histoncal cosl are transiated using the spot exchangs rate al the
date of the transaction; and

- non-monetary assets and lablities measuned at falr vale are translaied using the spot exchange rate at the date
the fair value was determingd.

Exchange gains or lossEE DN MAnetany Hems (arising on setiement of the transacion or on re-ransiation at he Statement of
Financial Posltion date) ars recognised In Income or expendiiure in the period In which they anse. Exchange gains or loEseE on
non-monetany assets and laoliities ars recognised I Me 5Eame Manner a6 other galns and 105585 on INess [hems.

1.17 Third Party Assets

Assels belonging to third parties [such as money held on Dehalf of patients) are not recognised In the accounts since the NHS
Foundation Trust has no Densficial Interest In tham. Howewar, ﬂ'lEjl' are gisciosad In note 2B 1o the accounts In accondance with
the requirements of HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual.

1.18 Corporation Tax

The Trest ks @ Healh Sendce Body within the meaning of 35194 ICTA 1335 and accordingly ks exempt from taxation In respect
of Income and capltal gains within calegones cowersd by this. There 15 a power for the Treasury to remove the exempiion In
relation to specfied acihitles of 3 Foundation Trust (55194 [3) 1o (5) ICTA 1968). Accordingly, the Trust 5 polentially within the
future scops of Income £3x In respect of achvities whers Income 16 recelved from @ non-public s2ctar source. The Charlty 1s also
exempt from corporation fax

The tax =xpense on the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprsss cument and deferred tax dus 1o the Trusts trading
commercial subsidiary. CuTent t3x ks the expecied tax payable for the year, using tax rates enacted or subsiantively enacied at
the Statement of Financial Position dabe, and any adjustiment o tax payabis In respect of pravious years.

Defemed tax Is provided using the Statemant of Finandial Position aolity method, proviging for temgarary iferances betwean
the camylng amounts of the 3sssts and lablides for financial reporing purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposss.
Defemad tax |s not recognised on t2xa0ie temporary dMerences ansing on the Inal recognition of goadwill o fr EEmposary
diffierences arising from the Initial recognition of assats and labilities In 3 tAnsaction that Is not a business combination and that
affects nelther accounting nor taxabile profit

Defemed taxation s calculated using rates that are expacied i apply when the related defemed asesel s reallsed or the defemad
t3aation liabliny |5 setiled. Defemred 3x assats are recognised only to e extant that it |s probable that futwre taxabde profts will
be awallable against which the assels can be wllised.
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information (continued)

1.19 Critical aceounting judgements and key sources of estimation and uncertainby

In the apgplication of the Trusts accounting policias, management Is required to make judgaments, estimates and
assumipilons about the camying amounis of assets and llaollites that are not readily apparent from oiher sources. The
esimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historical experence and other Tactors that are consldered 1o be
refevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and Me esimates and undenying asswmptions are continualy
reviewed. Revislons i accounting estimates are recognised In e perod In which the estimats Is revised If the redision
affects only that perod or in the perod of the revishon and future pefods If the revision affecds Doth cument and future
periods.

Critical judgements In applying aceounting pollchss

The folowing are the critical judgements, apart from those Invalving esimations [see below) that management has made
In the process of applying the Trust's accounting polcies and that have the most significant effect on the amownts
recognised In the financlal siatements.

- Accounting for PFI
- Application of IFRIC 4 Delemining whather an Amangement contalns a Lease
- Application of IFRIC12 Senice Concession ATangemeanis

Russalls Hall Hospital, Guest Ambulatory Centre and Corbett Ambulatory Centre are owned by Summit Heakhcare
{Dudley) Umited and provided to the srust under a Private Finance Initiative {PFI) contract. The accounting judgement Is
around the ciassificaion of the fransaction under IFRIC 4 and IFRIC 12,

Kanagement have reviewed the s2nvice concassion of the PFI scheme and has confirmed it 16 within the scope of IFRIC
12. The PFI scheme |5 "orHoalance shest' meaning that the bulldings and equipmsant ars recognised In e Trust's
balance sheet along with a inance leasa creditor for the amount owed by the Trust over the PRI confract tem

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The folowing are assumplions about the futre and other major sources of estimation unceriainty, at the end of the
reporiing period, that have 3 significant sk of causing a materal afustment to the camying amounts of assets and
llablities within the ned financial year.

- Valation of Non-Curment Assats

Modem squivalent assat valuation of propery

A5 detalled In aceouniancy policy note 1.5 Property, plant and equipment The District Valuer provided the Trest with 3
valuation of the land and bulding assets (estmated Tair value and remalning usstul Ife). The sigificant estimation being
the specialised bullfing - depraclation replacemant value, sing modem equivalent asset opimisad afemative sis
methiodoiogy, of the hospltal shes [Russell's Hall, Comett and Guest). The result of this valustion, basad on estimates
provided by 3 suliably gualfied professional In aceordance with HM Treasury guidance, ks disciosad In nate 13 to the
financial statements on page 30. Fubure revaluations of the Trusts proparty may resulf In further materal changes o the
camying value of non-cumen? assets.

The Impact of using modem equivalent asset valuation ks shown In note 13.7 on page 33.

A further valuation has been underiaken as at 31 March 2022 to update the costs assumptions wihin the valuation. The
total valuation of land and bulidings was £163.069m. This valuation conskders several factors Including BCIS Index,
Iocation factors, obsolescence and fees. Should any of these factors change this could lead to a materlal change In the
valuation of the bulldings (a change of 4.1% would impact on the value by £7.5m).
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information (confinued)
1.20 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations

Mo New accounting standards of ravisions 1o existing standards have been early adopted In 2021/22.

1.21 Standards_amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted

IFRE1E Laasss

IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an amangement contains a lease and other
Interpretations and s appilcable In the public secior for periods beginning 1 Apdl 2022, The standard provides 3 single
accounting model Tor lessees, recognising a right of use asset and obligation In the statament of inancial positon Tor most
|eases: 50Me leases ane exempt through application of practical expedients explainad below. For those recognised In me
Staterment of Finandal Position the slandard also requires the re-measurement of lease llablities afer the commencemeant of
the lzase t2rm. For lessors, Me distinction betwesn operating and finance leases will remaln and the accounting wil be langely
unchanged.

IFRS 16 changes the definition of 3 lease compared to [AS 17 and IFRIC 4. The tust will apply this definition to new leases anly
and will grangfamer s assessments made under the old standards of whether existing contracts contaln a lease.

On tansition io IFRS 16 on 1 Aprl 2022, the tnest will apply the standard refospaciively withoul restatemeant and with me
cumuiative effact of Inflaly applying the standan recognisad In the Income and expenditure reserve at that date. For exdsting
operating leases With a remaining leass termm of more than 12 months and an underying zsset value of at least £5,000, 3 lsase
IIasliity will be recognised equal 1o the value of remalning lease paymenis discounted on fransition at the fnust's Incremental
bosrowing rabe. The trust's Incremental bomowing rate will be 3 rate defined by HM Treasury. For 2022 this rate s 0.95%. The
refatzd right of LSS 3ssat Wil De Measured egual o e l2ase a0ty Jdusted far any prepall of aconied Isase payments. Far
exIsting DEpOensarm I2ases Not Cassined 35 NNance I23s2E, 3 nght of use asset will DE MEasurad at curment valls In existing uss
or falr valug. The diferencs Detween the asset valus and the caloulated lease Nabiity will be recognisad In the Income and
expendlbure ragarve on transiion. Mo adustments will be made on 1 April 2022 for exising finance leases.

For leases commencing In 2022723, the tust wil not recognise 3 right of use asset or l2ase llanliity for shor berm leases (less
than or equal to 12 MoAths) or for Ieases of low valke a5sets (ess than £5,000). Right of use assets will b2 subsegquenty
measured on a basis consisient with owned assels and gepraeclaied over the length of the lease t2rm.

The Foundation Trust has estimated the Impact of apphying IFRS 1€ In 202223 on the opening statement of inancial position
and tha In—].'ear |IT'||}EI:|Z on the s@zment ﬂTEﬂl‘I’IF’I’El’EI’I.Eh'E- Income and Uq}“ﬂ addtions as follows:

£000
Eatimated Impact on 1 2prl 2022 statement of financlal position
Amditional right of wse assats recognisad Tor exlsling operating leases 21,041
Additional leas= obligations recognilsed for existing operating leases [21,041)
Changes o other siatement of Inandcial position line Rems 1]
Met Impact on net assets on 1 Aprll 2022 o
Estimated In-yaar impact in 2022423 £000
Apditional oepreciation on right of USe assets 2,205)
Additional finance costs on lease llablities [179)
Lease rentals no longer charged on operating expendiure 2,339
Cther Impact on Income'expendiuns [£Z)
Estimated Impact on surplus/defcit In 2022523 {87}

Eatimated Incraass In capltal addithons for new leases commencing In 2022523

From 1 Agrl 2022, the principles of IFRS 16 will 3i50 be applied to the Trust's PRI I3biliies where fulure payments are inked o
RPI. The PFI llability will be remeasured when a change In the index causes a change In fubre repayments and that change has
taken efect In the cash fiow. Under existing accounting praciices, amounis relating to changes In the price Index are expensed
as Incumed. This Is expectad o Increase the PFI liablity on the statement of inanclal position wpon ransition o IFRSE 16. The
effact of this has not yet bean quanifed.
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1. Accounting Policies and Other Information (continw

1.22 Losses and special payments

Losses and spectal payments are ttems that Padlament would not have contemplated when 1t agreed funds for the haalth
EErvice OF Pas5ed legisiaton. By thair nature they ane (lems that ideally shoud not anss. Thay are thensfons subject b special
CONITD) procedures compansd with the gensarallty of payments. Thay are onioed Into difersnt categones, Which govem e way
that Indiwidual cases are handled. Losses and speclal payments ane charged {0 the relevant functional headings In expenditure
on an accruals basls, including losses which wouwld have been mage good through Insurance cover had NHS Trusts not been
bearing thelr own risks (with Insurance premiums then being ncuded as nomal revenus expendiure).

Howewer e I0sses and specal payments note Is compliad directy Tom the 105525 and compensations ragister which repors
on an accruals basls with the exception of provisions for future losses.

1.22 Transfers of functions to/from other NHS/Local Government Bodies

For functions that have been transfarred to the Trust from another MHS Body, the assets and liablites Fansfemed ans
recognised In the accounts as at the date of transfer. The assets and labiliies are not ad|wsied 1o thelr Talr value prior to
recogniion. The net gainloss cormesgonding 1o the net assatsAlaniities transfemad |s recognised within Incomerexpenses, but
Miet within operating acovities.

For property plant and eguipment assets and Intangible assets, the Cost and Accumulated Depreclation/amortisation balances
from the transfeming eniity's accounts are praserved on recognition Inthe Trusts accounts. Where the fransfeming body
recognised revaluation resenie balances atrioutatie to the assets, the Trust makes a transter from I Income and expendiure
resenie o ks revaluation resarve 1o malntain WEFIEI'IC-’!' witthiln FUHFG-EEGEI’ BCCOUNE.

For functions that the Trust has transfierred to another NHSLocal Government Body, the assets and llablitles are de-recognised
from e accounts as at the date of transfer. The net lossigain comasponding o the net asseisllabiiies transfemad Is
recognised within expensesincome, but not within operating activities. Amy revaluation resenve balances atrioutable to asssts
de-recognised are transfermed bo the Income and expenditure reserve. Adjustments to allgn the acquired funclion to the
Foundation Trest's pallcies are applled after Inflal recognition and are adjusted directy In taxpayers’ equity.

There were no transfiers toffrom other NHSLocal Govemment bodas during 202122,
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2 Segmental Analysis

The analysls by business segment Is presanted In accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments, on the basls of those segments
whose operating results are raquiarly reviewed by the Board (the Chisf Operating Declsion Maker as defined by IFRS &) as
foliows:

Healthcars Sanvices

The Board as 'Chiel Oparaiing Declslon Maker has detanmined that Healthcare Services operate In a single operating segment,
whikch 5 the provision of Reaithoare sericss. The segmental reporting format refiects the Trust's managemens and Intemal
regoring stniciure,

The Trust has idenified sagments In ing with the thresholds In IFRS B, applying the reguirement of e DH GAM to conslder
EK]}EI'IIII].II'E- Insiead of Income 3s Income s not mil}‘&Eﬂ Detwean EEQ‘HEI'I‘I-E In owr rTH:II'IW}' finance I'EFI{I'I 1o the Trust Boand.
Following a significance 1est of the expanditure segments the Trust found that there were three slgnificant operating segments
subject o the exernal reporing requirements of IFRS & Applying the aggregation citena to the Trest's tres significant
operating segments found that In all casse the s2agmenis had simllar economic: characierstics, the nature of he serices are
simllar, the nabure of the PI'DI:..II'.‘ﬂm poCess dre simiar, the t}'FIE or class of cusiomer Tor the servicas are similar, the methods
used o pltfﬂﬂ! e sarvices ara simllar and the naturs of the I'Eg.”ﬁ'h:lr}' environment is simllar.

The Trust's significant oparating sagments satisty all of the critania Ested r an aqgragation b be deemed apgroprats. The mres
signifcant operating seqments of Me Trust are all active In he 53Ms Dusiness — e prowisian of healthicars, and 3 operate
within the same economic environment — the Unided Kingsom. Glven that the purpose of disciosing segmental Information 1 to
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financal effects of business aclivities and econamis
enviranmants, raporting a single segment of "Healhcans” would be consistant with tha core panciple of IFRS 3, a5 § wowd show
the singular nature of both e business activity and the economic environment of the Trust.

Income from aciivities [medical treatment of patients) s analysed Dy cusiomer ype In note 3 to the accownts on page 22, Other
oparating Incoms [s analysed In note 4 fo the accounis on page 23 and materally consists of revenues from healthears, research
and developmeni, madical education, and the provision of services to other NHZ bodles. Total Income by Individual customers
within the whiie of HM Government and consldened materal, Is disclosed In the related parlles transactions note 25 to the
accounts on page 40.

Dudiay Clinical §ervices Limitad

The company |s @ wholy owned subsidlary of the Trust and provides an Ouipatient Dispensing service. As 3 rading company,
subject to an additional legal and regulatory regime {over and above that of the Trust), Tils aciivity Is considersd to be 3 separate
bUSINEss seqment whose Individual Dperating results are reviewsd by the Trst Board {the Chiel Operating Decision Maker).

& significant proportion of the company's revenue IS Inter segment trading with the Trust which |s eiminaied upon the
consolidation of these group financlal statements. The quarterly perfommance report to the Chief Operating Declslon Maker
repons fnancial summary informiation In the format of the tabie on pags 21.

Dudlay Group HHS Charty

The Trust Epard Is corporaie trustee for Dudiey Group MHS Charity. Following Treasury’s agreement io apply IFRS 10 in NHS
Charties from 1st Aprl 2013, the Trust has establishad that a5 the Trust I5 the cofporate fMestes of the linked MHS Chartty, i
effectvely has the power to exerdise control 50 35 to ootaln economic benefits. The Chartty is therefore treated 38 a group entity
and Is consolidated. The consolidabon |5 for repdbng pUIPESES Only and does nob amect the chanbes' legal and reguiatory
Indapandence and day ip day operations. Some of the charity's expendiiure Is Inter sagment trading wih the Trust which ks
gliminated upon the consolldation of these growp fnanclal statements. The quariedy performance repodt fo the Chief Oparating
Dieclslon Maker reports financlal summary Information In the formiat of S table on page 21.
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25 Analysis [continu

‘Yaar ended 31 March 2022

Total segment revenus
Total segment expendiiure
Operating SurplusiDancit)

Met Financing
PDC Dividends Payable

Taxation

Retalned surplus/{deficit) - bafors non-
recurring Items

MOorHECUTing Hems
Retalned surplus/{deficit)

Repotable Segment asses
Ellminations:
Total Feasls

Reportable Sagment labillties
Elminations

Total labllitles
et azsaialiablitles

Yaar ended 31 March 2021

Total segment revenus
Total segment expendiiure
Operating SurplusiDancit)

Met Financing
PDC Dividends Payable
Tauation

Retalned surplus/{deficit) - bafors non-
recurring Items

MOorHECUTing Hems
Retalned surplus/{deficit)

Repotable Segment asses
Ellminations:
Total Feasls

Reportable Sagment labillties
Elminations

Total labllitles
et azsaialiablitles

Healthcare Dudey Clnical  Dudley Group Imier Group
Sendces  Sendces Uimiled  WHS Charfty Elminaticns Total
000 £000 £000 £000 000
513,504 5948 53 6, 304) 518,691
502 464 [5.757) (626 304 502 543
16,130 181 7 ] 16,348
{11,764) o =i ] [11,714)
(2. 754) o a ] (2,764)
a 35 a ] [36)
1,602 155 T ] 1,634
a o a ] a
1,602 155 T ] 1,634
278,749 1,4 2,585 ] 252 TES
a o a (150] 150
278,749 1,4 2,585 (150] 22 E15
164, 727 (233) (44 ] 165,004
a o a 150 150
164, 727 (233} {44) 150 164, 554
114,022 1,168 2,551 ] 117,761
Healthcare Dudey Clnkcal  Dudley Group Imier Group
Sendices  Sendces Limiled  NHS Charfty Elminaticns Tokal
000 £00a0 £00a0 £000 000
450,756 £.849 1,08 5,302) 451,444
435, 790 [5.766) [T77) &, 302 438, 051)
14,565 163 1 ] 15,410
{11,933 o 54 ] {11,685)
(1.474) o a ] (1.474)
a 5) a ] [35)
1,853 145 s ] 2,01&
a 1] a ] a
1,853 145 s ] 2,01&
254,078 1,532 2 460 ] 258,0m0
a o a (185] 189
254,078 1,532 2 460 (185] 257,881
155,563 (453 (50 ] 156,112
a o a 139 153
155,563 (453 (50 139 155,923
8,515 1,033 2410 ] 101,858

155



3 Operating Income from patlent cars activitles

Year Ended Yeaar Ended

3.1 By Commissloner 31 Manch 2022 31 Mainch 2021

ET0D ET0D
NHS England 56,635 56,5639
Clinkzal Commilssioning Groups 307 422 339 265
MHS Foundation Trusis 23 a
NHS Thsts 2,659 2,960
Liossal Authartties 2,145 2167
Department of Health & Sodal Care a a
NHZ Omer a a
Non NHS: Private pabents -] 4
Mon-MHES: Cwerseas patients (chargeable fo patient) 120 g2
MHS Injury scheme (was RTA) 24 72
MNon NHS: Other 5 24
Total Income from activitias 453,861 402,050

Year Ended Year Ended

3.2 By Nature 31 March 2022 31 Manch 2021

ETDD ET0D
Aruie Senvices
Block contract 7 syslem envalope Income 385,307 332,775
High cost drugs Income from Commilssioners 33,525 31,901
Ddhar MHE clinkcal Incoms 1,444 1,479

=

Block conFact / syslem envalope Income 21,815 21,034
Income from other sourcas (&.0. local authorties) T ]
Prvate Patients -] 4
Eleciive racoverny fumd 2,225 a
Addiional penslon comtricution central funding ™ 10,565 9,669
2ahar clinlgal Income 3,470 5520
Total Incoms from activities 455,681 402,050

** The empioyer contribution rate for NHS penshons Increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (exciuding administration charge) from 1 Agri
2019, For both 2021/22 and 2020021, NHS poviers continued 10 pay over conmblmians at iha former rate with me aoditional amount
being pald ower by NHS England on providers behalt. The full cost and related funding have besn recognisad In these accounts,

from commissioner requasted and non-commissioner requesied sendcas. Commissioner requesiad sendcas are defined
In the provider licence and are services that commissioners belleve would nesd to be protected In the event of provider
fallure. This information Is prowided In the able below:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ET00 E£000
Income from Commissionsr Reguested Serdoes 420,576 365,155
Income from Mon Commissloner Requastad Services 22,516 21,722
Income from AcIviIes 443,082 365,877
Othar Clinkzal Income 3,478 5,524
Eleciive Racovery Fund 2,225 a
Agditional penslon contribution central fTunding 10,865 9,669
Total Incomea 453,681 402,080

Cher MHS Clinlcal Income comprises the following services pathology; rehabliftation; community suppon senvices; radisiogy; renal
£2rvices; patlent anspoet sendces; and appllances.
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202122 2020021

£000 £000
Revenue recognised In the reporiing perod that was Inciuded within contract lablifies at the
previous perod end 1.594 845
Revenue recognised from perfommancs obligations satisfled jor parially satisfied) In previows
periods o 21
3.5 Trangactlon prics allocated bo remaln anca obligations 202122 2020821
000 E0DD
Revenue from exlsting contracts alocated to remaining performance obligations Is expeciad to
be recogrised:
- within one year 0 ]
- @fter ona year not later than five years 0 ]
- aftar five yaars il 0o
o H

The accounting policias for revenue recogniion and the appilcation of IRS15 are conslsiently applled.  The majority of
Income from WHS commissloners baing In Te form of 3 block confract where no funding has been recelvad In advance of
peformance obilgations.

3.8 Overgaas Visliors Year Ended ¥ear Ended
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
£000 E£000
Income recognised this year 120 gz
Cash payments received in-year 18 38
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables 138 19
Amounts weitten off in-year 56 =

4 Other Opsrating Incoms

Year ended Year ended
3 March 2022 31 March 2021

Recognised In IFRS 15 £'000 £'000
Research and development 850 T34
Education and trairing 13,465 11,487
Mon-patient care senvices to oiher bodles 7,201 6,517
Provider Sustainability Fund [PSF) Income a o
Relmoursemant and o up funding 22 254 15,443
Income In respect of employes benefits accounted for on 3 gross basls 7077 3,481
Cher 4,534 1411
a 1]
Education and {raining - apgrenticeship fund gra S04
Chantabie assst donabons I35 150
Donated equipment from DHSC for COVID response (rion-cashi) iy 1,025
Conirioutions to expenditure - recelpt of equipment donated from DHSC for
COVID response below capitalisation threshold a T
Coniibuiions io expendiiure - conswmables [Imventory) donated from DHEC
group bodies for COVID response 1,671 5,935
Rental revenue from Operating Leases - contingent rent 374 376
MHS Chartable Funds Incoming resources exciuding Investment income 633 1,038
Cther {recognised In accordance with standards other than
IFRS15) 0 0
Total other operating Incomes 59,210 43,351

* Other income 15 defived from Pharmacy Dnegse £539,000 (2020021 £503,000); and numerous other small amounis.
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Purchase of healncars from NHS and DHSC bodles
Purchase of heakhcare from nan-NHS and non-DHSC boes
Siafl and executive direcbors costs
Mon-executive direciors
Suppiles and semvicas - cinical [2Xciuding onig costs)
Suppiles and senvices — cinlcal: utilisation of conswmabikes donated from DHSC group
bodles for COVID response
Supples and senvices - gensral
Suppiles and senvices - genaral: nobional cost of equipmeant donated from DHSC for
COVID rasponse below capitalisation threshald
Drug costs {Inwentory consumed and purchas= of non-inventory dnugs)
Drugs Inventories writien down
Inveniores writen down jconsumables danated from DHSC groun bodles for COWVID
respanss)
Consultancy costs
Estabiishment
Pramises - Busness Rates
2ramises - Other
Transport - Busingss Traval
Transport - Gther
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Ampstisation on Intanglble assats
Impalmmeants net of {reversals)
Moveman? In credit loss allowance: comract recelvablas/assats
wovemant In credlt loss allowance: all other recelvabias and nvestments
Audlt feas payable bo e extenal audior
Audk s2rvices
Ciher Audior Remuneraton
NHE Chartable Fund Accounts
Inernal audit
Cilnical negiigence
Legal Fees
Insurancsa
ReEearch and development - S1afT costs
Reseanch and {IE\'E{DP’FI'IEI'IT- non stall
Education and fraining - staff cosis
Education and training - non staff
Education and fraining - apprenticesnip fund
Operating leass sxpenmiurs
Reduntancy
Charges to operating expandture for on-S0FP IFRIC 12 schemes &g, PFI
Car Parking and secusity
Hospialty
Other loss2s and special payments
Cither NHS Charitabis fUnds res0Urces expended
Cither
TOTAL

Other expendlbure Includes numerows smal amounts.

5.2 The Late Payment of Commerclal Debis (Inferest) Act 15958

During the year 2021722 the Trust pakd £nll {2020:21 Enl) for Intenest for the ate payment of commencial debts,
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Year ended Year anded
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
£040 £D00
1,806 8,359
1,461 1,276
230,313 2E0,059
134 1E1
45,007 24,802
1,882 £,513
1,579 7,788
0 7
33,533 25,669
27 g5
o 49
E14 ED&
3,802 2,308
1,452 1,443
7,309 5,917
407 543
171 o3
8,235 8,107
1,776 1,267
1,877 i
172 74
a a
EQ 2]
g 10
7 T
141 143
15,541 15,318
414 241
20 203
1,310 1414
103 45
=3 TE
o018 438
B79 604
2,719 3,350
160 44
20,105 26,920
4 4
=4 50
15 15
4T 65
1,504 1,250
502,543 436,031




& E LE) Expansss and Numbera

£.1 Employes Bensfits

¥ear Ended 31 March 2022 Year Enged 31 March 2021
Total Pemmanent otnier Total Pemanent  otner
£1000 £100 £000 £000 £1000 £000
Salaries and wages 244 551 242,473 2079 22181 ZI0ATS 2006
Socdal sRcunty costs 23,473 23,473 o 21,038 20,035 o
Apprenticaship Levy 1.206 1.206 o 1.033 1.03% o
Employers contrioutions to NHS
Penslons 24,954 24,954 o 22,43 2241 o
Fenslon cost - employer conbributhions
paid by NHSE on provisers behialf
(6.3%) 10,886 10,886 ] 9,683 2,688 o
Penslon Cost - olthar = = o Kl 7 1]
Temination Benefits Oi Oi o i 1] 1]
Temparary St (ncuting agency) 26,543 o 26,543 16,079 0 16,073
MH:3 Charitable funds staft 101 101 o 4 58 1]
Total 331,536 3,214 ZE5ZZ ZE1,5093 763,508 16,085

£.2 Averaps Mumber of Parzons Employed
Thils Information can now be found In the Staf report section of the SCCoUNTEDIty repart within the annual regor and accounts.

£.3 Employes Bensfits
Emiployess Densfits Include payment of salanes/wages and pension contrbutions. Thers were no other employee benefits pald in
2021722 (2020021 £ nll).

£.4 Retirements dus to ll-health

During the year 2021/22 there were 1 (in 2020721 there were 2) early refiements from the Trust on the grounds of I-health,
The estimated anditional pension iEbiites of thass I-health retremants will be £49, 548 (2020421 £66,0134).

The eost of thass IHhealth ratiremants s bome by the NHS Business Sarvices Authorty - Panslons Division, and therefone thera Is no
liaisliity ar pravision in the Trust annual report 3nd aceounts.

E.5 Slckness ADSENCe
The datall of 5137 sickness ! absence from wodk Tor the year ane:

For the Year 2021
Total Days Lost 51,767
Total Staft Years 0.7
Average Working Days Lost Per WTE 4,834

This sickness absence data represents Me calendar year ended 31 December nod the financlal year.

£.& Other Companaation Schemes and Exit Packages
Thils Information can now be found In the staff repori section of the annual report and accownts.
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7 Directors” Remuneration and other bensfts

Year antad Year andad

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Salary 1,225 1,226
Taxable Benefiis ] 1
Perfarmance Related Bonwsas ] o
Employer contributions to a penslon scheme a0 110
1,305 1,337

Further detalls of direciors’ remuneraton can be found In e remunaration repor.

& Dperating Laasss
Year engad Year enged
£.1 Payments and futurs commitments 21 March 21 March
2022 2021
Cperating Lease Expense £'000 £'000
Minimum lease payments 2719 3,350
27158 3,350
Total future minlmum 2ase payments
Payable:
Mot mare than one year 2,799 3,141
Eetween one and five years 24 32
Aftar 5 years g 23
Total 3,028 3476
Year endad Yiear engded
£.2 Income and futurs racslpts 21 March 21 March
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Contingent rent are 376
aro 376
Total future minlmum 2ase Income
Recaivable:
Mot more than one year a0 ire
Estwaen one and five yeans 2% 34
Aftar 5 years 20 20
Total 429 433
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Year ended fear ended

31 March 31 Manch

2022 2021

£'000 £7000

Inbarest on bank accounts KL ]

MHS Chartable fundgs: Inwesiment Income 50 54

a1 54

10 Financs nse - Financlal Liablllties Year ended ‘fear ended

31 March 21 Manzh

2022 2021

Inbarest Expanse: £'000 £000

Crthear o H
Finance Costs In PFI obligations:

Main Finance Costs 4,502 4,858

Coniingent Finance Costs 7,293 7,305

11,795 11,964

11 Corporation tax sxpenss
Thie aciivites of e subsklary company Dudiey Cinical Services Limikad hawe given nse to 3 corporation Ex Iabilty recognisan
In the Statement of Comprehensive Income of £36,000 (2020:21 £35,000). The activities of the Trust and the Charty do not

Incur corporation tam.

UK Corporation Tax Expanss Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2022 221

Currant tax szpenss £'000 £000

Cumeani year 36 35

Aglustments In respact of prior years ] 0

Total Income tax expanss In Statement of Comprahenalve Incoms 36 a5

Reconcllation of effective fax rate Yiear endad Year ended

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£'000 £7000

Effzctive tax charge percentage 19.00% 18.00%

Tax If effective tan rate charged on supluses before 1ax 355 390
Effsct of:

SwplEses not subject to 13X [319) [355)

Total Income tax changs for the year 36 35

The swbsidiary company falls under the ‘small profits' rate for corporation tax and X rates are not planned o change from 15%
fior future Ninancial years.
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2ER

Gross Costas at 1 Apel 2021
Additions Furchased

Addltions Donated
Reclazsification

Impairments

Cizposak

&ross Cost as at 31 March 2022

Accumuixied Amortisation as at 1 Apel 2021
Provided during e Year

Disposals

Accumulsted Amortisabon as at 34 March 2022

Mt Book Value

Funchased af 31 Manch 2021
DCronated at 31 Marrh 2021
Total at 31 March 2021

Mt Book Value

FPunchased af 31 Manch 2022
Donated at 31 March 2022
Total at 31 Manch 2022

Group and Foundation Trust

Compuier Asset Under Total
Software  ConMSTUCHon
£000 £000 ET00
17,599 o 1759
1,010 o 1010
o o o
o o o
o o
7 o
16,182 o
o
o
o
o
10,355 ] 10,358
0 o =]
10408 o 10,408
3,535 o 5835
& o s
9,540 0 9,640

Gross Cost 33 at 1 Aprll 2020
Addtions Purchased

Aoditons Donassd
ReciassHcation

mpaiments

Disposak

‘Gross Cost 2s af 31 March 2021

Accumulated Amortisation &5 at 1 Aprl 2020
Frovided durng the Year

Disposals

Accumulated AmortisaBion & af 31 Manch 2021

Net Book Vale
Furchaesed at 31 Manch 2020
Donated at 31 Manch 2020
Total at 31 March 2020

Met Eook Vake

Furchased at 31 March 2021
Donated at 31 Manch 2021
Total at 31 March 2021

‘Group and Foundation Trust

Compuier  Asset Under Total
Bofwane  Constnicton

£T00 ET00 £000

12,691 2936 15,627

1,965 a 1,965

T o 7

2,336 2,936) o

o a o

o ] o

17,559 ] 7,539

5,926 o 5926

1,287 o 1,267

o ] o

7,193 1] 7.183

5,751 2,535 5,587

a4 =] 14

6,TEE 2,535 8,701

10,356 o 10,338

o ] 10

10,406 a 10,406

A separate schedule for the Trust inkangibie assets has not been produced s the NHZ Charity intangiie assets represent just £nl (31 March 2020 £l of the nit book valus heid by the Group and the

subsidary does not have any iIntanglbie assets.

The valuafion of Intangibie assets is on fhe basis described In the accounting policy In note 1.6 on page 12. No revaluation has taken place and historic cost Is considensd fo be the appropriate

valuation basis.
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13P
131 2021732

Coest af 1 Aprll 20241

Additions - purchased

Additicns - leazed

Additicns - donabed

Additions - eguipment donated from OHEC for COVID response (non-cash)
Impairments charged to operaing expenses

Impssirments chargsd b the revaluation neserve

Rewaluations

Recizssicaions

Transfers to assets heid for saie and assets In disposal groups
Disporsals

Costak 31 March 2022

Acoumulated depreciation at 1 Aprl 2021

Provided during e year

Impairments charged o operating expenses

Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve

R=waluations

Disposals

Acoumulated depreciation at 31 March 2022

Mt book valus

WBY - Cswned at 31 March 2021
-PFl at 31 Manch 2021

HEW - Donated at 31 March 2021

HEW - Cwned - equipment donaded from DH3C and NH3E for COVID
response af 31 March 2021

MEV todal at 1 Aprll 2021
HE
NEY -FPFl at 31 March 2002

- Cawned at 31 March 2022

WBY - Donated at 31 March 2022

HEW - Cwned - equipment donated fom DHEC and NH3E for COVID
resporse at 31 March 2002

MEV total at 31 Maroh 2022

Group and Foundation Trust
Bulidings Acgotc under

Total Land sxsluding Conctruction & “:::t:” ;::I‘::: _Il_m..;hr:;::: FUFT‘::::;E
dwellinge POA

£000 £'000 £7100 ET000 E000 EDo0 £ £000

T34 62T 11 .4E0 152,487 13,53 35,724 E12 15,554 38

16,756 T4 7,732 1,05 35T a 3,742 125

1,355 o o o 1355 a a a

a5 o . o o a o o

201 o o o m a a a

1,543 o 01,543 o o a a a

a o o o o a o o

624 1,598 =72 o o a a a

a o 12,615 12,5153 o a a a

1,000 1,000 o o o o o o

7,054 o o o o 3,313 20)

243,551 12,120 169,544 1,921 41,518 Mz 16,423 1,115

473 o o o 24,425 4 5417 f-r

9,235 o 4,883 o 2,7 43 1,654 T4

1= o [ o o a o o

o o o o o a a a

o o o a a a

o o o 3,781 a [3,313) 20)

32,209 o o ] 23522 53 7,758 s

3,713 11,450 18,152 13,521 3454 425 B 133

138,341 o 132,334 o 4,507 a o o

267 o o o 200 53 a 14

o o o aTs o a a

11450 152,487 13,521 15,235 47 B.5T7 147

12,120 30,553 1,921 7= 43 B,E33 =7

144 335 o 139,386 o 4,953 o a a

185 o 5 o 138 o 3z 1z

1.147 o o o 1,147 o o o

11,342 12,120 169,544 1,921 7,55 43 B,BES P

A SEparstE schedule for the Trust tangibie assets has not been produced as nefther e NH3 Charty or the subsidiary Dudley Cinical 3=rvices Limiksd have any tangibie assets.
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13 P Plant and Equipment [continusd Group and Foundation Trust

132 mmin Bulisings

T lwe s S T et s b

crwaliings
£000 ETo0 ET0a £000 £'000 £'000 £00a £000

Cost af 1 April 2020 059,533 11420 154,058 T4 33,242 41 12,203 823
Audditions - purcFeased ar4z a 3,775 12,847 6,485 470 15
Audditions - l=ased 1.310 a a o 1,310 o a o
Audditions - donabesd 143 a 1d o 58 o 21 94
Additicns - eguipment donated from DHEC for COVID response (non 1025 a a o 1,095 o o
Impairments charged to opering sxpenses o a a ] ] i o
Impairments charged to the revaluation resenve 455 ] o o i a
Rewaluations 1,942 o o o o a
Reclassifications 1] o o o o o a
Disposals 2,458 a a o 485 o a
Caost at 31 Manch 2021 234,527 11450 152457 13,521 33,724 3 P 15,954
Aroumiuisted depreciation at 4 Aprl 2000 33,413 a a a 24531 ke &,108 750
Prowided during S year B, 107 o 4451 a 2,278 2 1,311 55
Impairmiznts charged o operading sxpenses o o a a o o a a
Impairments charged fo the revaluation reserve 23) o 231 ] i ] ] ]
Rewaluations [4,228) (=] 4,229) a o o a a
Dlzpozais [2,334) ] ] a 2,32 ] a (131
Acoumiulsted depreciation at 31 March 2021 4,73 o o a I4488 4 2417 Taz
Hat book walus
HEY - Cwned at 31 March 2020 38,567 11,450 17,230 674 4,383 10 4,047 173
KBV - PFlat 31 March 2020 137434 a 132,265 o 4, 1es o o o
BV - Donated at 31 March 020 213 ] ] i 153 ] ) i
KBV - Cwned - squiprment donaied from DHSC and NHEE flor
COVID response at 31 March 2020 o a a 1] 1] ] a 1]
MHEV total at 1 Aprll 2020 76,214 11450 151,093 674 a7 o 4,097 173
KBV - Cwned at 31 Manch 2021 E8,713 11420 18,153 13,521 5,454 435 8,577 133
KBV - PFl at 31 March 2021 38,24 a 134,334 o 4,607 o a o
KBV - Donatesd at 31 March 2021 =T a a o 200 53 a 94
HEYW - Cwned - equipmient donated from DHSC and NH2E for
COVID response at 31 March 2021 s a a o 875 o 1 o
MEV todal at 31 March 2021 159,555 11420 15z487 13,521 15,236 478 6,577 147

A separate schedule for the Trust tangibie assetz has not been produced as nelther Be NHE2 Charity or the subsidiary Dudley Cinical 2ervices LimEed have any tanghbie assets.
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13 Preparty. Plant and Equipment (continusd)

13.3 Financing of P Plant and Ipment Group and Foundation Trust
Total Land ::;::}ﬁ ’éﬁmﬂ Plant&  Transport Information Fumniturs &
awsliingz 8 POA Machinery Equipment Technology Flifings
Net Book Valus £1000 £000 £000 E000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
AL 31 March 2022
Camed 85,671 1212 30,553 1,921 11,758 428 83,833 257
On Statement of Financial Position PFI contracts and other sarvice
CONCESEION amangements 144 339 a 139,386 a 4553 o o o
Daonatad 185 a 3 a 136 o 32 12
MNEV - Cned - equipment donated from DHEC and NHSE for SOVID
response a1 31 March 2022 1,147 o o a 1,147 o o o
211,342 12,120 155,524 1,921 17,534 428 8,863 259
At 31 March 2021
Camed 8.3 11,450 18,153 13,521 D434 428 6577 133
On Statement of Financial Position PFI contracts and
other service concesslon amangements 138,541 a 134,334 a 4807 o o o
Donatad 257 a o a 200 53 o 14
MEV - Owned - equipment donated from DHEC and MHSE for COMID
response a1 31 March 2021 875 a o a 875 o o o
195,B96 11,450 152,457 13,521 15,236 4TR 6,577 147

A separate scheduls for the Trest iangible assels has not been produced as netiher the NHS Charty or the subsidiary Dudiey Ciinical Services Limitad have any tangibis assats.

Bulldings Asssts undsr
Tofal Land sxcluding Construction
dwallings & POA

Group and Foundation Trust

Plant &  Transport Information Fumilture &
Machinery Equipment Technolegy Fiitings

Met Book Valee at 31 March 2022 £1000 £000 £000 E000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000

Commissioner Requesiad ABEels 172,195 1212 160,075 a o o o o

Mon Commissioner Requested Assats 38,147 a 9.868 1,821 17,5484 428 8,665 k]
211,342 12,120 155,524 1,921 17,534 428 8,863 259

Met Book Value at 31 March 2021

Commissioner Requesied Assels 154,632 11,450 143,432 a ] o o o

Mon Commissionar Reguested Assals 45,014 a 5,055 13,521 15,236 ATE 58,577 147
195,B96 11,450 152,457 13,521 15,236 4TR 6,577 147

Commissioner Requested asssts are land and buldings owned or leased by the Foundation Trust, the disposal of which may afMect the Trust's ablity to provide these requested

goods and services.
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13 Proparty. Plant and Equipment (confinysd)
13.5 Economic Life of Assets
Thie estimatad useful economic Ives of the GI‘DI.IFI'E htal‘rgtllE ang mngue assets are 35 follows with 2ach aseel I:rl!ll'rg IIEFII'EHETEII
owver this year, as describad In accounting policy nabes 1.5 and 1.6
Minimum  Maximum

Life Lifa
Intangible Yaars Years
Sofware Licences z 10
Janglols
Bulldings sxciuding dwelings 5 )|
Dwelings 0 a
Assets under Construcion & POA 0 a
Plant & Machineny 7 15
Transport Equipment 7 10
Informiation Technolagy 3 15
Furniture & FRings 7 10

Land does not depreciaba.

In January 2019 The Royal Insttution of Chartered Sunveyors Issued guidance cartfying that whers a lange asset Includes a
RLEmiger DTI}DI'I"IMHEI'ITB-W S-El'llﬂ-ﬂ-ﬂl'lﬂ}' @ifferant aseet llves, then hese [HH'HFIDHEI'I'I-E miust b2 treated as E-E-FIEIE agssts ang
depreciated ower thelr own useful Ives. The Trusts asset valuation, undertaken as at 31 March 2022, took account of this
ciartication.

13.& Impalmment Logsss

Thie Trust camled out an Impalrmant review of Bs non-cumant assets In March 2022 . For land and bulldings the Trest recelved 3
waliation report from the Distried Valuer prepared on 3 Moem Equivalent Asset (MEA) basls. The valuation repart was prepared In
accordancs with the terms of the Royal Institution of Chartered Sureyors” Valuation Standards, 6th Edition, Insofar as the tarms
are conslstant with the requirements of HM Treasury, the National Health Senvdes and NHSI. On application thers was a genaral
Increase In value of land and bulldings (£5.220m) comparad to the camying value following the Manch 2021 valuation. In line with
IFRS the Trest took the Increase In value of the bulldngs direchy to the revaluation reserve. Tha valuation for the Rainbow Unit of
Rugsells Hall Hospltal resultad In an Impalmment of £1.577m which the Trust has faken to he Income and expendiure accownt.

In addition the Trust undestook an impalmmeant review of aquipment and Intangibie asseis. The camying value of eguipmant and
Intangibie assets was deamed to fairly reflect the value of the assets.

31 March 31 March

Impalrment of Assels 2022 20H
£'000 £T00
Changes In markst prce 1,877 1]
Unforesesn Obsolescance o} ]
Met Impalments charged to the revaluation reserve a 23
TOTAL IMPAIRMENTS )
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13 Proparty. Plant and Equipment (confinusd)

13.7 Asset Valuations

A Modem Eguivaiant Asset Opiimised ARemative Site valuation was underiaken as at 1st Apdl 2018 by the District
Valuer. The underying prinsipal Is that the valuation of land and bulldings should refizct 3 modem configuration of the
estate required for the provision of the same services a5 alieady provided by the exlsting estate. With service dellvery
requirsments evolving, this reguires the Trust fo consider whether the existing bulldings and slites are ogtimal In terms of
nwmber and size. [ e Tnest wene slarting with a ‘clean sheet', the Mogem Equivalent Asset allgned to sarvice dellvery
would be very different to the cument layout In tarms of bulding configuration and the size of the land. The net book value
of the Trust's land and bulldings decreased by £52,.412,000 between 21 Marsh 2013 and 31 March 2019, of which
£41,76E,000 was the resull of using an oplimisad allemative site valuation.

& further valuation has been underaken as at 31 March 2022 to update the costs asswmptions wihin the valuation.
Detals of this are Inciudad In noba 13,6 above.

The outbreak of COWVID-19, declared by the World Health Crganisation as a “Elobal Pandemic™ on the 11th Manch 2021,
has and continues to Impact many aspects of dally itz and the global economy — with some real estabe markets having
exparienced lower levels of fransactional activity and Iquidity. Trawsl, movement and operatonal restrictions have baen
Implemeniad by many countries. In some cases, “lockdowns® have been applied to varying degrees and to refiact furthar
“wawes” of COWID-19; although these may Imply & new stage of the crisls, thay are not unprecedenied In the same way as
the Initlal impact

The pandemiz and the measures aken to tackle COVID-19 continue to aMect economiss and real estate manksts giobally.
MWevertheless, as at the waluation dats some property marksts have started o function again, with transaction volumas
and other relevant svldence returning bo levels where an adequate quaniem of mankst evidence exists upon which to bass
opinions of value. Accordingly, and for the awoldance of doubt, the valuation Is not reporied 3s belng subjact to ‘matedal
valuation uncenainty” as defined by WVPE 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation — Global Standarnds.

13.8 Mon Cummsnt Asssts Hald For Sals and assefs In dizposal groups

During the year 2021722 the Trust reclassiied a parcel of land a5 an assat held for sale. There is cumently a contract for
sale agread with a seveloper that Is subject to planning permission being granted. The value of the land s therefore
refieciive of the cument stabus of the land. There were no Mon Curment Assets held for sale In 2020:21.

202022 202021
Total Land Total Land
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
AL 1 Apal H 0 0 0
Assels classified as avallable for sale In the year 1.000 1,000 0 0
Assets 50id In the year H 0 0 0
Impalkment of assats held for sale 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 1000 1,000 1] 1]

13.8 Capltal Commiliments

Commiiments under caplial expenditure contracis at the end of the year, not othenwise Included In the annual report and
AccoUnts were £396,000 (2020421 £3,775,000). The amount refating to property, plant and equipment Is £396,000
{20221 £3,703,000) and Intangible assets £l (2020721 £75,000).

13.10 Galnaliozses on dis tderacoqnition of assats
31 Marzh 31 March
2022 2021
£'000 £000

Gains on @sposaliierecogniton of other progerty, plant and

equipmant i 25

Losses on disposalidenacognition of other property, plant

and equipment o o
1] 25
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14.1 Inmlﬂm . o Group

Jzim22 2020/
Cument £000 ED00
MHS Chartable funds: Invesimentsfinancial assats 500 500
Mon Current
MHS Chartable funds: Invesimentsfnancial assats 1,469 1405
Total 1,963 1,905

Cument funds are cash funds haid by The Dudiey Group NHS Foundation Trust Charty which are deposltad In a fixed b2rm
deposit account.

Mon cusrent Tunds are Inwestments In s10CKs and shanes which are onfy held by The Dudiey GSroup NHS Foundation Trust
Chanty.

Movements In Mon current Invesiments

Hzirx2 2020

£000 ET0a

Camying Value at 1 Aprl 1,405 1,184
Falr value movemenis taken to 001 (for equity Instruments designated as FV through

1) E2 219

Camying Value at 31 March 1,469 1,405

A separate scheduls for the Trest Investments or financial assets has not been prodwced a5 the Trest do=s not have any
Invesiments or inanclal assats{2020021 £nll).

142 Subsldiariss

The Trust whally owns the subsidiary company Dudiey Clinical Senvicas Limited with a share of £1. Dudley Clinical Services
Limked, was registered In the UK company numbser 5245934, and commenced frading on 9 Oclober 2012

The registerad address for the Trust, Charty and Subsidary s Russelis Hall Hospltal, Dudisy, D1 2HG.

15 Inventoriss Group Foundation Truat
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 201 2022 2021
£0a0 £100 £0040 £00a
Drugs 2022 1917 1,768 1601
Consumaties 1.534 1.429 1,534 1429
Consumabies donated from DHSC group bodies 185 376 1E5 T
Enargy 46 17 45 17
Cther 7B 36 T8 35
Charltabie fund Inventory O o a a
TOTAL Inventaries 3,865 3,775 3.612 3453

The Group expensed Inventories guring e year of £41,456,000 (202021 £42 457,000}, of which £38,111,000 (2020421
E37,142,000) related 1o the Trust

The Trust charged £27,000 v operating expenses In the year due to wile-downs of obsoiate Inventories (2020021 £56,000).
This Expanse pocwmed due 1o the Eiq:l“}' of sbock which was unable 1o be used due 1o the PﬂE‘I.PIII'IEI'I'IEI'It of sarvices m.ll'll'lg
e covid 13 FI-H"IUEFI“C. There were no other wiite-offs of Inweniones within the |3I'IIH.I|:I.
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1&1 Trage and Oiher Recelvablas Group Foundation Trust
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
20x2 2021 2022 20
Currant £'D00 ET0D ET0D E00d
Contract recalvables (IFR315]): Involcad 3,927 2,597 3927 2,597
Contract recalvables (IFRS15]): not yet Involcedinon-involced 5,645 13359 5845 599
Contract assets (IFR515) a ] ] 740
Aloweanca for Impaired contract recelvables/zsseis 428) (352) [428) 352
Aliowance for Impaired other recelvables a ] ] a
Deposits and Advances 15 1& 1& 15
Frapaymenis(ravenus) non FFI 2,994 2,796 24993 2,791
Interest Recelvable 17 ] 17 a
PDC dividend receivabla a 428 ] 425
VAT Recelvable 2,285 2013 2,101 1,835
Comporaton and other taxes recelvable a ] ] a
Clinician pansion iax provision relmoursament funding from
NHSE a ] ] a
Other recelvabias a ] ] a
MHS Charitable funds: recelvables 24 21 o 1]
TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES 14,665 E. 856 14,471 5,653
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
20x2 2021 2022 2021
Mon Current E£'D0D £000 £000 £00d
Contract recalvanies (IFRS15): not yet Invalcedinon-invalced 1,414 1,366 o 1,363
Alowance far Impaired contract recelvables/assets 337) (311} [337) 311)
Prapaymants(revenus) nan FFI 1,564 1833 1,366 1,653
PFI Lifecycle prapayments (revenus) 11,929 10,107 11,920 10,107
Clinizian penislon tax provision reimbursament funding from
MHEE ar4 395 3r4 &3
Cther Recelvables a ] ] a
MHS Charfable funds: recalvables a ] ] a
TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 14,943 13,736 13,532 13,735
O which recelvable from NHS and DHSC group bodlas:
Cument 8,159 2937 BE15% 2937
Mon-current 74 Jon 374 &89

Cument and non current contract assats Incude the NHS Injury Scheme (was RTA)L

Inciugad within trade and other recelvabies of both Group and Trust are balances with a camying amount of £2,791,000 {31 March
2021 £2,351,000) which are past due at the reporting date but for which no speciic provision has been mags a5 thay are considensd
to be recoverable based on pravious trading history.

Group and Foundathon Trust

Contract Al
Recelvables’ Ofher
Total  Confract  Recsivables

AEEE1E
£1000D EnDa £1000D
Alowanceas at 1 April 2021 B3 663 ]
Mew Allowances Arsing 463 483 ]
Reversals of allowances (where recelvable 15 collecied In year) (291) {291) o
Utilisation of allowances (whare allowance |s writhen of) [7O) [T ]
Aliowances as at 31 Mansh 2022 TES TES V]

Lossijgain) recognised In expendiitre note 5. 172
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Alowancas at 1 Apnl 2020

Mew 0WancEE ansing

Feversals of allowances (Whers recelvabie 15 collecied In year)
Utils3tion of JlowWances (Whare Jowance 15 wiithen o)
ABIW3NCSE 35 at 31 Manch 2021

Lossiigaln) recognised In expendiiune nobe 5.

16.3 analysls of recelvablas with credit loss assessment

Ageing Analysls
0 - 30 Days
30- €0 Days
&0 - 5 Days
o0 - 180 Days
over 150 Days (over & monts)

Total

16.4 Analysls of recelvables without credit loss assesament

Ageing Analysls
0 - 30 Days
30-E0 Days
&0 - B Days
o0 - 180 Days
over 160 Days [over & months)
Total

Group and Foundation Trust

Contract All
Fecaivables/ Cither
Todal Contract Recelvables
AB5EE
ET00 £00a E00n
817 817 ]
350 350 ]
(276} [276) Q
[2E]) 28) a
663 663 o}
T4
Group and Foundation Truat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contract Contract
Recelvables Recelvables
and Contract Other and Contract Othar
AsEElE  Recaivables Aszats  Fecelvables
£'000 ET0D0 E000 £000
=] ] 1a o}
22 ] 42 o}
18 ] 1a o}
SE ] i} o}
597 ] 523 o}
TE1 /] 663 [1]
Group and Foundation Trust
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contract Contract
Recelvables Recelvables
and Contract Other  and Contract Oahear
AsEels  Receivables Aszats  Recelvables
E£'000 ET00 E000 £000
1,085 ] 2,167 a
192 ] 102 a
52 ] k1) a
157 ] 223 a
1301 ] 1,322 3}
2,791 1] 3,851 [i]

Separate schedules fior the Trust analysis of recelvables have not been produced 3 the NHS Charty recelvables are without credit
Ios5 3s5REEMENt and represent just £24,000 (31 March 2021 £21,000) of the valug hown by the Group In the 0-30 Says category

and the subsidiary did not hawe any recelvabies outstanding .

Credlt koss Impalmments are not recognised against MHS recelvables, In accordance with the DHSC Group Accounting Manual,
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At 1 Apal
Transfers By Absoiption
Met change In year

At 31 March

Analysed as folows:
Cash at commerzial banks and in hand

Cash with the Govemment Banking Service
Other cument Investments

Cagh and cazh squivalents as In Statement of
Financlal Position

Bank overdraft
Cash and cazh equivalents as In Statement of
Cash Flows

18 Trade and Other Payablss

Cumrant

Trade payabkes

Capital payables

Acoruals

Annual leave acoual

V3t payabia

Taxes payabie

PDC dividend payabla

Other payables

MWHS Chartable Funds frade and other payables

TOTAL CURRENT TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES

Hon Current
Trade payabkes

TOTAL HON CURRENT TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES

Of which payablas from MHS and DHSC group bodlss: O

Cument:
Mon-current

Group
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
E£70a0 E7000
19,307 5137
i] /]

5,859 14,170

25,166 19,307

B29 348
24,337 13,461
0 o

25,166 19,307

0 o

25,166 19,307

Group
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
£7000 £000
432 1,307
3,322 5,798
8,060 5,122
4,0:58 2241
a5 T
6,556 8,221
431 /]
18,413 14,618
4 a0

42,782 35,444

2,571 o
2,571 o
1,239 1,207

o o

Foundation Trust
31 March 31 March
2022 20
£7000 £'000
17,926 4,130
o i

5,808 13,738

23,736 17,928

1 1
23,735 17,927
0 0

23,736 17,928

23,736 17,928

Foundation Trust
31 March 31 March
2022 20
£7000 £'000
431 1,208
3322 5708
3,016 4,947
4 050 224
BS BT
§,91& 6,165
431 n]
19,413 14,618
0 1]

42,658 35,084

2,571 0
2,571 [1]
1,233 1,207

o o

Taxes payable consists of employment taxation only (Pay As You Eam and Mational Insurance contributions ), owed 1o Hi
Revenue and Cusioms at the year end, and Corporation Tax payable by the subsidiary Dudiey Cinleal Sendces Limlbed.

Oiher payables includes sUpErannuation owed to NHS Penslons.

Mon-current labiiles refabs o the fine from CQC that the Trust is lable to pay In Decambser 2023, Thers were no non cument

lladlitles at 31 March 2021.

13 Bormowlngs
Group and Foundatlon Truat
As at Agal
31 March 31 March
2022 201
cument £ E000
Caligations under Privaie Finance Iniflabive contracts (excl Ifecycle) 5317 5,206
Total Cusrent bomowings 5317 5,206
Mon Current
Caligations under Private Finance Inftlalive contracts: 106,055 110,085
Total Other non Cument Liablities 104,055 110,085

A separate schedule for the Trust borowings has not been produced as nefther the NHS Charfty or the subsidlany Dudiey Ciinlcal

Semices Limied have amy Donmowings.
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20 Provisions GToup and Foundation Trust Group and Foundation Trust

Cumrant Mon Curment
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Oiher legal clalms 307 1,239 a a
15420 Clinkelan™s pension tax relmbursemant a ] T4 859
Lease Dilapldations a o 125 a
Total ' 1.23% 453 53

Clinical penaton

Other lagal tax Leasze

Total clalma T mt  dilapidati
ETDd EDIa
At 1 Apn 2021 2133 a
Arising during the year 487 125
Utlized durng the year 1,182 ]
Reversad wnussad (647} o
At 31 March 2022 &05 125

Expected timing of cashflows:

- not later than one year, 37 a7 1 o
- later than one year and not [ater than five years; 453 o 374 123
- |ater than five years. a ] 1 o
TOTAL 805 307 374 125

Other Legal Claims Inciugs ciaims under EMployers’ and Public Liabiry.

Clinicians penslon &x reimbursement ralates to costs assoclated with the penslon tax scheme. Clinlglans who are members of the MHS Penslon Scheme and who as a result of work
undertaken In this t3x year (2019/20) face a tax chargs In respact of e growth of Mieir NHS pension benefis above thelr pension savings annual aliowance threshold will be aole o have this
charge pald by the NHS Penslon Seheme. Indivitual Trusts have been Insirecied to refiect this fulure estimated Ilabliy within ihe provisions note and Include a comesponding amount as
owing from NHS England within the recaivables note.

Thie NHS Litigation Authonty hias Inciuded In its prowisions at 31 March 2022 £392,751,000 (2020v21 £254,355,000) In respect of clinical neglgence laolities for the Trust.
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21 Ofher Liabiitles Group Foundathen Trust

31 March 31 March 31March 31 March
currant 202 2021 2022 2021

£D00 £'000 £100 E£D00
Defemed Incoms 7,283 3,040 7,269 3,040
TOTAL OTHER CURREMNT LIAEILITIES 7.269 3.0=0 7,289 4,040

Where Income has besn recalved Tor a speciiic aciivity which Is to be dellverad In the folliowing financial year, that Income s
dedfesred.

42 Deferred Tax
Liasilfty for corporation tax only anses from e achvity of the commearsial subsidlary, the aciviles of the Trust do not Incur
COMPOIETan L3x, 522 accounting policy note 1.18 for detailad explanation.

The subsidiany did not have any defemed tax In 2021722 (2020/21 £nil).

There are no events a%er the reparting year.

24 contingenciss
Meither the Growp nor the Trust have any contingent assets or labiities In 202122 (2020021 £nl)
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25 Related Party Transactions

During the year none of the Department of Health Minksiers, Trust Eoard Members or members of Me key management staf, or partes relatad to any of hem, have undertaken
maternal transaciions with The Dudiey Group NHS Founaation Trust.

The Departmeant of Haalth and Social Care | the parent depanment to the Trust and Is considared o be a redated parly. During 2021/22 the Tresi has had a significant numiper of
material ransaciions with the Depariment, and with other entities for which the Depariment s regardad as the parent Depariment. Thes2 anilties ana:

Birmingham Women's and Children's NHS Foundation Trust
Elack Country Heaitheare MHS Foungation Trust
Dumey Integratad Healtn and Care NHS Trust

Heaith Education Engiand

MHE BIrmingham ang Solnull CCE

MHE Black Country and West BInmingham COG

MHS Cannock Chass CCG

MHS England

MHS Herefordshire and Worcestershine COG

NHS Resolution

MHS Shropshire, Tetford and Wrekin CCG

MHS South East Siafs and Selsdon Peninsula COG
Sandwell And West Birmingham Hospltais NHS Trust
The Royal Walverhamgtan NHS Trust

University Hospitals BIrmingnam NHS Foundation Trust
Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust

Worcestershire Acute Hospltsis NHS Trust

In admuon, the Trust has Nad 3 NUMDbEr of Makrial r3nEactons wih oiher Govemment Depanments and Local Govemment Bodies. These related pames are sUMMarsad Delow
by Government Deparment.

Cane QI.IEm}’C-ﬂmI‘HIBSIDI'I

Communitty Haakh Parnershipe
Dudiey Mesropoiitan Borough Councl
HMRC

NHS Biood & Transplant

NHS Pengions

MHZ Property Senvices

Sanowell Metropoiltan Borough Council

174



Key management personneal, namely the Trust Board Directors, ars those persons having authodty and responsiblify for planning,
directing and controlling the activitles of the Trust. During the year none of the key managemant personnel have parties related o
them that hawe underaken any materal transactons with The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust

The table below detalls, on an aggregats basls, ey management personnel compensation:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Compenzation £1000 £'000
Zalanes and shori-term benefs 1225 1225
Fost-employment benefis 225 40a
1470 1,625

The folawing members of the Trust Board hald posiions In the organisations stated Delow.

Truat poeltion Other Boddy Poaltion held

¥ve Buckland Charpersan Birningham and Sollhull 105 (Integrated Care System) Independent

Chalrparsan

Gary Crowe Hon Exacutive University Hospltal of Morth Midlands WHS Trest Won Execuitlive Direchar
Director

Elzabeih Hughes Won Exacutive Health Education England Deputy Madical Director
Director

Viith Randeniya Wice Chalr Blrmingham Women's and Children's Fowundathon Trust Vice Chalman

The annual report and aceounts of e parent (ihe Trust) are presented together with the consoildated annual report and accounts
and any transacons or balances betwesn Group entities have been elminated on consolidation. Dudiey Group MHS Charfty has
a Comporabe Trustee whno are the Board members of the Trusl. The Boand members of Dudiey Clinlcal Services Limited Inclde
from the Trust, Execullve Director Adam Thomas and Mon Executive Directors Lowell Willlams as Chalman and Jonathan Hodgkin
as 3 Direcior.

The Trust recalved revenue payments from Dudley Growp MHS Charlty for finance adminissration servicas iotalling £47,000
{2020/21 £45,000). There were no recelvables of paybies balances as at 315t March 2022 (2020721 £0). Dudiey Clinical Senices
LimRed recefvad Income of £5,936,000 (2020021 £5,541,000) and Incwmed expendiune of £309,000 (202021 £307,000) with e
TREst. Thers ware recelvaiies of £150,000 (2020021 £130,000) oue from the Trist and payables of £0 (2020721 £0) payabie ta iha
Trust at 315t March 2022,

Dugiey Group MHS Charity and Dudley Clinical Services Limied and 8o not have any ransactions with any NHS or Government
entity except those with IFs parent, the Trust and HMRC.

2t Private Financs initlstives
261 PFI achemes on the Statemsant of Financlal Posltion

The Dudiey PFI project provided for the refurbishment and new bullding of major Inpatient facliities at Russells Hall Hosgltal, the
bwliding of new faclities at Guest Hosplal and Corbett Hosplal. The C3plal value of the sehems was £160,200,000. The Project
agreement runs for 40 years from May 2001, The Dudley PF Is a combination of bulldngs (Inciuding hard Faclities Managed (FM)
s2nvices) and a significant range of alled and clinical suppart s2rvices.

Thie standard Unitary Payment changes perodically as a conseguence o
- Infiaton [ based on APl and reviewsad annually)
_ Detuctons for poor pefmance (Defciency points and financial penaliies for poor perormance of non-complant
Incidents).
- Varations to the Project Agreement [PA) {agreed undar Varatlons procedure In the PA)
- 507 of marked tasing or rafinancing Impact
- Enary tanf adjuster jthe dffercnce between achual enengy tari changes and the uplit that comes thiugh RPI)

Volume adustar [compuied by comparning actual In patient days against that In e schedula, with 3 tolerance of plus
” of minus 3%}

The Trest has the rights to use the specified assats Tor the length of e Project Agreement and has the rights to expect provision
of the range of allied and cinlcal SUPPON services. Al the end of the Project Agreement the assets wil ransfer back to the Trusts
Cwnershig.

The PFI transacion mests e IFRIC 12 defnition of 3 senice cONcesslon, as INEMreted In Me GRoUp ACCountng Manual GAM)
Issued by Montor, and therefore the Trust Is required to account for the PFI scheme ‘on-balance sheet’ and this means that the
TREst treats the asset 35 If i wiere an asset of e Trst and the substancs of Me contract 5 Mat the Trust has 3 inancs lsase and
paymeants compnse o elements, an imputed finance l2ase change and senvica charges.
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2& Private FInancs Initlatives [continuad)

As ak AE at

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

E'DOD £'000

Gross PFI Liablitles 123.E58 127,139
of which llablitles are dus

- not later than one year, 17,769 17,044

- later than one year and not later than five years; 21,268 20,624

- later than five years. 84,621 0,271

Finance charges alocated o futura perods [12452) [11,E38)

Mt PF1 Nabllitias 111,406 115.301

- nod [ater than one year, 31T 5,206

- later than one yaar and not later than flve years; 21,258 20,524

- later than flee yaars. 84,821 89,271

The Trust Is committed to make the Tollowing payments for on-SoF P PFis caligations during the next year In which
e commitment E-IFHI'EE-:

31 March 31 March

202z 2021

£'000 £000

- not [ater than one year, 44 525 42,579

- later than one year and not ater than five years; 178,117 170,214

- later than five years. G23.410 538,679

Tokal 846,056 851,572
Analysls of amounts payable to the service concasshon operatar:

31 March 31 March

202z 2021

E£'000 £'000

Unitary payment payable to the concesslon aperator 42 573 41,992

Conslsting of:

- Imerest charges 4,502 4,659

- Repayment of finance lease llabliky 5,245 5518

- Sendce element 21,504 21,113

- Caphal Ifecycie malntenance 2145 3,297

- Contingent rent T 7,305

- Addition bo Ifecycie prapaymearnt 1.686 o

Total amount pald o concession opsrator 42 573 41,592

Ciher amounts paid io the sendce concession operator but not part of the wnitary payment

AMDUNSE Charges bo revenus 7,601 5716
Amounts caphalisad ] 14,312
Total amount Pallﬂ o the sarvice concesslon mf S0 180 E2.020
Total length of the project (years) 40
Mumiber of years to the end of the projest 19

26.2 PFI schemes off the Statement of Financlal Poslitlon

The Trust does not hawve any PFI schemes which are deemed to be of-statemeant of inancial posttion.
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27 Financial instruments and Related Disclosurss

& financial Instrument Is 3 confract that gives rise to a inancial asset In one ently and a financial llaoliity or equity Instrument In
anather entity. The nature of the Growp's activiles means that exposure to risk, athowgh not eliminatad, s subsantialy
reduced

The key risks that the Group have ldentifled are as follows:

Z7.1 Financlal Risk

Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the Trust has with Cinlcal Commissioning Groups (CCG's) and the
way Mose CCE'S are Snanced, and the relabonship Mat the subsitiary company and chanty have wih Me TIUS?, the Group 15
not exposed tp the degree of inancial risk faced by business entfles. Financial Instruments play a much more limised roie In
creating or changing risk Man woukl be typlcal of listed companias, to Which ihe Mnancal reponing standands maknly appey. The
Zroug has limited powers 1o bomow or Inwest surplus funds and financlal assets and lablliies are genarated by day-1o-day
operational aciiviles rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust i undaraking Its actvities.

The Group's freasury management operations ans camed out by the finance department, within paramstars defined formally
within the standing inancial Instructions and policies agread by the Board of Direckors. Group treasuny actvity 15 sublect to
review oy Tie Finance and Performance Committes.

27.2 Currency Rizk
The Group are principally domesiic organisations with the great majority of transactions, assets and lablities being In the UK

and Sterling based. The Group hawe No OVETSEas operaions. The Group therefore have low eXposune bo clETENCY rate
fuchuations.

27.3 Market (interest Rate) Rizk
Al of the Group financial assets and all of s financial laolities camy nil or fxed rates of Interest. The Group Is not thersfors,
exposed o slgnificant interest rate risk.

27.4 Credit Risk

The majonty of the Groug's Income comes from contracis with other public secior bodles, resuling In (ow exposwe to credi rsk.
The maxiMum EXposIes 35 3t 31 March 2022 are In recelvables rom clesiomers, as dsciosed In note 17 1o the anmual report
and accounts. The Group mitigates It exposire to edd isk through reguiar review of debtor balances and by caleuiating 3
credit loss alowance at the end of the year.

275 dity Risk

The GI'EILJP"B net Dﬁrmﬂg posls are Ingwmed under annual sendcs ﬂl’E‘El‘l’H!ﬂ[S- with Clinkcal Cnmmlsslmlng G-I'DL!IB- and MHE
England, which are financed from resourtes vobed annually by Parlament. This Is regulated by the Trust's compliance with the
‘Firanclal Sustamaniity Risk Ratng' systam created by Monltor, the Independent Reguiator of MHS Foundation Trusts. In
addition should the Group Identify a shortfall on cash, the Trust has the abliity io bormow from the FT financing facility. The Group
ENSUrEs that It has suMcient cash to mest all (ks commiments when ey fail us. The Boand coninuss to montor monmly and
future cash positlons and has govemance amangements In place to manage cash requirements throughout the year. The Sroup
IS Not, thenstones, SXposed to SgRMcant Iiquidity RSKs,

Z7.E Falr Valuss

Al of the inanclal 3ssets and all of the financal llanlifles of the GI'I:II.ﬂ are maaswrad a1 falr value on I'Eﬁ:lg"lml:lﬂ and
subsequently amortised cost, with the exzeption of the Ivesiment of the Chartty which ks measured at fair value thrugh othar
n::umprehermhle Inzome.
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ancia and Liat Sy Category
The folliowing tables show by catzgory the financial assets and financlal lablites at 31 March 2022, The values are shown at amoriised cost which Is represeniative of the caimying
walue.

Group Foundation Trust
Invesiments In
equlty
Instruments
Walued at designated at Walued at
amartised fair value amaortised
Financlal &ssats as at 31 March 2022 Todal cost through OC Total cost
£000 £000 £000 £7000 £1000
Recelvables (excluding non inanclal assets) with NHS
and OH bodies 8,234 543 1 8,434 8,432
Regeivables [2xciuding non inanddal assets) with othar
bodies 2,281 2,281 1] 2281 2,281
Other Invesiments and Financlal Asssts o o 1 o 1
ash and cash equivalenis 24,564 24,564 1 23,736 23,736
Consolidated MHS Charfiadle fund finandial assets 2,585 1,126 1,469 o 1]
37,874 36,405 1,469 32,451 3£.451

A financial asset |s measured at falr value through other comgrehensive Income where bisiness model objecives are met by both collecting contraciual
cash Mows and selling MNancial 38515 and Where tha Casn NOWS 3re Soily payments of pAncipal and INterast. MOoVEMENTs In e Tair value of fnancal
asEEts In this calegory are recognised as gains or lnsses In other comprenensive ncome except for Impalment losses. On derecognition, cumulative
gains and l0sE2E Previusly recognised In oiher comprenensive INCome are reciassMed from equity 1o Income and expenalture, except wners me Trust
elected 1o measure an equity Instrument In this category on Initlal recognition. The Trust has imevocably elected to measure the charity equity Instuments
at fair value through oINer comprehensive Income.

Group Foundation Trust
WValued at Valued at
amartised amertised
Financlal Liabliitles as at 31 March 2022 Todal cost Total cost
€000 £000 £000 £000
Coligations under Private Finance Inktiative contracts 111,408 111,406 111,406 111,405
Trade and other payadles (exciuding non financial
lianliitles) with NHS and DH bodies 548 549 549 543
Trade and oiher payadles (exciuding non financial
lianliitles) wih other bodles 29,351 20,881 29,350 29,350
Prowislons under contract a0e 06 806 805
Consolidated MHS Charfiable Fund financial liablifles 44 a4 1] a
142,656 142,656 142811 142,611

178



Z7.8 Finam 488

and Liablitiss By Cat

The folowing tables show Dy category the fnandcial assets and financial lablites at 31 March 2021. The values are shoan at amorised
cost which Is representative of the camying valuws.

Financlal Assais a8 at 31 March 2021

Receivables [exciuding naon nancal asseis) wih NHS
and DH bodies

Recelvables (2xciuding nan inanclal assets) with other
bodles

Other Invesimients and Financlal Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis
Consolidated NHS (Chariadle fund financial assets

Financlal Liatiitles aa at 31 March 2021

Collgations under Privaie Finance Inflatve contracts

Trade and other payadies (exciuding non inancial
llanlitles ) with NHS and DH bodies

Trade and other payaoles (exciuding non financial
llznlirtles ) wih othar bodles

Provislons wnder contract

Consolidated NHS Chariable Fund financial lladliRlies

Group Foundation Trust
Imvestments In
equity
InsTuments
Valued at deslgnated at Wabued at
amartised falr value amortised
Tatal st throwgh ST Todal cost
£'000 £3900 £000 £000 E000
3,085 3085 a 3.0as 3,085
2475 ZATS a 2478 2,475
o ] a ] a
18,773 1E,772 a 17,928 17,928
2,450 1055 1,405 ] a
26,733 25,358 1,405 23,468 23,468
Group Foundation Trust
Valued at Walued at
amaortised amortised
Tatal cost Todal cost
£'000 £300 EQ00 E000
115,31 115,301 115,301 115,301
1,172 1172 1,172 1.172
20,551 20,551 20,452 20,452
2,138 2,138 2,138 2,138
a0 =0 ] a
139,212 135212 139,063 139,063
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amcla 1E k- 2 308 gl3te LT B&
Mofe 27.9 Falr wvalues of inanclal assets and llabliities
IFRST requires e Trest to disciose the falr value of financlal llablifles. The PFI scheme ks a non-current Financial
Liaiiy where the Talr value Is llkely to differ from the camylng walue. The Trust have reviewed the current interest rates
gvallable for bomowing and If these wene used a5 the Implich interest ate for the scheme the Talr value of the lladlity
would be £75,576,000 (£42,677,000 In 2020021).

The Trust has usad an Interest rate of 2.95% In this calculation as this represents the undenying Interest rate In the PRI
scheme.

27.10 Maturlty of Financial Lliablities Group Foundathen Trust
As at As at As at As at
3 Marzh 21 Manch 21 Marzh 21 March
202z 2021 x2 2021
£D00 £000 £000 £°000
In One Year or Less 435,949 40,056 435,545 35,894
In mare than one year bt not more than five years 23,839 21,723 23,839 21,723
In mare than five years 835,320 89,271 835,320 8,271
Total 155,108 151,050 155,107 150,888

28 _Third Party Azsets

The Trust hald £15,000 as cash at bank of In hand at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021 £5,000) which related 10 monles
hiedd by the Trust on b=half of patients. These balances ane excluded from ¢ash at bank and In hand figures reponed In
the annwal repaort and accounts node 17 on page 37.

29 Losses and Spaclal Payments
NHZ Foundabon Trusis ar2 remlre-:l to recoind FIB}'I'TIEI'ITE and other II]LIEIJ'HEI'HE that arise a2 3 regult of lossss and
special pIYMENts 0N an acenals basls, excluding provisons or future I0sses.

" Restabsd
221rz2 2020521
Humb=r Valug Mumber Walue

EQDD £00a0
Loss of Cash o a a a
Frufiless paymenis . a a a
Bad debls and clalms abandonad M &l 24 13
Damage to Bulldngs, propeny ete. oue b
Theft o a a a
Shores losses 35 135 21 161
Total Losses ] 186 45 74
Ex gratla paymenis 49 44 40 |
Cwertime Comecive Payments 0 a 475 138
Total Special Paymants: 49 45 215 1648
Total Losges and Spectal Paymants 17 244 560 362

* The overtime comeciive payments ane consldersd as spectal payments for which HMT approwal was sought
nationally by NHS England on cal employers” benal,

There were no (2020:21 £nll) clinkzal negligence, fraud, personal Injury, compensation under legal obiigations
of fruitiess payment cases where the net payment for the Individual case excesded £300,000

20 Aydifors’ Liabiity

In accomance with the Companies (Disclosurs of Audior Remunaration and Liablity Limitation Agreemants)
Regulations 2003, e Nabiity of the Trust Audior, S@Ant Thomion UK LLP |6 restricied to £1,000,000 in
respact of lladlify io pay damages for losses ansing as a direct resull of breach of coniract or negligence In
respact of senvces provided In connection with or ansing from thair letter of engagement dated Sth May
2021.
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This leaflet can be made available in large print, audio version and in
other languages, please call 0800 073 0510.
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08000730510.

IEEEMERATRE. SHREANEEESRA - HRiTEE:
0800 073 0510,

Ulotka dostepna jest rowniez w duzym druku, wersji audio lub w innym
jezyku. W tym celu zadzwonrn pod numer 0800 073 0510.

Y3 J AT 9, 0800 073 0510 F & Hil

Aceasta brosura poate fi pusa la dispozitie tiparita cu caractere mari,
versiune audio sau in alte limbi, pentru acest lucru va rugam sunati la
0800073 0510.

LS L LS L e 3l %00 g Sipsea ren o ST (S g 2 5 S S g
- S Al 08000730510 et 058 Sy e =

181



182



183



	Dr Thuvarahan Amuthalingham – associate non-executive director
	Julian Atkins, non-executive director and deputy chair
	Julian joined the Trust in January 2016 as a non-executive director and is currently deputy chair. He has experience in both the public and private sectors, having worked at organisations such as Alliance & Leicester, Marks & Spencer, Solihull Health ...
	Dr Gurjit Bhogal – associate non-executive director
	Gary Crowe, non-executive director
	Jonathan Hodgkin, non-executive director
	Vij Randeniya, non-executive director
	Public elected: 13 governors

	Independent auditor's report to the Council of Governors of the Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust
	Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
	Opinion on financial statements
	Basis for opinion
	Conclusions relating to going concern
	The responsibilities of the Accounting Officer with respect to going concern are described in the ‘Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements’ section of this report.
	Other information
	Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice
	Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice
	Matters on which we are required to report by exception
	Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements
	Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
	Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud


	Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
	Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer
	Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
	Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in certification of completion of the audit
	Use of our report


